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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ITEHMES

On behalf of the board of directors of Talent Property Group
Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present the audited
consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2018.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

2018 is a financial year in which the Group built the foundation
for a brighter future. The consolidated revenue and gross profit
for 2018 amounted to approximately RMB278.7 million (2017:
RMB727.0 million) and RMB82.1 million (2017: RMB182.3
million), respectively. Decrease in revenue in 2018 was primarily
due to the fact that high-rise residential units in our flagship
project Xintian Banshan, which have the highest volume of stock,
have been almost sold out and fully delivered after continual
sales in recent years. Though luxury villas at zone B are available
for subscription, they will not enter the delivery phase until next
year. Impairment loss of Xintian Banshan provided in previous
years was again reversed partly in view of its latest sales
record and market condition in 2018, while the fair value of our
investment property Talent Shoes Trading Center was reduced
in light of its latest leasing condition. The Group also ramped
up investment in its logistics projects in 2018. A post-tax profit
attributable to the owners of the Company of RMB69.6 million
was recorded (2017: RMB63.7 million).
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OPERATING REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

At the beginning of 2018, the global economy extended
its growth momentum seen in the previous year. However,
macroeconomic environment became more unstable in the
second half as the US resorted to trade protectionism and
countries across the globe shifted away from accommodative
monetary policies. 2018 marks the 40th anniversary of
China’s reform and opening-up policy. China’s economy has
maintained stable, continued and healthy development, thanks
to supply-side structural reforms steadfastly implemented by
the government and its various measures aimed at expanding
domestic demand. Maintaining a long-term and effective
mechanism of real estate market and ensuring its stable and
healthy development remained the key tone of the central
government’s real estate regulatory policies in 2018. However,
we saw signs of a slight loosening of such policies at year-end.
Some cities partially relaxed price restrictions, and many lowered
the percentage increase in home loan rates. The Group will
continue to explore diversified businesses to ensure its continued
steady growth.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ITEHMES

Xintian Banshan

Xintian Banshan, the Group’s flagship project, is located in
Nanhu Scenery Zone of Baiyun District in Guangzhou. Within
20-minute driving distance from Guangzhou’s Tianhe District, the
project is set in a tranquil environment in proximity to the bustling
downtown. The high-rise residential apartments at zone D and
villas at zone C were almost sold out. For Xintian Banshan villas,
which are scattered on mountain slopes along the mountain at
zone B, elegant show flats have been open for visits through
appointment. The first batch of villas subscribed by buyers were
sold at decent unit prices. The construction progress of the
mega villa project at zone E, which is rare in Guangzhou, will
be adjusted in light of sales progress of villas at zone B. The
official release of the blueprint for the Guangdong-Hong Kong-
Macao Greater Bay Area has ushered in a win-win cooperation
model for the nine cities and two special administrative regions
in the Greater Bay Area. Guangzhou is poised to benefit from
the jump-start of core financial industry in the area in respect
of consolidated strength and wealth creation. The real estate
market for luxury housing is set to benefit from the great
synergistic growth of the entire cluster of cities in the area.
Thanks to the joint efforts of our sales team, the subscription
and contracted sales amount and area recorded during the year
were approximately RMB279 million (2017: RMB316 million)
and 3,400 sgm (2017: 7,800 sgm). Looking into 2019, we will
continue to explore potential buyers, form close ties with them,
and promote the sale and delivery of penthouse special units at
zone D, parking spaces and villas at zone B of this project, thus
realizing cash recovery.
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Talent Shoes Trading Center

The Group’s Talent Shoes Trading Center in Liwan District,
Guangzhou was a redevelopment project refurnished into a
10-storey building for integrated commercial and office uses
in 2015. In recent years, in addition to competition from
e-commerce players, trade disputes between China and the
US have had a deeper impact on tenants with businesses in
the traditional wholesale industry in China. In 2018, the Group
started to adjust its tenant mix on certain floors of the building
and strengthen its efforts in leasing upon completion of the
refurbishment of certain floors, recording an average occupancy
rate of 80% for the full year. Looking forward into 2019, the
Group will phase out some of its existing, smaller tenants and
roll out targeted concessionary programs to attract quality
merchants. The Group seeks to boost the Trading Center’s long-
term rentals by improving the image of the property and the
quality of its property management services, and by changing its
positioning as a professional shoe market.

Linhe Cun Redevelopment Project

Linhe Cun redevelopment project is located in the central
business district of Tianhe District in Guangzhou, which is
adjacent to Guangzhou East Railway Station. The Group
cooperates with Sun Hung Kai Properties Group for this project.
The grade A commercial office building namely “Guangzhou
Commerce Centre” and units in block 1 to 6 of the high-rise
residential project known as “Forest Hills” were almost sold
out and recognised as revenue in previous years and 2018.
Completed units in the last high-rise residential building of
Forest Hills are already available for subscription and recorded
satisfactory unit prices.

Logistic Commercial Real Estate Project

In recent years, China’s economy has transitioned from high-
speed to high-quality growth, with consumption becoming
the main driver of economic development. As urbanization
continues to move forward across China, both renovation and
transformation of cities and people’s pursuit for a better life
require the support of complementary services and facilities
such as industrial parks and logistics & distribution centers. The
logistics facilities market in China has continued to grow rapidly,
thanks to rising consumption and growing demand for logistics
services. Given these opportunities, in late 2016, we formed a
project company with the reputable founder of Guangdong Linan
Logistics Group in an effort to expand the Group’s businesses
into property development for the logistics industry.
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In Jiangsu Province, we had successfully bid one land parcel in
Guangling District of Yangzhou City and another one in Yunlong
District of Xuzhou City. Both land parcels are at prime locations.
The two projects are to be developed into an integrated
intelligent logistics park comprising retail shop, office building,
office apartment, trade exhibition center, e-commerce information
center, logistics & distribution center and warehouse. The two
projects cover a site area of approximately 80,000 sgm and
100,000 sgm, respectively. Both projects are currently under
development into logistic parks with a floor area of approximately
160,000 sgm each. Some 88,000 sgm and 115,000 sgm will be
available for sale, respectively upon completion of the projects.
Pre-sale activities are expected to be rolled out in mid-2019 at
the earliest. We also acquired a land parcel covering a site area
of about 250,000 sgm in Shatou Town of Yangzhou City in late
2018. The project is currently under planning. We will work with
the local government to develop it into the largest comprehensive
agricultural product exhibition and trading center in the central
area of Jiangsu Province. The Group will properly handle its scale
expansion, strengthen cost control and construction progress
management, and strive to obtain long-term benefits that
economic transformation provides.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of our board of directors, | would like to take this
opportunity to thank all of our shareholders, clients and business
partners for their trust and support and the staff for their hard
work and dedication.

Zhang Gao Bin

Chairman and Executive Director
PRC Hong Kong

30 March 2019
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

OVERVIEW

The principal activity of Talent Property Group Limited (the
“Company”) is investment holding. On 10 December 2010, the
Company completed the acquisition of Talent Central Limited
which, through its subsidiaries, holds interests in various real
estate projects in the PRC (the “Previous Acquisition”) from
Talent Trend Holdings Limited (“Talent Trend”).
currently engages in the business of (i) real estate development,

The Group

(i) property investment and (i) property management in the PRC.

REVENUE AND GROSS PROFIT

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group recorded
a revenue and gross profit of RMB278.7 million and RMB82.1
million, respectively, as compared to revenue of RMB727.0
million and gross profit of RMB182.3 million for the year ended

31 December 2017.

In 2018, a revenue of RMB227.3 million (2017: RMB674.2 million)
was recorded from the continual delivery of high rise residential
units of Xintian Banshan (#7X L) with gross floor area of
approximately 5,700 square meters (“sgm”) (2017: 20,600 sgm).
Whereas, revenue from selling of other properties held for sales
was RMB23.6 million (2017: RMB26.4 million).

During the year, rental income and properties management
fee income totaling RMB20.3 million (2017: RMB19.8 million)
were recorded from our Talent Shoes Trading Center (Kfm#:
¥ 5HD), a 10-storey complex building located at Zhan Xi
Shoe Market. Rental income and properties management fee
generated from other properties of the Group totaling RMB7.5
million (2017: RMB6.6 million) was recorded.

After taking into account the costs from Previous Acquisition,
subsequent development cost, the net provision for impairment
loss as well as higher unit price of properties delivered, a gross
profit and overall gross profit margin of RMB82.1 million and
29.5% (2017: a gross profit of RMB182.3 million and gross profit
margin of 25.1%), respectively, were recorded.
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
E v NEupAE

DISTRIBUTION COSTS

Distribution costs of RMB23.2 million were recorded in 2018 as
compared to RMB14.7 million in 2017. More marketing resources
had been utilized for promotion of the luxury villas of Xintian
Banshan and logistic project in Yangzhou. In addition, additional
charge of RMB3.6 million was recorded in accordance with
HKFRS 15.

ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER OPERATING
EXPENSES

In 2018, administrative expense of RMB51.8 million was
recorded as compared to RMB48.9 million last year. It was
primarily the result of increased spending in logistics park
development projects, additional charge following requirement of
HKFRS 9 and cost saving in Guangzhou headquarter.

SHARE OF PROFIT OF AN ASSOCIATE

The Linhe Cun Rebuilding project is an old village redevelopment
project located in the CBD of Tianhe District in Guangzhou and
it is adjacent to the Guangzhou East Railway station. The project
is carried out by an associate which is 30% and 70% owned
by the Group and Sun Hung Kai Properties Group, respectively.
Development of the project was completed. Substantial pre-sold
residential units of block 5 and block 6 of “Forest Hills” were
delivered and recognised as revenue during the year.
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

REVERSAL OF IMPAIRMENT LOSS AND
FAIR VALUE CHANGES ON PROPERTIES
PORTFOLIO

Talent Shoes Trading Center is the major investment property
of the Group. Besides popularity of e-commence, the trade war
between US and China during the year casted further shadow
against the nearby rental market. The modification of internal
partition of the property was completed and new incentive
scheme was offered to new tenants. As a result, a revaluation
deficit amounting RMB38.9 million was recorded.

Concerning our residential project, Xintian Banshan, garden
and landscape engineering around the grand-sized luxurious
villas in zone B are almost completed and show flats of zone B
were opened for visit and for sale. After considering sentiment
of property market in Guangzhou, pace and price of latest
contract sales, further development costs to be incurred as well
as the latest revaluation, a further reversal of previously provided
impairment loss of RMB81.5 million (2017: RMB82.8 million) was
recorded for our properties under development.

The above revaluation was conducted by an independent
qualified professional valuer.

FINANCE COST

Finance costs arising from bank and other borrowings (before
capitalisation) increased to RMB30.6 million (2017: RMB18.4
million). During the year, new borrowing had been made to fund
the development of logistic projects of the Group.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income tax expenses amounted to RMB40.5 million was
recorded for 2018 (2017: RMB130.0 million). The reduction
of overall tax charge was primarily the result of decreased
recognition of revenue of Xintian Banshan, recognise of tax
losses of logistics projects as well as higher tax charge arising
from disposal of investment properties last year.
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
E v NEupAE

PROFIT OF THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

As a result of the above, a profit attributable to owners of the
Company of RMB69.6 million was recorded for the year (2017:
RMB63.7 million).

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The following content lists out the key risks and uncertainties
facing the Group. It is a non-exhaustive list and there may be
other risks and uncertainties further to the key risk areas outlined
below.

Market Risk

The Group’s assets are predominantly in the form of land use
rights, land under development, properties under development,
properties held for sale and investment properties. In the event
of a severe downturn in the property market in Guangzhou and
Mainland China, these assets may not be readily realised. The
Group closely monitored market condition and formulated selling
plan from time to time and diversified investment to difference
sectors and geographic locations. A relatively low gearing ratio is
maintained to accommodate such risks.

Operational Risk

The Group’s operation is subject to a number of risk factors
distinctive to property development and property related
businesses. Default on the part of its buyers, tenants, sub-
tenants, contractors and strategic business partners, and
inadequacies or failures of internal processes, people and
systems or other external factors may have various levels of
negative impact on the results of the Group’s operations. The
Group has its internal control system and had experienced staffs
in different business functions to tackle and minimize operational
risks.
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Risk pertaining to the property leasing and sub-leasing

The rental rates and the occupancy rates will depend on various
factors, including but not limited to, prevailing supply and
demand conditions, economic conditions as well as the quality of
the properties. The Group currently carries out various marketing
activities and refurbish relevant properties to tackle the risks.

PROSPECT

Looking ahead to 2019, despite there is no sign of easing Sino-
US trade war, the Chinese government will take steps to stabilize
its employment, finance, foreign trade, foreign investments,
investment and expectation to ensure economic growth of the
nation. In addition, the government did not reiterate the policies
of “Houses are for living but not for speculation” etc., recently.
These all appear a steady real estate market conditions can be
expected. The Group will grasp this opportunities to boost the
sales of Xintian Banshan in order to facilitate the development
various logistics projects.
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
E v NEupAE

PORTFOLIO OF PROPERTIES YIEHE
As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s properties and projects on R-_ZE—NE+-A=+—0  AEEWNIRE
hand are shown in the table below: MERIBEEINTX :
Investment properties rREYHE
Gross floor Percentage

Lease term area (sq.m.) interest
Project and address Purpose of land HEEERE EREIL
1HE Rt A& T EHR (F7HXK) %
A 10-storey commercial building built over a Commercial Medium 22,5626* 100%
basement of 3 levels, mixed commercial and [EHES R HA

office building with car parking spaces.

No. 18 Zhan Xi Road, Liwan District,
Guangzhou City, Guangdong Province,

the PRC

(“Talent Shoes Trading Center”)

A SR A BN TH 7 & E R R 1855
—ERR=EHE FREEERRRGEEE R
EHEBEMAZI0ESEXET
(IRREXRSHTL])

Commercial units of Shangyu Garden, Commercial Medium 2,198 100%
No. 45 Tianhe Road, Tianhe District, (EES H A

Guangzhou City, Guangdong Province,

the PRC (“Shangyu Garden”)

Fh B BRI T RO [ RO B8 4555%

FERIEE ([ PBIERE]) 2EAE

* Being gross floor area of property excluding the car parking * B sm@EmmEE (TeREEEA) °
spaces.
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW g
75 K W 55 Bl R

Properties under development

Planned
Saleable
GFA*
(sq.m.)
STEITTEHE
BEEER
(F7HK)

Site area

(sq.m.)
HARE S
(FEAHK)

Project and address
HE Rtk

BREPYE

Percentage
interest

%

s

B l%

Stage of
completion

5T AP B

Expected
completion
date
BHEIEH

Xintian Banshan

South Lake Village Phase I,

Tonghe Road, Baiyun District,
Guangzhou City, Guangdong
Province, the PRC (“Xintian Banshan”)
R

AL — A

PRI ERA BEIMNT B EERME
([#rRHEL D)

118,102 Approximately
#735,000

Yangzhou (Linan) Intelligence 88,000**
Logistics Park

A project to the south of Kaifa

East Road and east of Jiangdu

South Road, Yangzhou, Jiangsu

Province,

the PRC

BN () BEWREER

H BT &k & 15 M T R 3 R R

UARS BT B B AR B IE B

81,186

Linan (Xuzhou) Intelligence 101,904 115,000**
Industry Town

A project to the south of Guozhuang
Road and

North of Longhai Railway,

Xuzhou, Jiangsu Province,

the PRC

M (M) BEEFE/ A
BT #RA RN

EE7 NS ke iy

AJEEIER

It excludes area for basement, car parking spaces, units delivered
and completed for delivery.

> It also excludes area for owner’s occupation/investment of
approximately 67,000 sgm and 43,000 sgm for project in
Yangzhou and Xuzhou, respectively.

100%

51%

51%

Under
development

HELE

Under
development

GE:GY

Under
development

GG

* TEEE - FEEM
RAFEL

2020
—E-THE

—= —=<

2019-2020
—E-NEFE

—E-FF

2019-2020
—ETNEFE
—E-EF

ERNMERERTIF

o TEEHREARBNEGMNEBEGR &KE
53 Bl 967,000 J5 2K [ 43,000 5 2K #) &

i o
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

EBEN U HORE

Completed properties held for sale BIEHEZCR T Y
Gross floor Percentage
area (sq.m.) interest %
MEEEE BB
Project and address (FEFHK) %
HE Rtk (Note)
(K1az)
Linhe Cun Redevelopment Project Approximately 30%
Tianhe District, #124,000
Guangzhou City,
Guangdong Province,
the PRC
MM ERIER
Bl E R BN TR
Residential units of Approximately 100%
Xintian Banshan 476,000
completed for delivery
ERIFRIMNEARFILETEN
Residential units of Approximately 100%
South Lake Village Phase |, Tonghe Road, #)5,900
Baiyun District, Guangzhou City,
Guangdong Province, the PRC
(RS
hEEREBEMT
AE @ E M
FOAIL AL 5 —
ZEEEM
Car parking spaces of Xintian Banshan, Dongming Xuan, N/A 100%
Tianlun Garden and Shangyu Garden T iE A

(VOIS
FREL - NG  RREEN LBERZEN
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group’s total assets as at 31 December 2018 were
approximately RMB3,620.3 million (831 December 2017:
approximately RMB3,297.7 million) which were financed by the
total equity and total liabilities of approximately RMB1,964.1
million (31 December 2017: approximately RMB1,894.6 million)
and approximately RMB1,656.2 million (31 December 2017:
approximately RMB1,403.1 million) respectively.

The directors consider the Group will have sufficient working
capital for its operations and financial resources for financing
future investment opportunities.

The Group’s borrowings were all denominated in Renminbi. Bank
balances and cash were mainly denominated in Renminbi. As at
31 December 2018, there were no outstanding forward contracts
in foreign currency committed by the Group that might involve it
in significant foreign exchange risks and exposures.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s gearing ratio then
computed as total debts over total assets was approximately
45.7% as at 31 December 2018 (31 December 2017: 42.5%). As
at 31 December 2018, all bank borrowings were repaid and other
borrowings amounted to RMB381.9 million (2017: RMB170.0
million and RMB101.9 million respectively) carried fixed interest
rate.

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The revenue and the cost of good sold and of service of the
Group are mainly denominated in Renminbi. Therefore, the Group
is not exposed to any other material foreign currency exchange
risk. An average rate and a closing rate of HK$1.18692:
RMB1 and HK$1.13842:RMB1, respectively, were applied on
consolidation of the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2018. No hedging measure has been implemented by
the Group.

BN YO

REBEERUBEER
RZZE—-NEFE+_A=+—0 AEEEE
BENAARE36203BETL (ZT—+tF
+ZA=+—H: HHAR¥3207.7TEE ) °
MERRERABEEES N ARE1,964.1
BEL(ZE—+tF+ZA=+—H:8OA
R¥1,8046B87L) RN ARK1,656.28 &
T(ZE—+F+_HA=+—H: HAR¥
1,403 1H &) BE -

AEEEZRRAKBKABRNEEES
RARNEBS  BEBRBMBER A
ERRRERBERE - ZHRAFES -

AEBZEFHAAREFHE - VRITHEHRIR
SEEUAREFHE R_T-\FTZA=
+— A8 ANEEEBEE R EAIMNE R
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BEARRE
R-F-N\F+t-A=+—8 KEEZ&E
Fo IR E RS R A ST H B KI46.7% (=

T—+tF+A=+—H:425%) - R=F
—\F+ZA=+—8 " FBERITEFHEE
B OMEMERAARKIBIIEEL (ZF
—tF: DRABAREIT0.0BEETRARKE
101.9B87) - ZEBRIVZEEF KT E -

SME R B

AEBHREHEEEREREXAEZEUA
REE - At ARETEMETRAEME
KANERE - BE-_E—N\E+-_A=+—8
IEFE - ARRIREREMBEHRES BIRAFH
PE R K U T BB R1.18692/% T H A R 17T &
1.13842/8 L H AR MATT o AN B I & FREUE
(EEREEE
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
E v NEupAE

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2018, an investment property of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB665 million (31 December
2017: RMB702 million) was pledged to secure general banking
facilities. Properties under development and deposit with the
approximate value of RMB455 million and RMB3 million were
pledged to secure facilities from a financial institution.

NUMBERS AND REMUNERATION OF
EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had approximately 229
(831 December 2017: 254) employees, with about 226 in
the Mainland China and 3 in Hong Kong. All employees are
remunerated based on industry practice and in accordance with
prevailing labor law. In Hong Kong, apart from basic salary, staff
benefits including medical insurance, performance related bonus,
and mandatory provident fund would be provided by the Group.

The adoption of a share option scheme was approved by the
shareholders meeting held on 20 May 2013. No new share
options were granted during the current year.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group adheres to environmental sustainability from office
throughout the property portfolio. As a responsible corporation,
the Group strives to ensure minimal environmental impacts
by carefully managing its energy consumption, water usage,
property design and waste production. In addition, we engaged
construction contractors with relevant licenses that was granted
by government authorities encompass environmental protection
and work safety. The Group has closely monitored the project at
every stage to ensure the project development and construction
process are in compliance with environmental protection and
safety laws and regulations, and would require construction
contractors to immediately resolve any defect or non-compliance,
where necessary. In addition, the Group strives to minimize the
environmental impact by saving electricity and encouraging
recycle of office supplies and other materials. For further details,
please refer to the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report.
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in mainland China while the Company itself is listed
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. The Group would make
professional judgement and seek professional legal advice from
its legal department and, where necessary, legal advisers to
ensure transactions and businesses to be performed by the
Group are in compliance with the applicable laws, regulations
and local industry practices in all material aspects.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH THE GROUP’S
EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group believes that the Directors, senior management and
employees are instrumental to the success of the Group and that
their industry knowledge and understanding of the market will
enable the Group to maintain the competitiveness in the market.
Therefore, the Group offered competitive remuneration package
to relevant staff. In addition, a Share Option Scheme was
adopted by the Company on 20 May 2013. At appropriate time,
option would be granted for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who can contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations.

The Group maintains good relationship with existing and potential
customers to understand the market trends that would enable
the Group to adjust its operating and marketing strategies timely,
which are crucial to the development and success of the Group.

The Group maintains a solid and steady relationship with major
contractors to ensure product quality and progress on-schedule.
The Group works and closely monitors daily construction work of
its contractors and settled their work done timely.

The Group places effort to build up and maintain good
relationships with various commercial banks and financial
institutions as the businesses of the Group are capital intensive
nature and require on-going funding to maintain continuous
growth.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

Details of the capital commitment is set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREBAEZEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. ZHANG Gao Bin — aged 39, is the Chairman of the board
of directors of the Company and the President of the Group.
Mr. Zhang is responsible for the overall strategic development,
general management, human resources and the business
operation of the Group. Mr. Zhang obtained his bachelor degree
in business administration from the University of Greenwich, the
United Kingdom. He has over ten years of experience in the
property development industry. Mr. Zhang joined the Board in

December 2016.

Mr. LUO Zhangguan — aged 34, is the executive director of the
Company as well as the general manager of finance of the PRC
responsible for business development and
daily management of finance department. Mr. Luo graduated

group companies,

from Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics and obtained a
bachelor degree in Economics with major in Finance (International
Finance). Mr. Luo joined department of business development of
Guangzhou branch of Standard Chartered Bank (China) Limited
in 2007 and served as its credit analyst, customer service
manager and department head of SME banking, successively.
Before joining the Company, he has served as the Sub-Branch
Manager of Standard Chartered Bank (China) Limited Guangzhou
Panyu sub-branch since 2012. Mr. Luo is the cousin of Mr.

Zhang Gao Bin. Mr. Luo joined the Group in April 2015.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. LO Wai Hung - aged 59, obtained a bachelor degree in
Commerce from James Cook University of North Queensland,
Australia. Mr. Lo is an associate member of Institute of
Chartered Accountants in Australia and a fellow member of
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lo is an
independent non-executive director of Shandong Weigao Group
Medical Polymer Company Limited (stock code: 1066) and C
Cheng Holdings Limited (stock code: 1486). Mr. Lo was an
independent non-executive director of LT Commercial Real Estate
Limited (stock code: 112) during March 2017 to November 2018.
All the aforementioned companies are listed on Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Lo was also an
independent director of China Merchant Property Development
Co. Ltd. (stock code: 24) since December 2011 and was until it
was delisted from Shenzhen Stock Exchange in December 2015.
Mr. Lo joined the Group in February 2011.

Mr. CHAN Chi Mong, Hopkins — aged 61, is the founder
member of the Institute of Leadership and Management, U.K..
Mr. Chan has over twenty years’ experiences in finance and
management. He served as the vice president and associate
director of Dean Witter Reynolds (H.K.) Ltd., and the executive
director of Silver Grant International Finance Ltd. Mr. Chan
was appointed as Justice of the Peace (JP) by the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region on 1 July 2015. He is the board
member of Criminal and Law Enforcement Injuries Compensation
Boards. He was an independent non-executive director of Pacific
Online Limited (stock code: 543) during May 2012 to October
2018. Mr. Chan joined the Group in January 2013.

Mr. MAK Yiu Tong - aged 60, graduated from the China
University of Political Science and Law with a bachelor of law
degree in 1998. Mr. Mak has extensive experience in litigation
and corporate matters. At present, he is legal executive of C.
K. Mok & Co., a firm of solicitors in Hong Kong. Mr. Mak has
been working in the law firm for over 28 years. Mr. Mak was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of Hao Tian
International Constructions Investment Group Limited (formerly
known as Clear Lift Holdings Limited) (Stock code: 1341) in
February 2017 and Fujian Nuogqi Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1353) in
April 2017. Mr. Mak joined the Group in December 2015.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREBAEZEE

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. LEE Wai Kuen - aged 45, is the Company Secretary
and Chief Financial Officer of the Company. He is responsible
for execution, supervision and advisory of financial reporting,
internal control, reorganisation, corporate governance and
company secretarial matters of the Company. Mr. Lee holds a
bachelor degree in accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
Mr. Lee had worked in an international firm of certified public
accountants and was the financial controller and company
secretary of TeleEye Holdings Ltd. (now known as CircuTech
International Holdings Limited) (stock code: 8051), the finance
manager and company secretary of ePRO Ltd. (now known as
Sino Vision Worldwide Holdings Limited) (stock code: 8086),
the financial controller of WLS Holdings Ltd. (stock code: 8021)
and deputy financial officer and company secretary of MOBI
Development Co., Ltd. (stock code: 947), during the periods
from May 2004 to June 2005, July 2005 to January 2006,
January 2006 to August 2007 and August 2007 to May 2011,
respectively, all of which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange. Mr. Lee joined the Group in May 2011.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is
committed to ensuring high standards of corporate governance
in the interests of shareholders and devotes effort to identifying
and formalising best practices. During the year ended 31
December 2018, the Company has applied the principles and the
code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code
(the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”) and has complied with the same.

THE BOARD

To protect and enhance shareholder value, the Board acts with
integrity and due care for the best interests of the Company
and its shareholders. The Board is collectively responsible for
leadership and for promoting the success of the Company
by directing and supervising its affairs. Leading the Group in
a responsible and effective manner, the Board adopts formal
terms of reference which detail its functions and responsibilities,
including, but not limited to, ensuring competent management,
approving objectives, strategies and business plans and
monitoring integrity in the Company’s conduct of affairs.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for determining the overall strategy and
corporate development and ensuring the business operations are
properly monitored. The Board reserves the right to decide all
policy matters of the Group and material transactions. The Board
delegates the day-to-day operations to general managers and
department heads who are responsible for different aspects of
the operations of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AN s
fl= E/D#&%

The attendance of individual Directors at meetings of the HE—-ZE—N\E+-_A=+—RHIFKFE
Company during the financial year ended 31 December 2018, fARIEERNAR T @H 2 HERWT ¢
was as follows:

Number of attendance*/meetings held in 2018
HERE R-B-N\FRIT2E8E
Annual
General
Audit Remuneration = Nomination Meeting
The Board Committee Committee Committee [
BExg EREEg FHZzES REZEE BEFEAE

Executive Directors #11TE%5

Mr. Zhang Gao Bin (Chairman of the Board)** 5/6 N/A 11 1/1 11
ReBLE (EFRFE)™ PiE A
Mr. Luo Zhangguan™* 6/6 N/A 1/1 1/1 1/1
BEEWRE T

Independent non-executive Directors

BYFHTES

Mr. Lo Wai Hung** 4/6 3/3 11 11 11

ERETE

Mr. Chan Chi Mong, Hopkins** 4/6 3/3 1/1 11 1/1

bRz B

Mr. Mak Yiu Tong** 4/6 3/3 11 1/1 11

BRERE"

* The Directors can attend meetings in person, by phone or  * EFNHEIFEHE BERNAT 2HBMSIE
through other means of electronic communication in accordance NEZFSAEMEFBAAR2NE:E -

with the Company’s Articles of Association.

> During the year ended 31 December 2018, each of these  ** BE-_E—-N\F+-_A=1+—HIEE &
Directors participated in seminars and conferences as well EFLbTwne ez HERE YL
as reading newspapers, journals and updates relating to the BRAKE HEEK BEHENZKTENN
economy, general business, real estate or Directors’ duties and BTEERESE AEENEBELENESH
responsibilities, etc. The Group also continuously updates the TR EREMERES R TN SR
Directors on the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules &

and other applicable regulatory requirements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Currently, the Company does not appoint chief executive officer.
In view of the operation of the Group, the Board believes that the
present structure of the Board will provide a strong leadership
for the Group to implement prompt decisions and to formulate
efficient strategies, which is for benefits of the Group.

Moreover, the day-to-day operation of the Group’s businesses
are shared among those executive directors and the
management of the Company. Therefore, there should be
a clear division of the responsibilities at the board level to
ensure a balance of power and authority, so that power is not
concentrated in any one individual.

Together with a balanced of skill and experience for the
business of the Group, a balanced composition of executive and
independent non-executive director of the Board shall exercise
effective independent judgment. Currently, the Board comprises
of five directors, of which two are executive directors, namely Mr.
Zhang Gao Bin (“Mr. Zhang”) and Mr. Luo Zhangguan (“Mr. Luo”)
and three independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Lo
Wai Hung (“Mr. Lo”), Mr. Chan Chi Mong, Hopkins (“Mr. Chan”)
and Mr. Mak Yiu Tong (“Mr. Mak”).

As at 31 December 2018, all the independent non-executive
directors were appointed for a term of two years and subject to
retirement and re-election in accordance with the bye-laws of
the Company. In accordance with the bye-laws of the Company,
at each annual general meeting of the Company one-third of the
directors shall retire from office by rotation. The Board considers
that sufficient measures will be taken to ensure the corporate
governance practices of the Company are not less exacting than
those in the Code A4.1 and 4.2.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive directors are
independent.

The management is obliged to supply the Board with adequate
information in a timely manner to enable the members to
make informed decisions and to discharge their duties and
responsibilities. Each director has separate and independent
access to the Group’s senior management to acquire more
information and to make further enquiries if necessary.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Board and
the Company’s affairs. All Board committees are established
with defined written terms of reference which are available to
shareholders on the Company’s website. The Board committees
are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties
and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

A nomination committee of the Company had been established
by the Board with written terms of reference. The nomination
committee comprises two executive directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. The nomination committee
is chaired by Mr. Zhang. The principal duties of the Nomination
Committee include, but are not limited to, review and making
recommendations to the Board on the structure, size and
composition of the Board; making recommendations to the Board
regarding any proposed changes;
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals

identify, selection or making

nominated for directorships; assessing the independence of
independent non-executive directors and relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for directors.

The Board adopted a board diversity policy setting out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. Pursuant to the
board diversity policy, the Nomination Committee will review
annually the structure, size and composition of the Board and
where appropriate, make recommendations on changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy and
to ensure that the Board maintains a balanced diverse profile.
A number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, industry experience,
technical and professional experience, skills and knowledge,
length of services and time to be devoted as a director of
the Company, would be considered to ensure that the Board
maintains a balanced diverse profile.
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The Company has also adopted a nomination policy, setting out
the approach for nominating and appointing a director either
to fill a casual vacancy on the Board, or as an addition to the
existing Board subject to the Bye-Law of the Company. Selection
of candidates will be based on criteria including character,
qualifications, any potential contributions that the candidate
can bring to the Board and its diversity and the candidate’s
willingness and ability to devote adequate time to discharge his/
her duties. Upon receipt of the proposal on appointment of a
new director and respective biographical information and details
of the candidate by any members of Nomination Committee, the
Nomination Committee will evaluate such candidate based on the
criteria as set out above to determine whether such candidate is
qualified for directorship.

During the year, the Nomination Committee met once to assess
the independence of the retiring independent non-executive
directors, recommend the re-appointment of directors at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, update and review the
Board Diversity Policy to ensure that it aligns with the Listing
Rules.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A remuneration committee of the Company had been
established by the Board with written terms of reference. The
remuneration committee comprises two executive directors and
three independent non-executive Directors. The remuneration
committee is chaired by Mr. Chan. The remuneration committee
is responsible for assisting the Board in achieving its objective
of attracting and retaining Directors and senior management
of the highest caliber and experience needed to develop the
Group’s business successfully. The remuneration committee is
also responsible for the development of a fair and transparent
procedure in determining the remuneration policies for the
Directors and senior management of the Company and for
recommendation to their remuneration packages. During the year
ended 31 December 2018, the Remuneration Committee met
once to review the above matters.

All employees are remunerated based on industry practice and
in accordance with the prevailing labour law. In Hong Kong,
apart from basic salary, staff benefits include medical insurance,
performance related bonus and mandatory provident fund would
be provided by the Group.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors (the “Audit Committee”) and reports to the board of
directors. A written terms of reference had been established.
The committee members performed their duties therein which
includes duties set out in the code provision C.3.3 (a) to (n)
of the Corporate Governance Code. The Audit Committee
held three meetings in 2018 and reviewed the Group’s annual
results for 2017 and interim results for 2018; reviewed the audit
plans and findings of the external independent auditor; made
recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment of the
external auditor and its remuneration; and reviewed the risk
management and internal control systems and financial matters
pursuant to its terms of reference. The Audit Committee meets
the external independent auditor at least once a year to discuss
any areas of concerns during the audits without the presence of
the management. The annual report for the year ended 2018 of
the Company has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board is responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements of the Company and the Group. In preparing the
financial statements, the Board has adopted Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants that are relevant to its operations.

The Board was not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that might cast significant doubt upon the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, the Board has
prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the fees paid/payable
to the auditor of the Company in respect of the audit services
and non audit services in 2018 were amounted to approximately
RMBO0.8 million and RMBO0.4 million respectively.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is responsible for determining and reviewing the
policies and performance for the corporate governance for the
Group. During the year, the management of the Company from
time to time reported to the Board for their review on various
policies and practices about corporate governance of the
Company, which included training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management, Company’s
policies and practices on compliance of legal & regulatory
requirements and conduct of employees. In addition, the
corporate governance report together with other content of the
annual report was circulated for review and approval by the
Board.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board has the responsibility to maintain appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems in order
to safeguard the interest of the Group and the Shareholders. The
Board conducted review and assessment of the effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
and procedures during the financial year ended 31 December
2018 by way of discussions among themselves and with the
management of the Group, members of the Audit Committee
and the external independent auditor. The risk management and
internal control systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

During the financial year, an external consultant has been
engaged to maintain the internal audit function for the Group to
assist the Board and the Audit Committee in ongoing monitoring
of the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group. The external consultant discussed with the executive
directors and senior management of the Group to identify key
business risks across the Group, and has adopted a risk-
based approach in developing the annual internal audit plan
with a focus on higher risk areas. Internal audit review was then
conducted in accordance with the annual internal audit plan. All
findings and recommendations on internal control deficiencies
for the year had been communicated to the management who
are required to establish remedial plans to correct those internal
control deficiencies and implement agreed action plans within
a reasonable time period. The Board and the Audit Committee
had reviewed the risk assessment results, internal audit planning
and internal audit reports submitted by the external consultant.
In respect of the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board
considered the risk management and internal control systems
are effective and adequate.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary plays an important role in supporting the
Board by ensuring good information flow within the Board and
that Board policy and procedures are followed. The Company
Secretary is responsible for advising the Board through the
Chairman and/or the executive directors on governance matters
and should also facilitate induction and professional development
of Directors. Details of the Company’s company secretary are set
out in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” of this report.

The Company Secretary took not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training in the year ended 31 December 2018 as
required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company may distribute dividends by way of cash or by
other means that the Board considers appropriate. Any proposed
distribution of dividends is subject to the discretion of the
Board and, where applicable, the approval of the Shareholders.
The Board will consider various factors before declaring or
recommending any payment of dividends. These factors include
the results of operation of the business of the Group, the retained
earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and each
of the members of the Group, the Group’s actual and expected
financial performance, the general business conditions and
strategies, the Group’s expected working capital requirements
and future expansion plans, the general economic conditions and
the future prospects of the business of the Group, shareholders’
interests, statutory and regulatory restrictions on the payment
of dividend and other internal or external factors that the Board
deems appropriate. The Board will review, from time to time, and
reserves the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update
and/or modify the dividend policy of the Company at any time.
There is no assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular
amount for any given period.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDER
AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes in regular and timely communication
with shareholders as part of its efforts to help shareholders
understand its business better and the way the Company
operates. To promote effective communication with the public at
large, the Company maintains a website (http://www.760hk.com)
on which comprehensive information about the Company’s major
businesses, financial information and announcements, annual
and interim reports and shareholders circulars are being made
available.

All shareholders of the Company are given at least 20 clear
business days’ notice of the date and venue of the annual
general meeting. According to the Listing Rules, the Board will
conduct voting at the forthcoming annual general meeting by
vote.

SHAREHOLDER'’S RIGHT

Shareholder’s right to convene special general
meeting and procedures for putting forward
proposals at shareholders’ meeting

By-law 58 of the Company’s bye-laws provides that any
shareholder holding not less than 10% of the paid-up capital
of the Company can deposit a requisition to the principal place
of business of the Company in Hong Kong to require a special
general meeting to be called by the Board.

The Requisitionist(s) shall have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary of the Company, to
require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the Requisitionist(s) themselves may do so in accordance with
the provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda, as amended from time to time.
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Putting enquiries to the Board

Information of the Group are communicated to the shareholders
mainly through general meetings, including annual general
meetings, financial reports, and its corporate communications
and other corporate publications on the Company’s website and
the Stock Exchange’s website. Shareholders may at any time
make a request for the Company’s information to the extent that
such information is publicly available. Any such questions shall

be first directed to the Company Secretary of the Company:

By post

Unit A704

3rd Floor, Tower A, New Mandarin Plaza
No. 14 Science Museum Road

Tsim Sha Tsui East

Hong Kong

By email
ir@760hk.com

Shareholders may also directly raise questions during the
shareholders’ meetings.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules for directors’ securities
transactions. Having make specific enquiries of all directors
of the Company, they have confirmed that they complied with
required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the
accounting period covered by the annual report.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There were no changes in the constitutional document of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2018.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

OVERVIEW AND SCOPE

Pursuant to Appendix 27 (the “Guide”) of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), Talent Property Group Limited
(the “Company”), together with its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group” or “we”), hereby presents this Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG”) Report to disclose ESG related matters that
are relevant to the Group’s business and have material impacts
on the environment and society for the year ended 31 December
2018 (the “reporting period”). Unless otherwise stated, the
reporting period is from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018.

As a responsible corporate citizen, we are committed to
contributing to sustainable development and environmental
protection. The Board of Directors (the “Board”) is responsible
for overseeing the Group’s ESG strategy and reporting. An
ESG working group, which comprises management personnel
across the Group, has been set up to monitor and manage the
Group’s ESG matters and report directly to the Board on any
significant issues. The Group has also established an ESG policy,
infrastructure and framework to govern relevant ESG practices
and processes.

The Board has assessed the materiality of key ESG issues
associated with the business and operations of the Group
during the reporting period, and prioritized the importance of
these issues to the business and relevant stakeholders, so as
to determine the scope and content of disclosure in this ESG
Report. Based on the assessment result, the Group has decided
to include in this report ESG matters that are relevant to the
Group’s property investment, development and management
business, and disclose them in two subject areas, namely
Environmental and Social.
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A.

1

ENVIRONMENTAL

The Group strives to minimize adverse impacts on
the environment by adopting environmental protection
practices over energy consumption, use of resources
and waste production. As compared to the previous
reporting period, the Group has recorded an increase in
emissions and use of resources in the reporting period
due to the inclusion of the data for the business activities
of Guangzhou Guoyou Logistics Co., Ltd." (BN B &%
BRR2AF]), Yangzhou Shiyou Logistics Development Co.,
Ltd." (BN E 7k R AR A F]), and Xuzhou Shiyou
Logistics Development Co., Ltd.". (R/NtEEBYRERSE
R A 7)) for development projects of logistics parks in
Yangzhou City and Xuzhou City commenced in 2018.

A1. Emissions

The Group has established a mechanism to collect
emission data and to evaluate the significance
of the environmental impacts brought by its
operations. The Group does not produce any
significant hazardous waste and has limited
emissions which are primarily generated from the
consumption of electricity, paper and petrol during
its daily sales and office administration activities.
Relevant Environmental Key Performance Indicators
(“KPIs”) in connection to our property investment,
development and management business during the
reporting period are disclosed below:

These Companies’ English names have not been registered,
these names represent management’s best effort in translation of
the Chinese names.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIE - HERERBWMS

A. ENVIRONMENTAL (continued) A, BB ()
A1. Emissions (continued) Al. Ry (&)
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—+F
Air Pollutants Emissions (Note 1, 2)
ZRITRWEER (Kt 2)
Nitrogen oxides (“NO\”) 8,176 g 2,401 g
AEfh ([R&im]) 8,176 A% 2,401 A%
Sulphur oxides (“SO,”) 180 g 68 g
maty ([matywl) 1802 %% B8 AT
Particulate matters (“PM”) 602 g 177 9
faky ([FER9 ) 60225 177352

Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emissions
BERE (BERE ] #K
Direct emission of GHG

BERBEEIN

N/A (Note 2)  N/A (Note 2)
NER (KfE2) TER (Hiz2)

Indirect emission of Carbon dioxide equivalent (“CO.e”) (Note 3) 98,990 kg 32,158 kg
—“afemEeE (Z8mEE]) MEYR (K:23) 98,9902 fr 82,158/
CO.e per employee 432 kg 167 kg
per employee per employee
BlUuEREM —EiRES BuREE BEE
4321 fr 167 R T
Non-hazardous Waste Produced (Note 4)
FREEWNFERIEY (MZ4)
Paper waste disposed at landfills 792 kg 428 kg
ZEFHHEENER 792AFF 428N fT
Waste disposed per employee 3 kg 2 kg
per employee per employee
BEEEENEY BURE3AT BfIEEB2AT
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RIE - HERERWS

A.

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

A1l.

Emissions (continued)

Notes:

1. The Group does not engage in activities that:
> Consume gaseous fuel;
> Directly generate GHG; or
> Generate hazardous wastes.

2. Air pollutants emissions are generated from petrol
consumption by the Group’s four private vehicles
that are used for employee transportation.

3. The Group’s indirect CO2e emissions stem from
electricity consumption and disposal of paper
waste in the office and sales locations.

4. The Group engaged qualified construction

contractors to manage the property development
projects. Non-hazardous waste produced during
property development activities is collected,
treated and disposed by construction contractors.
These wastes are not directly incurred and
controlled by the Group and thus excluded
from the Group’s environmental data. With
consideration of limited paper waste volume, the
Group disposes of the waste to landfills through
the waste disposal channel managed by the
building’s management service provider.

Emissions and waste produced at property
development construction sites are managed
by the construction contractors as stipulated
on the agreements with the contractors. Having
considered the environmental impact of the
contractors’ operations, management has
required the construction contractors to comply
with relevant laws and regulations. During the
reporting period, there were no incidences of
non-compliance with Environmental Protection
Law and Regulations on the Administration of
Construction Project Environmental Protection of
the People’s Republic of China and other relevant
laws and regulations with significant impact on the
environment and natural resources relating to air
and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into
water and land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes.
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A.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

A2,

Use of Resources

The Group does not engage in resources or energy
intensive business activities. Energy consumed
by the Group are mainly electricity and petrol.
Water usage for the Group’s daily sales and office
administration activities is minimal where both
water supply and discharge are solely controlled
by the building management. No issues in water
sourcing were encountered during the reporting
period. In addition, the Group does not involve
directly in the use/purchase of packaging materials.
Relevant Environmental KPIs in connection with our
business during the reporting period are disclosed
below:

RIE - HERERBWMS

RIE (8

A2. BRER
AEEYEN TSR AR E
HETED - AEEFTEEOL
BREEAENRAM - REER
BERPDETHOE S AKE
D KEE R BT R T
BB o RIS IR - WiE
FRK OB R o bbb - AEE
PEEESROEMENER
I - NIRS IR AERME
BRI R R R B
T

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF

Energy Consumption

BEIRUH #E

Direct energy consumption from
petrol fuel consumed

REFTER TR O B ERE R

Indirect energy consumption from
electricity purchased

REAFESENNEERLRERE

Energy consumption per employee

BlulE 8MEERER

116,478 kWh 44,177 kKWh

116,478 F LB 44,177 TR
180,585 kWh 57,113 kWh

180,585 T FBF 57,113 F F B

1,297 kWh 528 kWh
per employee per employee
BuES BlEE

1,297 T BB 528 F FL B
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I&iﬁ $ié& ksAﬂF&m

A.

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

A3.

The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group’s business has no direct and significant
impacts on the environment and natural resources.
The ESG working group regularly assesses the
environmental risk exposure of the Group. Should
there be any subsequent changes to the relevant
the ESG
working group will report such changes to the

legislation or the Group’s operation,

Board and adopt additional measures, if necessary,
to minimize the Group’s impact on the environment
and natural resources.

We have implemented a number of eco-friendly
initiatives to promote efficient use of resources and
energy conservation:

> Switch off lights during lunch hours;

> Set air-conditioning at an optimal
temperature;

> Pre-set the printers to two-sided printing

mode, and post paper-saving reminders
near photocopy machines; and

> Promote reuse and recycle of paper by
placing recycling boxes in the office.

In the future we will continuously adopt the above
or other additional eco-friendly measures with the
aim to maintain a reasonable level of, or further
reduce, the emissions, electricity consumed and
paper waste produced during the operations of
the Group’s property investment and management
business.
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RIE - HERERBWMS

SOCIAL

Employment and Labour Practices

B1.

B2.

Employment

The Group is committed to complying with relevant
labour standards and employment laws and
regulations which are applicable to our business.
The Group has developed comprehensive human
resources policies and guidelines to govern
staff recruitment, compensation, promotion and
dismissal processes, and employees’ working
hours and rest periods. The Group also endeavours
to provide equal opportunities throughout
recruitment and employment and to combat all
forms of discrimination in workplace. During the
reporting period, there were no incidences of
non-compliance with Labor Law of the People’s
Republic of China and other relevant laws and
regulations that have imposed a significant impact
on employment and labour practices.

Health and Safety

The Group strives to provide a healthy and safe
workplace for its employees in all locations.
Safety guidelines are stipulated in the Employee
Handbook, which is distributed to all employees.
During the reporting period, the Group was in
compliance with Work Safety Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Prevention and Control of Occupational
Diseases, and other relevant laws and regulations
relating to the provision of a safe working
environment and protection of employees from
occupational hazards which are applicable to the
Group’s business. No severe injury or fatality was
reported throughout the reporting period.

e

BRENSTER

B1.

B2.

1E1E
REERNETHARRMER
WIS TER RIERERERE
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BENiES - BEBEITHE @
B BALBERFUALEET
e KB o AEB IR
RERERAMRERSHS -
IWIE B TYERER A AR -
R EERE SEEEAERE
AREFMBESEH EZNTERE
B TEZLHERREIEY
BREAFENEMAREER
ERTEHER -
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B.

SOCIAL (continued)
Employment and Labour Practices (continued)

B3.

B4.

Development and Training

The Group places great emphasis in developing
our employees and providing both internal and
external staff training to enhance their knowledge
and skills. The Group has developed a Training
Policy to govern training related matters. Each year,
management prepares a Training Budget to allocate
sufficient resources for staff development based on
the results of Training Requirement Survey.

Labour Standards

The Group is committed to complying with Labor
Law of the People’s Republic of China and other
labour standards relevant to the Group’s business.
The Group has established a policy to prohibit child
and forced labour. Management has also taken
reasonable and necessary steps in the recruitment
process to ensure that there are no deviations from
the Group policy and objectives.

Operating Practices

B5.

Supply Chain Management

The Group has established a contract policy and
corresponding evaluation procedures to govern
the selection of suppliers and construction
contractors. To ensure product and service quality,
and to manage environmental and social risks in
supply chain, the Group only engages suppliers
and construction contractors with licenses that
are granted by relevant regulators or government
authorities. The obligations of suppliers and
contractors with respect to environmental
protection and compliance with relevant safety
laws and regulations are clearly stated in signed
contracts.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B. SOCIAL (continued)
Operating Practices (continued)

B6.

B7.

Product Responsibility

The Group recognizes the importance of health and
safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
related to products and services provided by the
Group. The Group has established relevant policies
to ensure compliance with applicable laws and
regulations and to fulfil its corporate responsibility
towards the customers.

The Group closely monitors the development
projects at every stage to ensure that project
development, construction process and product
quality are in compliance with Construction Law of
the People’s Republic of China and other applicable
laws and regulations, and requires construction
contractors to immediately resolve any defects or
non-compliance incidences, where necessary. The
Group has entered into contracts with construction
contractors to obtain indemnity agreements and
their commitment to carry out operational and
quality assurance activities, and to comply with
regulatory requirements. The Group has also
established property acceptance procedures to
ensure that the properties are ready for delivery to
our customers in pursuant to the sales agreements.

Anti-corruption

The Group strives to create a corporate culture
that embraces integrity, honesty and fairness, and
is committed to conducting its business in the
absence of any undue influences. Requirements
and guidelines relating to the prevention of
bribery, extortion and fraud are stipulated in the
Employee Handbook and other relevant ethics-
related internal policies so as to communicate the
Group’s requirements and to provide guidance to
employees in carrying out business and operational
duties. The Employee Handbook and internal
policies are subject to periodic review, and updates
are made, when necessary, to ensure that they
are in line with the latest development of Criminal
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Law
of the People’s Republic of China for Countering
Unfair Competition and other applicable laws and
regulations.
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RIB - HERERBE

B. SOCIAL (continued) B. #€ (©®)

Community HE

B8. Community Investment B8. {ttlERE
The Group has taken the communities’ interests
into consideration when conducting business. It is ARBERETRBRE ML EF
of our great desire to minimize the negative impact mAABRE - RAIEEHRFIE
of our operational activities to the community. HEDHLCRNAEYERER
All employees are encouraged to participate in K- ®RMEmmEEI2EER
community activities and charitable activities as EPHREEFHARRMEE -

contribution to society.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Directors are pleased to present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Details of the
principal activities of the principal subsidiaries and associate
are set out in notes 16 and 17 to the consolidated financial
statements. Its subsidiaries are principally engaged in property
development, investment and management in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group’s business, an indication of likely
future development in the Group’s business and an analysis
using financial key performance indicators are provided in
the “Chairman’s Statement” and the “Business and Financial
Review”, respectively, from pages 4 to 8 and pages 9 to 19
of this Annual Report. A description of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group, a discussion on the Group’s
environmental policies and performance and an account of the
Group’s key relationships with its stakeholders are stated therein.
The above discussions form part of the Report of the Directors.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, the Group sold 34% of its goods and
services to its five largest customers in its continuing operation.
Sales to the largest customer represents 9.6% of the total sales.
Whereas, purchases of the Group’s five largest suppliers and
contractors accounted for 69.5% (2017: 63.6%) of the total
purchases for the year and purchases from the largest supplier
and contractor included therein amounted to 37.0% (2017:
27.1%) of the total purchases.

As far as the directors are aware, neither the directors, their
associates (as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”)) nor those shareholders (which, to the knowledge
of the directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had any interest in the Group’s five largest
customers or suppliers or contractors.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EETHRES

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018
and the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that
date are set out in the consolidated financial statement on pages
62 to 63.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2018.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 69 to 70 and note 43
to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

SUBSTANTIAL INVESTMENTS AND
ACQUISITIONS

On 29 December 2018, the Group successfully bid for the land use
rights to a parcel of land with a site area of approximately 247,000
98 $#A), in-between
Guihuazhi Road* (#82]7#%), Yangtze Riverside Expressway Auxiliary
Road* (HIESEAAKEL), Renmin Road* (ARE) and Zhuhe*
(E 7)) in Yangzhou City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC through

square meters located in Shatou Town* (%

listing-for-sale organized and held by Yangzhou City Land
Resources Bureau at the land grant price of RMB326.4 million.
The acquisition constitutes a major transaction for the Company
under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules and is regarded as a
“Qualified Property Acquisition” under Rule 14.04(10C) of the
Listing Rules. Further details of the acquisition are disclosed
in the announcement and circular of the Company dated 20
December 2018 and 22 February 2019, respectively.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements during the year in the share options and
share capital of the Company are set out in notes 31 and 32 to
the consolidated financial statements.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements during the year in the investment
properties and plant and equipment of the Group are set out
in notes 14 and 15 respectively to the consolidated financial
statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2018
are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Consolidated Results

EXEWRES
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mEXA
Year ended 31 December
BE+-AZ+-HLEE

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

—E-N\F T—+F ZE-RE ZE-HF —T@OF

RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000

ARMFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT

Revenue Yezs 278,668 727,015 506,764 365,990 375,924
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETERATET

(B#E) 101,397 188,410 (54,966)  (191,435) (18,900)

Income tax (expense)/credit FTisE (AX),/ K& (40,510)  (129,995) (18,745) 76,309 36,628

Profit/(loss) for the year FERHM /(B1B) 60,887 58,415 (73,711)  (115,126) 17,728

Attributable to: THALERN

Owners of the Company VN/NGIE DN 69,625 63,667 (73,711)  (115,125) 17,728

Non-controlling interests RS (8,738) (5,252) - ) -

60,887 58,415 (73,711) (115,126 17,728
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EXEWRES

Consolidated Assets, Equity and Liabilities

REEE EERES

As at 31 December

W+=B=+-H

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E-N\E —T+F —ZT-RE —ZT-HF —TNOF
RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB'000
ANREFT ANREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT

ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,266,364 1,264,218 1249309 1,537,630 1,460,292
Current assets REAE 2,353,925 2,033,492 2,387,501 1,973,655 2,432,955
3,620,289 3,297,710 3,636,810 3,511,285 3,893,247

LIABILITIES &%
Current liabilities TEAaR 1,423,477 1,156,509 1,400,458 2,829,354 3,278,537
Non-current liabilities EnBaE 232,723 246,628 406,766 497,268 392,719
1,656,200 1,403,137 1,807,224 3,326,622 3,671,256

EQUITY R

Attributable to: THIALER
Owners of the Company V/NCIE Y =DN 1,947,888 1,874,634 1,809,395 164,472 201,799
Non-controlling interests R = 16,201 19,939 20,191 20,191 20,192
Total Equity B 1,964,089 1,894,573 1,829,586 184,663 221,991
DIRECTORS EE

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. ZHANG Gao Bin (Chairman)
Mr. LUO Zhangguan

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. LO Wai Hung
Mr. CHAN Chi Mong, Hopkins
Mr. MAK Yiu Tong

In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws, all of the directors
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election. Mr. Lo Wai
Hung and Mr. Mak Yiu Tong will retire by rotation and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 20 to 22
of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of independent non-executive directors, had entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of two years and
each of these contracts is subject to termination by either party
giving not less than 1 month’s written notice.

Apart from the foregoing, no director proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract, which is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws, every Director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or
incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/her office
or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has arranged
appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for
the Directors and officers of the Group throughout the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the directors or the management shareholders of the
Company or any of their respective associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) had any business which was considered to
compete or was likely to compete with the businesses of the
Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EETHRES

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts other than employment contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2018, the interest or short position of the
Directors and chief executives in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQO”)) which would have to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of SFO), or which were required to be and are recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:
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Percentage of the

Capacity/ Company'’s issued
Name of director Nature of interest Number of shares share capital
HAQRE BT
EEHR B REntE idvip 4= | RAEABDL
Zhang Gao Bin Personal 108,860,000 1.06%
SR=E fEA
Interest in controlled corporation 6,484,393,939 63.00%
REEREE R
Mak Yiu Tong Personal 150,000 0.00%
ERE (EPN
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EETHRES

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ FERERAQTR 7K EERSG
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE ZHEZREAR

SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF

THE COMPANY

So far as is known to the Directors or chief executives of the EARREZEFHITHRAHMA  R_T—N\F
Company, as at 31 December 2018, the interests or short +-A=+—H ' TERER (KR AIEHKT
positions of substantial shareholders (other than Directors or the  TNA2& BN MARATIRMH S EERDEB R
chief executives of the Company) in the shares or underlying 1E&E 5 M EIEEHIEXVELE2 K30 Sf & AR
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the ARQATEEHNANATRIBEE L RIS KNS
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of 336{ERTEAFE y B ME sy g s
SFO or were recorded in the register required to be kept by the  #AR :

Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Percentage of

Number of the Company’s
underlying issued
Name Note shares interest share capital
HAERABE BT
=18 Htat HERDEZHE BAT D
Talent Trend Holdings Limited 1 6,484,393,939 63.00%
Notes: WIE -
(1) The entire issued share capital of Talent Trend Holdings Limited is (1) Talent Ir(\and Holdirlgs Limitedi%ﬂ??é??%
directly, beneficially and wholly owned by Mr. Zhang Gao Bin. AHRRALEEE BaR2EAHA -
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EETHRES

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Share option scheme of the Company was adopted on 20
May 2013 for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to Participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Particulars of the scheme are set out in note 30 to
the consolidated financial statements. The maximum number
of unexercised share options currently permitted to be granted
under the Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise,
to 10% of the shares of the company in issue at any time. As at
30 March 2019, the number of shares of the Company available
for issue in respect thereof was 1,029,313,655, representing
10% of the issued shares of the Company. In addition, save as
determined at the discretion of the Board, there is no minimum
holding period before an Option is exercisable. No options were
granted, exercised, cancelled, lapsed or remained outstanding
during the year ended 31 December 2018.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option
Scheme”, no equity linked agreements were entered into during
the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws and there is no restriction against such
rights under the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing
shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of shares or other
securities of the Company by the Company or its subsidiaries
during the year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

Save as the related party transactions as set out in note 40
to the consolidated financial statements which were fully
exempt from the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and the acquisition of equity
interest in a project company in Yingtan where such acquisition
was subsequently terminated (details are disclosed in the
announcements of the Company dated 25 July 2018 and 31
August 2018), the Group did not enter into any other connected
or continuing connected transactions during the financial year
ended 31 December 2018.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s Corporate Governance Report is set out on
pages 23 to 32 of the annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
FROM INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive directors are
independent.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules, based on the
information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Company’s directors.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s shares.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EETHRES

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining shareholders of the Company
who are entitled to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual
general meeting to be held on 3 June 2019, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from 29 May 2019 to 3
June 2019, both days inclusive. In order to qualify for attending
and voting at the annual general meeting, all transfer documents
should be lodged for registration with Company’s Hong Kong
branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at 17M Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 28
May 2019.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be tabled in the forthcoming annual general
meeting to re-appoint Messrs. CHENG & CHENG LIMITED as
auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Zhang Gao Bin

Chairman

Hong Kong, PRC, 30 March 2019

HRESRERRQE 2018F F#H

TEnREROGBFERFE
REEARAAFBRREBLEEER_ZE—NEX
A=BRTHRFBEFASIRE LEE K
RABEZZTE—NEFRAZTNAHE=ZZ—N
FARA=ZH (BREEEMA) GEHERMDA
FPERFE ATEEREERRBFREYW
RELERE - MERGBAPXHETER T
—NERAAZ+NABTFOARB=FT28] » &R
RKABINBEERMDBEERLRDETRBELRER
BRAR - it BREBEFEFRBRI183W
ARMALITMIE ©

BB

EREESSe M EBMAERARASRNAT
ZHE 2 RBR R BN EEBIRBERERE -

REEFS

e

REE

PEEE —E-NF=A=1+H



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

CHENG & CHENG LIMITED
@ CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
wmom g F MOF OB A N A H

10/F., Allied Kajima Building,
138 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

To the Shareholders of Talent Property Group Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Talent
Property Group Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(“the Group”) set out on pages 62 to 212, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2018, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting

policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2018 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BUZHBEMKREE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Valuation of investment properties

The key audit matter

BRRFXSEE
FRREZFASRBEESNEXRAEF  BR
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As at 31 December 2018, the fair value of investment properties
of the Group was RMB704,000,000.

Significant estimation and judgement are required by
management of the Group to determine the fair value of the
investment properties. To support the fair value determined by
the management of the Group, the Group engaged an external
valuer to perform valuations on the investment properties at the
end of the reporting period.

The accounting policies and disclosures for the estimation of fair
value of investment properties are included in notes 2, 4 and 14.

How the matter was addressed in our audit
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We evaluated the objectivity, independence and competency of
the valuer.

We compared inputs to the valuation model, on a sample basis,
with the Group’s records, which included underlying lease
agreements and documentation, details of number of property
units held for investment purposes and current rents.

We discussed with the external valuer regarding the
reasonableness of methodology and key assumptions being
used in the fair value exercise.

We performed site visits accompanied by the management of the

Group for investment properties which enabled us to assess the
status of occupancy rate.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Net realisable value assessment of the Group’s
properties under development and completed
properties held for sale

The key audit matter

BB R E S
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BEEXER

As at 31 December 2018, the Group held properties under
development and completed properties held for sale amounted
to RMB1,860,035,000 and RMB288,038,000 respectively, net
of reversal of impairment loss of properties under development
RMB81,518,000 recognised during the year ended 31 December
2018, as disclosed in notes 19 and 20 respectively to the
consolidated financial statements.

The estimation of the net realisable values (“NRV”) of properties
under development and completed properties held for sale
required the management of the Group to estimate the selling
prices based on prevailing market conditions, less costs to
complete and sell the properties. Given that the Group had
significant amounts of properties under development and
completed properties held for sale and that the management’s
determination of the NRV required the management of the Group
to exercise significant judgment, we concluded that the NRV
assessment as one of the key audit matter.

How the matter was addressed in our audit
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We noted that the management of the Group had engaged
an independent valuer to determine the current market values
of the completed properties held for sale and properties with
significant construction work completed, in order to perform
the NRV assessment. We assessed the valuer’s independence,
qualifications and expertise and read their terms of engagement
with the Group to determine whether there were any matters that
might have affected their objectivity or whether there were scope
limitations imposed upon their work.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BUZHBEMKREE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

FEREZEIE (&)
EERERENAEERREEREE

We discussed with the valuer the methodology and assumptions
used in determining the market values of the properties.
Specifically, with regard to completed properties held for sale, we
sample-checked the estimated market values of properties used
by the valuer to the actual selling prices of comparable properties
in the similar location near the end of the reporting period and
determined whether there was any significant variance. With
regard to the properties under development, we discussed with
the management of the Group and the valuer how they arrived
at the estimated percentage of completion, the estimated selling
prices when they are completed and the estimated costs to
complete, and checked to the sourced data on a sample basis.
Further, we compared the market values determined by the
valuer with the carrying amount of the properties recorded in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements to see whether
adequate impairment had been made.

For the properties under development with only minimal
construction work has been performed, we discussed with
the management of the Group how they assess the NRV
and compared the carrying value of such properties under
development to the recent bidding prices for land and properties
nearby and assess whether adequate impairment, if any, had
been made.

Interests in an associate

The key audit matter
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As set out in note 17 to the Group’s consolidated financial
statements, the Group had a 30% equity investment in an
associate which had been accounted for using the equity
method. As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s interest in the
associate amounted to RMB501,515,000. The Group’s share of
the associate’s profit after tax for the year ended 31 December
2018 was RMB23,119,000.

The associate is a property developer in Guangzhou, the
PRC. As at 31 December 2018, the associate had completed
properties held for sale, amounted to RMB748,714,000, that
were required to be carried at the lower of cost and NRV
in accordance with the Group’s policy. Given that the NRV
estimation required a significant management judgment and
that completed properties held for sale represented significant
components of the associate’s net assets, we concluded that
the NRV assessment of the associate’s completed properties
held for sale was one of the key audit matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BB R E S
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We were not the statutory auditor of the financial statements
of the associate. We performed audit on material items of the
associate.

We discussed with the management of the Group for the
performance of the associate and how the associate prepared
the financial statements, in particular, whether the accounting
policies used by the associate in preparing its financial
statements were in line with the Group’s policies. With regard
to the associate’s completed properties held for sale, we had
performed site visits to certain properties site. Further, we had
compared the carrying amount of the properties stated in the
associate’s financial statements with the latest selling prices of

the properties.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to

be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BUZHBEMKREE

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BUZHBEMKREE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify your opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the Group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZHEMREF

RBORERGESHBERRNEM

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL (&)

STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, EEZEWEBHZEE B BNSIESD » REHHL
we determine those matters that were of most significance FEEYH AHGEEMEREANERIIERAS
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the E - EMEKBREZEE - BRIEEREIER
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We FAFAFEBRNLEEE IR BEEANER
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or N BERABRBEHNHEEEAAEEANTR
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter of when, & R # B A R AR FHEHFIZE M A ER
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter REFIWE - BB SN2 BED RS 3 3 i
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse L5518 o

consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

CHENG & CHENG LIMITED
Certified Public Accountants (Practising)
Hong Kong, 30 March 2019

Ho Wan Nei
Practising Certificate number P06991
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
RERBEREMEEKARRE

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

2018 2017
—EBE-N\E —E—+F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt AREFT ARETFIT
Revenue g 5,6 278,668 727,015
Cost of sales and services $HE K AR AR AR (196,589) (544,692)
Gross profit EF 82,079 182,323
Other revenue and net H b zs B A 7
income/(loss) /(B18) B8 35,342 6,361
Distribution costs Paki=|D %N (23,178) (14,738)
Administrative and other operating 77BN E 4R &5
expenses (51,776) (48,850)
Loss on disposal of assets classified HE&EDEAFIELE 25
as held for sale BEZEE = (10,948)
Fair value changes on investment WEYE Z NFEE
properties (38,933) 9,339
Reversal of impairment loss of BEERERPYES
properties under development VEREY Ei! 81,518 82,772
Share of result of an associate Db — B E A R FEE 23,119 585
Finance costs RUE AR 8 (6,774) (18,434)
Profit before tax R BT 15 B A1 5 A 9 101,397 188,410
Income tax expense Frig i F sz 12 (40,510) (129,995)
Profit for the year FERER 60,887 58,415
Profit attributable to: THA LSS
Owners of the Company ZAN/NEIEZ SN 69,625 63,667
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR M A (8,738) (5,252)
60,887 58,415
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GERaEkEMEZEBARRE

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

2018 2017
—=E-N\F —T—tF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt AR¥ T ABREFIT
Other comprehensive (loss)/ FEHMZ2E (FHE)
income for the year N
ltems that may be reclassified HEmpeaFoEEIa%s
subsequently to profit or loss: HIERE -
Exchange differences on MEBINETS 2 P TSR
translation of financial statements RZERZE
of foreign operations 197 1,672
ltems that will not be reclassified to T @&H D BEERIERHN
profit or loss: HH
Fair value loss on investments in BAFEFAEMETR
equity instruments at fair value WAZ RETAKRE
through other comprehensive RAFEEE
income (1,000) -
Other comprehensive FEHMWEE (FHE),
(loss)/income for the year LON (803) 1,572
Total comprehensive income FEZHKRALE
for the year 60,084 59,987
Total comprehensive income THATEEZEKA
attributable to: #EE
Owners of the Company KATER A 68,822 65,239
Non-controlling interests FEIERRE = (8,738) (5,252)
60,084 59,987
RMB RMB
AE# AR
Earnings per share BREF 13
Basic HAK 0.676 centn 0.619 cent?
Diluted BE 0.676 cent? 0.619 centm>
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e PR R

(As at 31 December 2018) (R=F—/F+=HA=1+—H)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B et AR T ABRETFIT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EENRER
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties KEMHE 14 704,000 741,000
Plant and equipment W= KR A 15 2,899 2,903
Interests in an associate N} NS - X 17 501,515 474,096
Available-for-sale financial assets A ftH &4 fi&E 18 - 1,000
Prepayments, deposits and TEMFIE - B R HME 22
other receivables IR SR 20,000 -
Deferred tax asset RIER IR & 30 37,950 45,219
1,266,364 1,264,218
Current assets REBEE
Properties under development BERPYIHE 19 1,860,035 1,286,634
Completed properties held for HELEZERIME 20
sale 288,038 347,154
Trade receivables JE BR 3R 21 7,782 12,246
Prepayments, deposits and other JE{t7IE - 12 & R EM 22
receivables JEULBR 3Kk 106,939 318,651
Contract costs B HIRKA 23 2,273 -
Tax recoverable Al 3R [B] F{ 18 42,647 17,709
Pledged deposit [z 24 3,000 -
Cash and cash equivalent RekReEEY 24 43,211 51,098
2,353,925 2,033,492
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e P EGIRR

(As at 31 December 2018) (R=F—/F+=H=1—H)

2018 2017
—B-N\F —E—tF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
et AR¥FT AR TFr
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade payables FEASTBR K 26 279,251 132,998
Accruals and other payables FERTE A & E A FE T BIE 27 230,488 488,442
Contract liabilities AHEE 28 246,628 -
Provision for tax THIaR A 285,256 263,215
Borrowings EEN 29 381,854 271,854
1,423,477 1,156,509
Net current assets REBEEFE 930,448 876,983
Total assets less current BEERARBAE
liabilities 2,196,812 2,141,201
Non-current liability FRBEE
Deferred tax liability BEEHIBEE 30 232,723 246,628
Net assets EEZEE 1,964,089 1,894,573
EQUITY =
Share capital A& A 32 37,628 37,628
Reserves & 33 1,910,260 1,837,006
Equity attributable to the owners AR EHEE AEHEZS
of Company 1,947,888 1,874,634
Non-controlling interests FEPE R = 16,201 19,939
Total equity SR 1,964,089 1,894,573

Zhang Gao Bin Luo Zhangguan
REE BER
Director Director
EE EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n‘l—_]_\ }EEUILE%

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (B2 =%

—NEF+ZA=1—HIFE)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B &t AR¥ T ARBETFT
Profit before income tax BR FRAS BLBT & A 101,397 188,410
Adjustments for: FEE -
Interest income on financial R AR Z £/
assets carried at amortised BEMBUWA
costs 7 (1,364) (3,013)
Loss on disposal of investment HEREYEESR
properties = 10,948
Fair value changes on KEMERNTEE
investment properties 38,933 (9,339)
Allowance for expected credit AR FE R Z B &5 1B
losses for trade receivables B 9 6,182 -
Management fee income from JiE U — Rt 2 A
an associate EEEBIRA 7 (12,345) (187)
Interest income on loan to an A A R/N]
associate Bz M BHWA 7 (3,262) (589)
Reversal of impairment loss of BROoBRPYERE
properties under development E518 (81,518) (82,772)
Reversal of impairment loss of BEFEHEZERT
completed properties held for Y 2 RIEFIE
sale 7 (830) -
Reversal of over-provided BOoBERERERR
compensations and claims BRxZ
expenses 7 (7,583) -
Reversal of management fee BOERERY
expenses 7 (3,639) -
Reversal of interest expenses BEMEMAX 7 (4,716) -
Share of result of an associate D —fEHE R A ¥EE (23,119) (585)
Finance costs BhE KA 6,774 18,434
Depreciation on plant and B MR T E
equipment
— Owned assets -BEEE 9 1,547 576
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
an\ IE@/)ILE%‘:Z

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

2018 2017
—E-N\#F —E—tF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B &t AR¥FT ARBETT
Operating cash flow before EEBECEHA 2K ER
working capital changes ERE 16,457 121,883
(Increase)/decrease in BRAYERSED
properties under development EZBRTYE (12
and completed properties m)/md
held for sale (424,968) 104,311
(Increase)/decrease in trade FEUBR R (3L 1), m A
receivables (1,718) 831
Decrease in prepayments, ENRIE ek
deposits and other F A e WO IR R
receivables 191,378 68,023
Decrease in contract costs B B AR 3,636 -
Decrease in financial assets at AT EFABRZNE
fair value through profit or L& ER
loss - 140,000
Increase in trade payables JFE {5 BR SR8 A1 146,253 34,567
Increase/(decrease) in accruals  FE5T & A K& B fh FEft
and other payables BRFRIE N, CRd) 22,278 (428,273)
Increase in contract liabilities BHBE N 9,298 -
Prepayment for addition of REEERTMEZ
properties under development TEfTFRIE = (266,800)
Cash used in operations KEEBRAZRS (37,386) (225,458)
Land appreciation tax paid B L ER (8,148) (17,799)
Income tax paid B FEH (43,385) (94,706)
Net cash used in operating REEKRFTAZHEFE
activities (88,919) (337,963)
Cash flows from investing REXKZRERE
activities
Purchase of plant and equipment B EME K& (1,541) (1,407)
Purchase of investment property BEBEKRE WS (1,933) (6,661)
Proceeds from disposal of HEREYERBFRE
investment properties, net = 199,052
Placement of pledged deposits  fF D KiHL S (3,000) -
Interest received A2 1,364 3,013
Dividend received from the R BB D R AR S,
associate = 38,100
Net cash (used in)/generated #®RE%%#% (FTA) 8z
from investing activities REFE (5,110) 232,097
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
an\ }EEUILE%

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —FLF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Hat AREFT AREF T
Cash flows from financing MEXBZRERE
activities
Proceeds from other unsecured LB ERE RS FIE
loan 20,000 41,306
Proceeds from other secured HitBRERERPAGFR
loan 300,000 -
Repayment of bank loans BRRITENK (170,000) (14,500)
Repayment of other unsecured EEEMEERER
loan (40,000) -
Net movement of amounts FE — I & A RIFRIA
due to an associate 2FE (10,322) (92,540)
Net movement of amounts %jj_iéﬁﬁ§$?ﬁg
due to an executive director 2EFE (14,230) (7,416)
Finance costs BB AR (4,341) (16,001)
Capital injection from IR ST E
non-controlling interest 5,000 5,000
Net cash generated from/ BMEXBE (FTA)
(used in) financing activities 2R FE 86,107 (84,151)
Net decrease in cash and cash Re kAL FEY
equivalents L F (7,922) (190,017)
Cash and cash equivalents at R—A—AZRER
1 January ReSEY 51,098 241,239
Effect of foreign exchange rate EREE I HE
changes 35 (124)
Cash and cash equivalents at RT-A=t—Bz
31 December Ao kR FEY 43,211 51,098
Analysis of cash and cash RERASEENON
equivalents
Bank balances and cash RITHER AR E 24 43,211 51,098
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GARREBBE

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (& —F—/\F+-H=1+—HIFFZF)

Attributable to owners of the Company

RARER AL
Fair value
through other
Currency Capital comprehensive Non-
Share Share translation Capital Contributed redemption income Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve reserve surplus reserve reserve loss Total interests equity
BAYE
BHsig E4RE AR 2R

Bx RHEE fie  EARE HARH f#E  2EUARE EHE ] Chl BE B4R
RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ABBTFL ARBTT ARETL ARETT ARBTT ARBFT  AREFZ  ARETT ARRFZ ARBTT ARETZ

At 1 January 2018 RZE-N\F

(restated) -R-H
(&) 37,628 2,982,905  (240,354) 861 301,799 82 (253)  (1,203,602) 1,879,066 19,939 1,899,005
Profi for the year EEE - - - = - - - 60625 69625 (3738 60,887

Other comprehensive ~ £EEM2E

loss for the year: BE:
Exchange diference  AEEHEH
on translation of IBRE
financial statement of ~ ZE}Z5
foreign operations - - 197 - - - - - 197 - 197

Fair value loss on BATERA
investments in equity ~ EH2E
instruments at fair WAz fE
value through other ~~ TAIFAH

comprehensive NTEEE
income - - - - - - (1,000) - (1,000) - (1,000)
Total comprehensive £ 2EUA
ncome for the year 45 - - 197 - - - (10000 69625 68822 (3738 60,084
Capital injection from ~ JEiEREZ
non-controlling B
interests - - - - - - - - - 5,000 5,000
Asat 31 December R-Z-N\£
2018 +Zh
=t+-H 37,628 2,982,905  (240,157) 861 301,799 82 (1,253)  (1,133,977) 1,947,888 16,201 1,964,089
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GEREEDE

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

Attributable to owners of the Company

FRAFE AR
Fair value
through other
Currency Capital  comprehensive Non-
Share Share  translation Capital ~ Contributed  redemption income  Accumulated controlling Total
capitel premium reserve reserve surplus reserve reserve loss Total interests equity
RATE
EHiR BABE Ak R

BE - RiER WE ORRER AARA B GEWARE  iER ait B EEEE
RMBOOD  AMBOO  AUBOOO  AMBOOO  AMBOOD  RWBU  AWBOOO  AMBOOO  AMBOOD  RMBOG)  RWMBOMO
ARRTT ARRTL ARETR ARETR ARBTZ ARRTT  ARETT  ARETR ARETZ  ARETT ARETR

t 1 January 2017 RZE-tF-A-A 37628 2982905  (241,926) 861 301,799 82 (263)  (1,271,701)  1,809,3% 20,191 1,820,586

Profit for the year EEER - - - - - _

63,667 63,667 (6,252) 58,415

Other comprehensive income  FEEMZEMRA :

for the year:
Exchange difference on BEENERL
translation of financal BBEEL
statement of foreign EXEE
operations - - 1572 - - - - - 1572 - 1572

Total comprehensive income for FE2ERALE
the year - - 1,572 - - - - 63,667 065,239 (5,262) 59,987

Capital injection from non- FERERTE
controlling interest - - - - - - - - - 5,000 5,000

As at 31 December 2017 RZE—+F
T-A=t-H 37,628 2,982,906  (240,354) 861 301,799 82 (253) (1,208,034 1,874,634 19939 1,894,573

Adjustments (see note 3) BE (AME3) - - - - - - - 4432 4432 - 4432

t1 January 2018 restated)  R-E—/\E-F—-R
(@ &5) 37,628 2,982,905 (240,354) 861 301,799 82 (258)  (1,203,602) 1,879,066 19,939 1,899,006
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=—F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

GENERAL INFORMATION

Talent Property Group Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in Bermuda and domiciled
in Hong Kong. The addresses of its registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed
in the corporate information section to the annual report.
The Company’s shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Talent
Trend Holdings Limited, which is incorporated in the BVI,
is the ultimate holding company of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are
including (i) property development, (i) property investment
and (i) property management.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong
Kong dollars (“HKD”), while the consolidated financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”). As
the major business of the Group is located in the
Mainland China, the directors consider that it will be
more appropriate to adopt RMB as the Group’s and the
Company’s presentation currency.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2018 were approved for issue by the board
of directors on 30 March 2019.

1.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

A N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

2.

K b

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standard (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). These consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are summarised below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented
unless otherwise stated. The adoption of new or amended
HKFRSs and the impacts on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements, if any, are disclosed in note 3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instrument and certain properties that are measured at fair
values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in
the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is
determined on such a basis, except for share-based
payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS
2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories
or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties which
are transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs is to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated
so that at initial recognition the results of the valuation
technique equals the transaction price.
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2.

R

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are

changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

2.

R

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying
amounts of the Group’s relevant components of equity
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries,
including re-attribution of relevant reserves between the
Group and the non-controlling interests according to the
Group’s and the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets
and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling
interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
attributable to the owners of the Company. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9
or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of associates used for equity accounting
purposes are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an
investment in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
the associate. Changes in net assets of the associate
other than profit or loss and other comprehensive income
are not accounted for unless such changes resulted in
changes in ownership interest held by the Group. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate exceeds
the Group’s interest in that associate (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of
the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognizing its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

2.

R

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates (continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for
using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate, any excess of the cost of the
investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss
in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate may be impaired.
When any objective evidence exists, the entire carrying
amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset
by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of
the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (& —F—/\F+-H=1+—HIFFZF)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates (continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over
an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains an
interest in the former associate and the retained interest is
a financial asset within the scope of HKFRS 9, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at that date
and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition. The difference between the carrying amount
of the associate and the fair value of any retained interest
and any proceeds from disposing the relevant interest
in the associate is included in the determination of the
gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that associate
on the same basis as would be required if that associate
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income by that associate would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain
or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant
associate.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the
proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent
of interests in the associate that are not related to the
Group.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in note 3)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series
of distinct goods or services that are substantially the
same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one
of the following criteria is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in note 3) (continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or
service.

The performance obligations of the Group for contracts
with customers are summarized as follows:

(i) Development and sales of properties (revenue
recognised at a point in time)

For contracts entered into with customers on
sales of properties, the relevant properties
specified in the contracts are based on customer’s
specifications with no alternative use. Based
on opinion from the Group’s internal legal
counsel, taking into consideration of the relevant
contract terms and customary practice within
the industry in the PRC, the legal environment
and relevant legal precedent, the management
of the Group concluded that the Group does
not have an enforceable right to payment for the
work performed to date at all times during the
contract prior to transfer of the relevant properties
to customers. Revenue from sales of residential
properties in the PRC is therefore recognized at
a point in time when the completed property is
transferred to customers, being at the point that
the customer obtains the control of the completed
property and the Group has fully received the
consideration of the properties sold.

The Group normally receives 5%-42% of the
contract value as deposits from customers when
they sign the sale and purchase agreements. Such
advance payment result in contract liabilities being
recognised throughout the property construction
period.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in note 3) (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Development and sales of properties (revenue
recognised at a point in time) (continued)

The Group considers the advance payment from
customers contain significant financing component
and accordingly the amount of consideration is
adjusted for the effects of the time value of money
taking into consideration the credit characteristics
of the Group. As this accrual increases the
amount of the contract liability during the period of
construction, it increases the amount of revenue
recognised when control of the completed property
is transferred to the customer.

The Group applies the practical expedient for
advance payment received from customers, given
that if the corresponding performance obligation is
expected to satisfy within 12 months after receiving
the advance payment, (i.e. when the control of the
completed property is transferred to the customer
within 12 months), the financing component
is considered insignificant and the amounts of
consideration, contract liability and revenue are not
adjusted for the effects of any time value of money.

The Group also applies the practical expedient of
expensing all incremental costs to obtain a contract
if these costs would otherwise have been fully
amortised to profit or loss within one year.

Property management (revenue recognised
over time)

For contracts entered into with customers on
property management services, it is considered as
monthly services provided to tenants and owners
of properties and the performance obligations are
fulfilled on a straight-line basis over the contracts
terms.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=—F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in note 3) (continued)

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to a
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in note 3) (continued)

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs
that the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer
that it would not have incurred if the contract had not
been obtained.

The Group recognises such costs (sales commissions) as
an asset if it expects to recover these costs. The asset so
recognised is subsequently amortised to profit or loss on
a systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to
the customer of the goods or services to which the assets
relate.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing
all incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs
would otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or loss
within one year.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January 2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities, as described below.

Sales of properties, rental income from investment
properties and properties management fees

Revenue from sales of properties is recognized when
the risks and rewards of properties are transferred to the
purchasers, which is when the construction of relevant
properties has been completed and the properties
are delivered to the purchasers pursuant to the sale
agreement and collectability of related receivables is
reasonably assured. To the extent that the Group has to
perform further work on the properties already delivered to
the purchasers, the relevant expenses shall be recognised
simultaneously. Deposits and installments received on
properties sold prior to the date of revenue recognition
are included in the consolidated statement of financial
position under current liabilities as receipt in advance from
customers.

Property management service income is recognized
on a pro-rata basis over the life of the agreement
corresponding to notional delivery of the service.

Revenue recognition (before and after application
HKFRS 15)

Rental income of property leasing under operating leases
is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

A N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

2.

K b

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the leased asset. Other than
investment properties measured under fair value model,
such costs are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring
land held under operating leases, are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Contingent rentals, if any, arising under operating leases
are recognised as an expense in the period in which they
are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise, except for exchange differences on
monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign
operation for which settlement is neither planned nor likely
to occur (therefore forming part of the net investment in
the foreign operation), which are recognized initially in
other comprehensive income and reclassified from equity
to profit or loss on disposal or partial disposal of the
Group’s interests in associates.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Renminbi) using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of currency translation reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (BtZ2—=F—/\F+-_A=1+—HILFE)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in an associate that includes a foreign operation
of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset),
all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=—F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of
the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages, salaries, annual leaves and sick leaves)
after deducting any amount already paid.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax because
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

7 N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model,
the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed
to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through sale.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (& —F—/\F+—-H=1+—HIFFZ)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognized in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from
the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of assets less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line
basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements 20%
Furniture, fixtures and office equipments 10-33.33%
Motor vehicles 20%

The asset's residual values, depreciation methods and
useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
each reporting date.

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement
of an item of plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation. Investment properties
are initially measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values.
All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes
are classified and accounted for as investment properties
and are measured using the fair value model. Gains or
losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for the period in
which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are
expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the property is derecognised.

Impairment on tangible assets other than
goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets with finite useful
lives and contract costs to determine whether there is any
indication that these assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss (if any).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

2.

R

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment on tangible assets other than
goodwill (continued)

The recoverable amount of tangible assets are estimated
individually, when it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Before the Group recognises an impairment loss for assets
capitalised as contract costs under HKFRS 15, the Group
assesses and recognises any impairment loss on other
assets related to the relevant contracts in accordance
with applicable standards. Then, impairment loss, if any,
for assets capitalised as contract costs is recognised to
the extent the carrying amounts exceeds the remaining
amount of consideration that the Group expects to receive
in exchange for related goods or services less the costs
which relate directly to providing those goods or services
that have not been recognised as expenses. The assets
capitalised as contract costs are then included in the
carrying amount of the cash-generating unit to which they
belong for the purpose of evaluating impairment of that
cash-generating unit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment on tangible assets other than
goodwill (continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.

In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss
is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on
a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognized for
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately
in profit or loss.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

2.

R

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Properties under development and completed
properties held for sale

Properties under development and completed properties
held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for properties under development
and completed properties held for sale less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the
sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. When a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows
(where the effect of the time value of money is material).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and in
hand, demand deposits with banks and short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, having been within three months of
maturity at acquisition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15 since 1 January
2018. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

7 N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

2.

R

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in
accordance with transitions in note 3)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash
flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at the date of initial application of
HKFRS 9/initial recognition of a financial asset the Group
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes
in fair value of an equity investment in OCI if that equity
investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations
applies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in
accordance with transitions in note 3) (continueq)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at the
amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing
so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.

(1)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost and debt
instruments/receivables subsequently measured
at FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired. For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit
risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. TEETERBME @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued) SRIA (&)

Financial assets (continued) THEE (&)

Classification and subsequent measurement of THEECREREAZE (RIEMZE

financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in SEEMIEXEFE BB EERE9

accordance with transitions in note 3) (continued) gE#) (&)

(ii) Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI (ii) HEEBIL N FEFFAEM T ENK

AZ#ERTA

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are AT ESFAREMEE KA Z
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and STEMNKEREBEANTEES
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised - HENFEESEHEANKEIR
in OCI and accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve; BEAEMEEWAPEZ LR
and are not subject to impairment assessment. The AT EAFAEMEEIEA Z G
cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to BEE:T WEBAERESE - 2
profit or loss on disposal of the equity investments, RSB RRNHERES T AR
and will be transferred to retained profits. BresHmolEasEs T EE

BERBEEN -

Dividends from these investments in equity BN E B U ELAR B A REF
instruments are recognised in profit or loss when B ZSHEFZTEXRENOEKRER
the Group’s right to receive the dividends is BEPER  BRIERERERT
established, unless the dividends clearly represent WEE S EKA o I Bt AE
a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. SR EMIEARIER A o
Dividends are included in the other income in profit
or loss.
Impairment of financial assets (upon application THEERE (RENFIBEMEMKRIE
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 3) A& BRI LR EoEE > )
The Group estimates a loss allowances for ECL on REBRBREBTEMBRE LD EQ
financial assets which are subject to impairment SEYHEY S REE (BIEEWER
under HKFRS 9 (including trade receivables and other REMEWEER) 2B EEEEET
receivables). The amount of ECL is updated at each EBEREE EHEEREESENSHRE
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial HEIE R - URMBEVITHERUAR ZE
recognition. ERkRE -
Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from KATEEEE B EIEN AT AT
all possible default events over the expected life of the PR 1A 3% A2 BT G BT BE Y 32 4 T B B 78 B
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ZEEE Ak +—@AREHEZEE
ECL”) represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is B(I+-@BFEHEZEEIE]) A
expected to result from default events that are possible HAPA SR 4 A HBR7% + — (A B N AT AL 3 A 1)
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment B ERTEBM T KA TBEEEE

are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the

B BHEEBRRREBASEBEIREE

— 1o S 2= A s \\// (== + ==
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment Eﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁi&f}'?$1ﬁw ITE??{E%ATE
of both the current conditions at the reporting date as well HE - —REBERR MRS B HER
as the forecast of future conditions. TR B R SR AR S0 TR 89 5T 44 1 #E HS 78
%E& o
The .Gré)lup a_ll_vr\]/ayzcricognisej In;etme E|CL for tradj 7 B — B ot R W IR SRR SR ok A FE
. n tr S N N e e

recelvavies. e on rade recevabies assesse EEE - BUCRRMTEREEBREA
collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate

AR 2 B TR AR -

groupings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 3)
(continued)

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

2.

FESHEEEBE &)

ETWMITA (&)

ETHEE (&)

& @& E R E (1R 15 B 348 B M
XEREEMBEHEER EIN 2 &)
(%)

ERBEEMT A AKRBEFERSFN
Tt EABRBEEERZEREE K
FENFERAREERRAR L
AEBRIGHERKABHAEERRE - K
SEERBEVIERURKARNE
2 AT R 1 S R B AR b T RT ik e S R
RXATRREERRE -

()  1EEEBRAE FHF
RFEEERRETANLER
VAR K B8 EFHEF - REE IR
RESEHNERTANENS
2z AR EBRNISERAE N
ERMTANRBOEMFZELRE
TTHCER o EH L TR FHAA B - X
SEeZREARANEENEE
LREUER  BEBELERNLE
ABSRARAZIRFEAHRSE
B ATBE L EHL o

RER  EFEEEARZEA
LA AEBEEEUTE
B

e BT AING (WAE) LA
BEEFR 2 ER LAY
mER

s  EERBIMTISERE
ERE FImEEMEXR
fBEA  EHAEEED
= B AR AR T

o TEHIE - MBRLEMN
SR RTER T F E B
EYEBARITEEKER
E2 e BRIAIREHISS

Talent Property Group Limited Annual Report 2018




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (& —F—/\F+—-H=1+—HIFFZ)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

FESHERBE (8

EWMIA (&)
ETHEE (#)
& @& E B E (1R 5 M 2348 & 1t K
XEREEMBEHEREREIN 2 &)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 3)

(continued) (&)
(i Significant increase in credit risk (continued) ] 1EEERAIE LA ()
o an actual or expected significant o B AREEEER ST
deterioration in the operating results of the HABAZ ER AL
debtor;
- o BEHAZEE  GERRK
° an actual or expected significant adverse

change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at
the reporting date. A debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of
default, ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to
meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term and iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will
not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower
to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. The
Group considers a debt instrument to have low
credit risk when it has an internal or external
credit rating of ‘investment grade’ as per globally
understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk and revises
them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)
FESTHEREE 8

EWMITA (&)
ETHEE (&)
& @& E B E (1R 5 K 2348 B 1t K
XEREEMBEHEEREIN 2 &)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (upon application

HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 3)
(continued)

(ii) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events of default that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence
that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic
or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, having granted
to the borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application

HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 3)

(continued)

(i)

(iv)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in
full (without taking into account any collateral held
by the Group).

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade receivables, when the amounts are
over one year past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 3)
(continued)

v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or
cater for cases where evidence at the individual
instrument level may not yet be available, the
financial instruments are grouped by aging basis.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue
to share similar credit risk characteristics.

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group is
required to make payments only in the event of a
default by the debtor in accordance with the terms
of the instrument that is guaranteed. Accordingly,
the expected losses is the present value of the
expected payments to reimburse the holder for
a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts that
the Group expects to receive from the holder, the
debtor or any other party.

For financial guarantee contracts, the loss
allowances are recognised at the higher of the
amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9; and the amount initially
recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative
amount of income recognised over the guarantee
period.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of

financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1
January 2018)

Financial assets are classified into the following
specified categories: AFS financial assets and loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the
time of initial recognition.

(1)

(i)

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated as available-for-sale or are not
classified as (a) loans and receivables, (b) held-
to-maturity investments or (c) financial assets
at FVTPL. The Group designated an unquoted
equity investment as AFS financial assets on initial
recognition.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are measured
at cost less any identified impairment losses at the
end of each reporting period.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade receivables and prepayments, deposits and
other receivables) are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables where the recognition of interest would
be immaterial.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (& —F—/\F+-H=1+—HIFFZF)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting
period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

° significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; or

° a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below its
cost.

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets
include observable data indicating that there is a
measureable decrease in the estimated future cash flows
from the group of financial assets. Such observable
data includes but not limited to adverse changes in the
payment status of debtors in the group and, national or
local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on
the assets in the group.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

7 N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

2.

R

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018) (continued)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent
periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognized in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in
the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the investment at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument
classified as at FVTOCI upon application of HKFRS 9,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
FVTOCI reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
which the Group has elected on initial recognition to
designate the investment as at FVTOCI at the date of
initial application of HKFRS 9 or on initial recognition of
the investment, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is not
reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to retained
profits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

7 N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

2.

R

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity
instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method or at
FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade payables and other
payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, borrowings are stated at amortised cost with
any difference between the amount initially recognised and
redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings, together with any interest
and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payments when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contract
liabilities are measured initially at their fair values. It is
subsequently measured at the higher of:

° the amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9 (since 1 January 2018)/
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets (before application of HKFRS 9
on 1 January 2018); and

° the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised
over the guarantee period.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(if) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others);
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. FEESTHRBE &
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (continued) BEAL (8
(b)  (continued) (b) (%)

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture (i) ZEBREMER (HE
of the other entity (or an associate or joint HMEEMBSEENKE QA
venture of a member of a group of which ZHERNR A EDE)
the other entity is a member); ZEENRRAEERE

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures iy ZEBERAEEAR—
of the same third party; ZHZEERE

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity vy, ZEBRBAFE-HFEBEBEZA
and the other entity is an associate of the EPEREMERARE =
third entity; HERZEENR

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan v) ZEBBRERMNTAE
for the benefit of employees of either the Bl EALEBEH 2 EE
Group or an entity related to the Group; 2R EREREEAETE

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled vi) ZERZH—HN(@EIEHR
by a person identified in (a); Z ANEIEHI s R FE S

(vi)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant Vi)  REO)BEBEHASZERE
influence over the entity or is a member of HEERFEZANLTHZE
the key management personnel of the entity B (RZERBIORR) 2
(or of a parent of the entity); and FEEHEEKE &

(vii)  The entity, or any member of a group of (vii) ZERBIX —SENEM
which it is a part, provides key management MERANEENAEEE
personnel services to the Group or to the NAREEIEEEAER
Group’s parent. % MZEBHLEZEE

HIRK B ©

Close members of the family of a person are those —% ATHERIEHERR 5K

family members who may be expected to influence, ST RZATESIRZATHE

or be influenced by, that person in their dealings E’\]%B%EZE\ °

with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=—F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the
first time in the current year:

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15

Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4

Insurance Contracts

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 15 Clarification to HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKAS 28  As part of the Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 40  Transfers of Investment Property

Except as described below, the application of the new
HKFRSs and amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group's financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years
and on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

7 N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

3.

R

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Impacts and changes in accounting policies
of application on HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18 Revenue,
HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related
interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively with
the cumulative effect of initially applying this Standard
recognised at the date of initial application of HKFRS
15 (i.e. 1 January 2018). Any difference at the date of
initial application is recognised in the opening retained
profits and comparative information has not been
restated. Furthermore, in accordance with the transition
provisions in HKFRS 15, the Group has elected to apply
the Standard retrospectively only to contracts that are not
completed at 1 January 2018 and has used the practical
expedient for all contract modifications that occurred
before the date of initial application, the aggregate effect
of all of the modifications was reflected at the date
of initial application. Accordingly, certain comparative
information may not be comparable as comparative
information was prepared under HKAS 18 Revenue
and HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related
interpretations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=—F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Impacts and changes in accounting policies
of application on HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (continued)

The Group recognises revenue from the following major

sources:

(i) Property development consists of the sales of
properties;

(if) Property investment consists of the leasing of

investment properties;

(i) Property management consists of the provision of
property management services.

Information about the Group’s performance obligations
and the accounting policies resulting from application of
HKFRS 15 are disclosed in note 2.

The application of HKFRS 15 has no material impact on
the timing of revenue recognition of the Group.
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% NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. RWMFFTREETERUER
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING HER (@)
STANDARDS (continued)
Impacts and changes in accounting policies ERERMKEREERFE15ERE
of application on HKFRS 15 Revenue from EEEHARENEHTBEREERS
Contracts with Customers (continued) B (48)
The following table summarises the impact of transition to TEREMR-_E—N\F—A—HBHBABER
HKFRS 15 on accumulated losses at 1 January 2018. EEMBREERFE1SFEE EEE

Tl o

Decrease in
accumulated losses
after the application

of HKFRS 15 as
1 January 2018
R=ZZE—N\F—HA—H

EREABNERELER
FISHREZRIAB R
note RMB’000
Bzt ABEFIT
Accumulated losses Rt EiE
Recognition of incremental costs BRIEEH 2
to obtain contracts as BRI AN BE RIRAR
contract costs (a) 5,909
Tax effect of recognition of
contracts costs BREHRA 2RISR E (@) (1,477)
Impact at 1 January 2018 RZE-—NF-—HA—BzZ&E 4,432
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=—F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)
Impacts and changes in accounting policies
of application on HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (continued)
The following table summarises the impact of transition to
HKFRS 15 on properties under development, accruals and
other payables, contract liabilities, contract costs, deferred
tax liabilities and accumulated losses at 1 January 2018.
Properties Accruals
under and other
development payables
EERR

¥RINE  RUEGEE

notes RMB000

RMB'000

Wit ARETn ARETR

AN KRBT B R HR

£ZA (8

[ = R P o,

ERERBUKREERFEISHRE
EFENBRBENETRRTERS
B (&)

TERBANR—ZF—\F-A—-RHBEE
FEAEMBREENFIGHRABERFTY
ELEFERREMEMNTE  AHE
B BHRA  BERBERELRTE

Be®E -

Contract Contracts  Deferred tax  Accumulated
liabilities costs liabilities losses

aNAR aNEE  BERERR RitER
RVB0OO  RMB'OO0  RMBOOO  RMBY00

NBRTT  ABRTT  ABETT  ARETX

Closing balance at RZB-t%§
31 December 2017 tZA=t-8H
BRER 1,286,634 488,442 - - 246,628 1,208,034
Effect arising from initial ERERERUE
application of HKFRS 15: RERAFISHE
iy
Reclassfication E508 ) S %0 230361 . - -
Capitalisation of interest expenses A2 % (b) 6,969 - 6,969 - - -
Recognition of incremental costs @
to obtain contracts as AREEN EL
contract costs REBALKA - - - 5,909 - (5,909)
Tax effect of recognition of BRANNAL 3
contract costs il 52 - - - - 1477 1477
Opening balance at RZ8-N\5-A-H
1 January 2018 fENLs 1,293,603 258,081 237,330 5,909 248,105 1,203,602
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INT\

3.

BB ERRM

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (B2 =%

—NFFZA=F—ALFE)

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Impacts and changes in accounting policies
of application on HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (continued)

notes:

(@)

The Group incurred incremental commission paid/payable
to employees and selling agents in connection with
obtaining sales of properties contracts with customers.
These amounts were previously recognised as an
expense as incurred under HKAS 18. At the date of initial
application of HKFRS 15, incremental costs of obtaining
contracts and the related deferred tax of RMB5,909,000
and RMB1,477,000 respectively were recognised with
corresponding adjustments to accumulated losses as the
control of the relevant properties are not yet transferred

to the customers as at 1 January 2018.

As at 1 January 2018, advances from customers of
RMB230,361,000 in respect of some contracts previously
included in accruals and other payables were reclassified
to contract liabilities of which RMB63,350,000 was
related to situations where the timing when the advances
received from customers and the revenue recognition
date is more than 12 months. Therefore, the Group
concluded that there was significant financing component.
Accordingly, an interest expense of RMB6,969,000 was
quantified which resulted in increases in contract liabilities

and properties under development.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R M A

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. BEMFIIRLIEITERBUBER
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING HER ()
STANDARDS (continued)
Impact on the consolidated statement of EREBMERELENF15HE R
financial position as at 31 December 2018 by —E-N\FE+ZA=+—H2Z&HE
the application of HKFRS 15 MBRR R 2 &
The following tables summarise the impacts of applying TR ERE BT ISHRE ERFE 155
HKFRS 15 on the Group’s consolidated statement of HAEBNR _ZE—N\F+_A=1+—H
financial position as at 31 December 2018, consolidated ZEEVBIMRRE HRAFESXE
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive B[ 7EEERNEMERRARRK
income and consolidated statement at cash flows for the NEEEHEMERIFE - MARTRAK
current year for each of the line items affected. Line items XEFEMIER o
that were not affected by the changes have not been
included.
As reported Amounts
(after the without
application of application of
HKFRS 15) HKFRS 15
RER (EA TEEREE
ERUKHEE  Adjustments  BIEHEER
ERIE155%K 2 %) AR B15%zEE
notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Vi3 AREFT AREFT AREFT
Current assets REBEE
Properties under development BRPME (@ 1,860,035 (10,694) 1,849,341
Contracts costs BHRIA (b) 2,273 (2,273) -
Current liabilities REEE
Accruals and other payables EAERREMENTIEB () 230,488 235,934 466,422
Contracts liabilities anaf (c) 246,628 (246,628) -
Non-current liability kRBEE
Deferred tax liability ELHRERE (d) 232,723 (568) 232,155
Equity i
Reserves =15 (e) 1,910,260 (1,705) 1,908,555
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% NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. EMFITRKIETEBUBER
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING HEEAR ()
STANDARDS (continued)
Impact on the consolidated statement of profit HEBZE-_2—N\E+=-BA=+—8H
and loss and other comprehensive income for tEEzHREeBEEREMEEEA
the year ended 31 December 2018 HR2EE
As reported Amounts
(after the without
application of application of
HKFRS 15) Adjustments HKFRS 15
RE2R (A TEEREE
ERNBRE BB EER
HERIE155 2 %) BE  F15HzEeE
notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Mzt ARETT ARETFT ARETT
Distribution costs KA (b) 23,178 (3,636) 19,542
Income tax expenses FEHAX (d) 40,510 909 41,419
Impact on the consolidated statement of cash HEBZE-ZE—NE+=-A=+—H
flows for the year ended 31 December 2018 ITFEECECBESHhEeryoE
As reported Amounts
(after the without
application of application of
HKFRS 15) Adjustments HKFRS 15
K2R® (A WREREE
EBRBRE BBHEER
ERIE155 2 #) BE  B15HEZEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AEETT AEETT AEETT

Cash flow from operating activities RELEERRETRE
Profit for the year FEEA 101,397 3,636 105,033
Increase in properties under BERRIFNERFELEZ

development and completed BRIME

properties held for sale (424,968) 3,725 (421,243)
Decrease in contracts costs BHORERD 3,636 (3,636) -
Increase in accruals and other payables JE=+ 5 BB N K JE S TR IB N 22,278 5,573 27,851
Increase in contracts liabilities BHBREEM 9,298 (9,298) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=—F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Impact on the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year ended 31 December 2018
(continued)

notes:

(a) Following the adoption of HKFRS 15, for contracts
where the period between the advance payment by
the customer and the transfer of the promised property
or service exceeds one year, the transaction price is
adjusted for the effects of a financing component, if
significant. The interest element would be capitalized in
the property under development.

(b) Before the adoption of HKFRS 15, distribution costs
such as sales commissions were expensed when they
were incurred. Under HKFRS 15, these costs directly
attributable to obtaining a contract, if recoverable, are
capitalised and recorded in contract costs.

(c) As a result of adoption of HKFRS 15, advances from
customers of RMB235,934,000 in respect of some
contracts previously included in accruals and other
payables were reclassified to contract liabilities of which
RMB1568,464,000 related to situations where the timing
when the advances were from customers and the revenue
recognition date is more than 12 months. Therefore,
this balance was considered that there was significant
financing component. An interest expense increased
in RMB10,694,000 was recognised as an increase in
contract liabilities and properties under development. The
above results would be reversal without application of
HKFRS 15.

(d) Deferred tax liability arising from the capitalized contract
costs under HKFRS 15 as described in note (b) above.

(e) The effect on accumulated losses as a result of the above
mentioned adjustments in Notes (a) to (d).

3.

AN KRBT B R HR

£ZA (8

HEz-_ZFZ-N\F+=-A=+—H
LEFEZRERERERZIXE
(&)

Hiat

@ NEATEMBEREENFISHE
& - BB TR Rz B ) S A
MESRBERABBRB —F 250
mE > WREXKNDZFZEBEKN ]
SRHEZXZER - PO BRER
TMEERL

() MEATERBREENFIHR
Bl HEMEF D HERARELERX
i o REBEBABYBRELANE165
ZERBBAK (MATlm) mE &
EERRAE T ENMEL T AB KK
K o

() RARRWNE S HREERZES
% SRIRT AR ER R E A E N
HREMETAHZEFPEMNRARKE
235,934,000 EEFHEEEHE
& Ei AR%158,464,0007T £ 4g
R P R 2 B A R iR e A A
BiR12E A 2 IERERE - Bt - %4
MR ALEERAMEND - FEH
¥ EF ARE10,694,0007TEHER A
EHBERERBPYIZEILI o (41K
FERB MM EERF 155 - Ll
EREGATED -

d REFBPBHREENEIGSE  BE
B HRAMELE 2 BELEHAERE
Fan_E 3K (o) Pt o

(e) ZEHB B ER M @)= (d)Frit
AEMmMESE -

Talent Property Group Limited Annual Report 2018




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (& —F—/\F+—-H=1+—HIFFZ)

3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Impacts and changes in accounting policies of
application on HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments and the related consequential
amendments to other HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for 1) the classification and measurement
of financial assets and financial liabilities and 2) expected
credit losses (“ECL”) for financial assets.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with
the transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9. i.e. applied
the classification and measurement requirements
(including impairment under ECL model) retrospectively
to instruments that have not been derecognised as at
1 January 2018 (date of initial application) and has not
applied the requirements to instruments that have already
been derecognised as at 1 January 2018. The difference
between carrying amounts as at 31 December 2017 and
the carrying amounts as at 1 January 2018 are recognised
in the opening accumulated losses and other components
of equity, without restating comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared
under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement.

Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 9
are disclosed in note 2.

Except as described below, the application of HKFRS
9 has no other material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and position on 1 January 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 8
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(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. BMFEIRLEITEBUBER
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING HER ()

STANDARDS (continued)

Impacts and changes in accounting policies of ERAEAMKREENFRESAMT
application on HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments ENETHERRTERES (&)
(continued)

The table below illustrates the classification and TRBMIEIEE B & RS %EREo%
measurement (including impairment) of financial assets NEASEDFEIFAR T — )\ F—
under HKFRS 9 and HKAS 39 at the date of initial A—BEREABHNEREEND
application, 1 January 2018. MEtE (BIERE) -

Available-for-sale

financial assets
at cost less  Equity instrument
impairment at FVTOCI
BEAMBRRELZ BAFEF AR
AfEESREE Z2HKAZEZIA

note RMB’000 RMB’000
Vi3 ANRETT AREFT
Closing balance at R-B—tf
31 December 2017 - +ZRA=+-HB2H
HKAS 39 ReEeh - BEE
K BIE39%: 1,000 -
Effect arising from initial BRERBRNEREER
application of HKFRS 9: FORELENTE
Reclassification Eibagst (@) (1,000) 1,000
Opening balance at R=Z-N\§¥-A-H
1 January 2018 P B - 1,000
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(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Impacts and changes in accounting policies of
application on HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
(continued)

notes:

(a)

(b)

Available-for-sale financial assets (“AFS”)

From AFS equity investment to FVTOCI

The Group elected to present in OCI for the fair value
changes of all its equity investments previously classified
as available-for-sale, of which RMB1,000,000 related
to unquoted equity investment previously measured at
cost less impairment under HKAS 39. This investment
is not held for trading and not expected to be sold in
the foreseeable future. At the date of initial application
of HKFRS 9, RMB1,000,000 were reclassified from
available-for-sale financial assets to equity instrument
at FVTOCI. No fair value gains or losses relating to that
unquoted equity investment previously carried at cost
less impairment were adjusted to equity instruments at
FVTOCI and FVTOCI reserve as at 1 January 2018.

Impairment under ECL model

No significant increase in credit risk since the initial
recognition of financial assets at amortised cost including
trade receivables, other receivables and cash and cash
equivalent, no additional credit loss allowance has been

recognized.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=—F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Impacts on opening consolidated statement of
financial position arising from the application

of all new standards

FERmAHMTERNBRHIGE MK
MRRRZZE

As a result of the changes in the Group’s accounting R AER @zt kEEE) - 4]
policies above, the opening consolidated statement of AR ABATESY o« FEM R
financial position had to be restated. The following table ZEREE R HE -

show the adjustments recognised for each individual line

item.

31 December 1 January
2017 2018
(Audited) HKFRS 15 HKFRS 9 (Restated)
“E-tf
TZA=t-H BBEH NS “E-N\fF
(B8%) BEENSESE HEEHEE -A-A (LED)
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANEETT ANRETT ANRETT ANRETFT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment properties RENE 741,000 741,000
Plant and equipment BE Rk 2,903 2,903
Interests in an associate R-TE AR 2% 474,096 474,006
Available-for-sale financial assets HEHESHEE 1,000 (1,000) -
Equity instruments at fair value through BRATEGF AL ZERA
other comprehensive income JESTR - 1,000 1,000
Deferred tax assets BRMIEEE 45,219 45,219
1,264,218 1,264,218
Current assets RBEE
Properties under development BRRNE 1,286,634 6,969 1,293,603
Completed properties held for sale BELEZERINE 347,154 347,154
Trade receivables W 12,246 12,246
Prepayments, deposits BRFE - B2 R
and other receivables H i e Yo iRsn 318,651 318,651
Contract costs AHIRE - 5,909 5,909
Tax recoverable REHIE 17,709 17,709
Cash and cash equivalent ReRReSEN 51,098 51,098
2,033,492 2,046,370
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8 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. RWMFFTREETERUER
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING HER (@)
STANDARDS (continued)
Impacts on opening consolidated statement of ERFEHTERNHBAGFEE ]
financial position arising from the application MRFZHLE (B)

of all new standards (continued)

31 December 1 January

2017 2018

(Audited) HKFRS 15 HKFRS 9 (Restated)
“B-t%

tZR=t-H MK ERMH “F-0F
(&%) RERAFISHE  RERARH -A-A (L)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
NBRTT ANERTFT ANRETT NERTT

Current liabilities RBEE
Trade payables TR 132,998 132,998
Accruals and other payables BB R EMERFE 488,442 (230,361) 258,081
Contract liabilities ANER - 237,330 237,330
Provision for tax TEEE 263,215 263,215
Borrowings e 271,854 271,854
1,156,509 1,163,478
Net current assets RBEETE 876,983 882,892
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBEE 2,141,201 2147110
Non-current liability E =V
Deferred tax liability EREREEE 246,628 1,477 248,105
Net assets BEFE 1,894,573 4,432 - 1,899,005
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R M A

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=—F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. BEMFIIRLIEITERBUBER
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING FHEAR ()

STANDARDS (continued)

Impacts on opening consolidated statement of ERRMEHTENSBALGS MK
financial position arising from the application MRTKZEE (E)

of all new standards (continued)

31 December 1 January

2017 2018

(Audited) HKFRS 15 HKFRS 9 (Restated)
ZB-tF

t=A=t-A BEns EEMH “E-0\%
(BEk) RERAFISHE  RERARH -A-A ()
AMB'000 AMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000

NERTT NERTT NERTTL NRETT

Equity B

Share capital AR 37,628 37,628

Reserves B 1,837,006 4,432 1,841,438

Equity attrioutable to the RAREE NS

owners of Company 1,874,634 1,879,066

Non-controlling interests FFERER 19,939 19,939

Total equity EREE 1,894,573 4,432 - 1,899,005

Note: For the purposes of reporting cash flows from operating Wiet - pBREHE_T - N\F+A=+—
activities under indirect method for the year ended 31 BLEFEFEETABTLCEER 2
December 2018, movements in working capital have been HenEms 8828 H2E
computed based on opening consolidated statement REXFEER_E—NF—A—H
of financial position as at 1 January 2018 as disclosed AR A T BUR R R ETTETE ©
above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. HMFITRKIETEBUBER
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING HER (&)
STANDARDS (continued)
New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but EEMEEKRERZITREIERT
not yet effective EBMBREEAL
The Group has not early applied the following new and AEBWEEFERATEBMERER
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are ERZIFAIRBET BN BREE
not yet effective: ay -
HKFRS 16 Leases' BEMBREENF 165 HE
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts® BRUBRELENEITR  RBRAELS
HK(FRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax % (BRVBHREREZ EHEELTET
Treatments! Bg)- REF2R 1
Amendments to Definition of a Business? BRUBREENENR EBHTER?
HKFRS 3 B3]
Amendments to Prepayment Features with Negative ERNBREENFEIOR 2 E AFEHEE AN
HKFRS 9 Compensation’ H R
Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets ERMBEREENE10RR REEREBEAF
HKFRS 10 and between an Investor and its BRI ENERYE E KAEEPERH
HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture* H] EREEER!
Amendments to Definition of Material? BRESHENEIRLREE BEAUNER
HKAS 1 and S ERIE8H 2 EET
HKAS 8
Amendments to Plan Amendment, Curtailment or BRLHENE19R 2EF] HEIBE] - BRIE
HKAS 19 Settlement’ A
Amendments to Long-term Interests in Associates BRQHERESR 2] REEARAIREED
HKAS 28 and Joint Ventures' ¥ REER
Amendments to Annual Improvements to HKFRSs BRUBERELEN 2B —E-AEE-T—
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle' T ERES BN
BHREEFEYR
i
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 1 NZE—-NF—B—HskZ2EBRHE2
January 2019 FE IR ER
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 2 MN-ZE-_TF—-F—HkZ2EBRE2
January 2020 FEHAMER
E Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 3 N-ZE-—F—F—HkZ2EBRHBE2
January 2021 FEERMAEM
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date 4 WEFTERESZ#HAB FEERBE
to be determined o
Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs TPt 2 Fia] RSB E A5
mentioned below, the directors of the Company anticipate LRGN NATIESTEH - JEFRAA
that the application of all other new and amendments to H =] R &I BB B EER RN
HKFRSs will have no material impact on the consolidated AR ARTeHEEMBHRFTEKREK

financial statements in the foreseeable future. ==
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(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by
a customer. In addition, HKFRS 16 requires sales and
leaseback transactions to be determined based on the
requirements of HKFRS 15 as to whether the transfer of
the relevant asset should be accounted as a sale. HKFRS
16 also includes requirements relating to subleases and
lease modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are
removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a
model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees,
except for short-term leases and leases of low value
assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured
at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is
adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the
impact of lease modifications, amongst others. For the
classification of cash flows, the Group currently presents
upfront prepaid lease payments as investing cash flows
in relation to leasehold lands for owned use and those
classified as investment properties while other operating
lease payments are presented as operating cash flows.
Upon application of HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation
to lease liability will be allocated into a principal and an
interest portion which will be presented as financing cash
flows by the Group.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

3.

R

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

Under HKAS 17, the Group does not recognise any asset
and finance lease liability where the Group is a lessee. The
application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential changes
in classification of these assets depending on whether the
Group presents right-of-use assets separately or within
the same line item at which the corresponding underlying
assets would be presented if they were owned.

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable
to lessor, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward
the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and
continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as
an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS
16.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of RMB5,979,000 (2017:
RMB1,981,000) as disclosed in note 35. A preliminary
assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet
the definition of a lease. Upon application of HKFRS
16, the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability in respect of all these leases unless
they qualify for low value or short-term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable
rental deposits paid of RMB698,000 (2017: 768,000) and
refundable rental deposits received of RMB7,742,000
(2017: 7,716,000) as rights and obligations under leases
to which HKAS 17 applies. Based on the definition of
lease payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits are
not payments relating to the right to use the underlying
assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts of such
deposits may be adjusted to amortised cost. Adjustments
to refundable rental deposits paid would be considered
as additional lease payments and included in the carrying
amount of right-of-use assets. Adjustments to refundable
rental deposits received would be considered as advance
lease payments.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=—F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

The application of new requirements may result in
changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure as
indicated above. The Group intends to elect the practical
expedient to apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that were
previously identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and
HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease and not apply this standard to contracts
that were not previously identified as containing a lease
applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4. Therefore, the
Group will not reassess whether the contracts are, or
contain a lease which already existed prior to the date of
initial application. Furthermore, the Group intends to elect
the modified retrospective approach for the application
of HKFRS 16 as lessee and will recognise the cumulative
effect of initial application to opening retained profits
without restating comparative information.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

A N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

4.

K b

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies,
which are described in note 2, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
The following are the critical judgements, apart from
those involving estimations (see below), that the directors
of the Company have made in the process of applying
the Group's accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

CZEAEE] - PSE DN R

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(i)

(ii)

Income taxes and deferred taxation

Some subsidiaries of the Group operate in the
PRC and are subject to income tax in the PRC.
Significant judgement is required in determining
the provision for income tax. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such difference will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provision in the
period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers to be probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
The outcome of their actual utilisation may be
different.

PRC land appreciation taxes

Some subsidiaries of the Group are subject to
land appreciation taxes in the PRC. However, the
implementation and settlement of these taxes
varies among various tax jurisdictions in cities of
the PRC, and those subsidiaries have not finalised
all of their land appreciation taxes calculation and
payments with any local tax authorities in the PRC.
Accordingly, significant judgement is required in
determining the amount of the land appreciation
taxes. The Group recognised these land
appreciation taxes based on management’s best
estimates according to the interpretation of the tax
rules. The final tax outcome could be different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, and these
differences will impact the income tax expense and
tax provisions in the periods in which such taxes
have been finalised with local tax authorities.

EXRR (8)

MRS ERBR
(i) FEHREEHE

(ii)

AEBzETHBRRNPEZE
B BT EEEMSR - &
BEMSHBBRAFELEKRH
B - FEEXRTBET  TEX
FRFAETAZRRET LY
RHIETE » HZFEFHMBEGEED
BeRERICENRBRIE
2 FRzERerEETS
HAfR) 2 PTG TR MR AT A TR A -

el & 22 B 58 4% B P RE B) A R 2R 8
AR A DA S E B 2 B B B IR
iR AIBRERE TERER
EBREBENRETERBAEE - &
REMERIEEE -

7] 1 o B E B
AREBzETHEBRRAZRT
B+ IR EH - A - BEAHEA
MERMEEETFEZHETTE
M RLAEBE AR - %
M R B i R A ) o B 4 77
ISR E R IR EN G HE
BRENKERE - Fitt - A&E
AR BAHIE AR E L1 igE
MEE - NEERBEEERE
HBHBRAREAIEREEL R
REM BRULFELHMEE
Bi o ST A] aEA BN &V
BT MARZRGTEHRE
Hb 75 T 755 4 B i RE vk = AR A AT
SRS RRRE -

Talent Property Group Limited Annual Report 2018
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(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (& —F—/\F+—-H=1+—HIFFZ)

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising
from investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the directors of the
Company have reviewed the Group’s investment
property portfolios and concluded that the Group’s
investment properties in the PRC are held under
a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment properties over time. As a result,
the Group is subject to income taxes on the rental
income of its investment properties in the PRC
and deferred taxes on changes in fair value of the
investment properties are recognised.

Estimates for net realisable value of properties
under development and completed properties
held for sale

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amounts
of properties under development and completed
properties held for sale are approximately
RMB1,860,035,000 (2017: approximately
RMB1,286,634,000) and approximately
RMB288,038,000 (2017:
RMB347,154,000),
assesses the carrying amounts of properties

approximately
respectively. The Group

under development and completed properties
held for sale according to their net realisable value
based on the realisability of these properties. Net
realisable value for properties under development
is determined by reference to management’s
estimates of the selling price based on prevailing
market conditions, less applicable variable selling
expenses and the anticipated costs to completion
(including land costs). Net realisable value for
completed properties held for sale is determined by
reference to management’s estimates of the selling
price based on prevailing market conditions, less
applicable variable selling expenses.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=—F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

Bt A B R EA MG THE

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

(v)

(vi)

Impairment of interests in associate

The Group’s management assesses regularly
in determining whether there are indicators of
impairment in interests in associate.

Based on the Group’s assessment there is no
requirement to provide for any allowance for
impairment in value of interests in associate. The
Group’s carrying amount of interests in associate
at 31 December 2018 was approximately
RMB501,515,000 (2017:
RMB474,096,000).

approximately

Estimation of fair value of investment
properties

Investment properties are revalued at the end of
each reporting period based on the appraised
market value provided by independent professional
qualified valuers. Such valuations were based
on certain assumptions, which are subject to
uncertainty and might materially differ from the
actual results. In making the estimation, information
from current prices in an active market for similar
properties is considered and assumptions that are
mainly based on market conditions existing at the
end of each reporting period are used.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4. BRI U RE XL FHE
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION ERIR (&)
UNCERTAINTY (continued)
Critical accounting estimates and assumptions AREEIT T RER
(continued) (&)

(vii) BRRIEREFYRZEEAL

(viij Recognition and allocation of construction

cost on properties under development

Development costs of properties are recorded
as properties under development during the
construction stage and will be transferred
to completed properties held for sale upon
completion. Apportionment of these costs will
be recognised in the profit or loss upon the
recognition of the sale of the properties. Before the
final settlement of the development costs and other
costs relating to the sale of properties, these costs
are accrued by the Group based on management’s
best estimate.

When developing properties, the Group may divide
the development projects into phases. Specific
costs directly related to the development of a
phase are recorded as the cost of such phase.
Costs that are common to phases are allocated to
individual phases based on the estimated saleable
area of the entire project.

When the final settlement of costs and the related
cost allocation is different from the initial estimates,
any increase or decrease in the development costs
and other costs would affect the profit or loss in
future years.

HARMEEEERAT 2018F Fif

7z
Y% 2 RN RS A RE 8,
BERPYE  WHRIE TRER
ERELEZERIVE - ZF
AR Z DR D RIERIHE W
RRIERER - RE5&xE—H
FENAREEEYEERE
MR AN E] - Bt AR AREEIR
BEEEZ &EMGTFAKK o

AEERBERYEFAFHRIE
BoHET - EREZERRX
B Z B ER AR RZ I 2K
Ao Z{EHREMEREZKARE
EEBEB 2 AT EEEE DA
EfERIERY -

148 14 — BB P 2 BB R AR
B A A5 5 B2 1% 4 1 3 B R
R BER AR B AR 2
Y BRI B -



CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

GE R DSE PN

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

(viii) Revenue recognition from sales of products

(ix)

with no alternative use at a point in time

Under HKFRS 15, control of the asset is transferred
over time when the Group’s performance does
not create an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date at
all times during the contract period. Significant
judgment is required in determining whether in
the customary practice such right to payment is
enforceable. The Group has based on the terms of
the contract and considered the relevant local laws
and the customary practice that apply to those
relevant contracts and an opinion from the Group’s
internal legal counsel. Based on the assessment by
the Group’s management, the terms of the relevant
sales contracts do not create an enforceable right
to payment for the Group at all times during the
contract period. Accordingly, the sales of products
with no alternative use is considered to be
performance obligation satisfied at a point in time.

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL
for the trade receivables. The provision matrix is
based on aging as groupings of various debtors
that have similar loss patterns. The provision
rates are based on the Group’s historical default
rates taking into consideration forward-looking
information that is reasonable and supportable
available without undue costs or effort. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default rates
are reassessed and changes as the forward-looking
information are considered. In addition, trade
receivables with significant balances and credit
impaired, if any, are assessed for ECL individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL and the
Group’s trade receivables are disclosed in notes 2,
21 and 41(c).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. oFEHR
The Group is organised into three (2017: three) business AEERY=ZFE(ZZT—tF: =@
units, based on which information is prepared and BN WAEERERSE K&K
reported to the Group’s chief decision makers, for the EMREBEMNRREEER KRS
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of B ZREARSE ©
performance.
Information of the Group’s operating and reportable KREB 2 EBNAIRE DI 2 ERTITR
segments are shown as follows: mr
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-_Z—-N\E+-A=+—HLEE
Property Property Property
development investment management Total
MEBR MERE MEER HE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBBTT ARETT ARETT ARETR

Reportable segment revenue A& 5 Bl %
Revenue g 250,891 17,520 10,257 278,668

Timing of revenue recognition B&EEEEMEERE
for those within the scope of  15% &1 E U A fhFE

HKFRS 15 R
A point in time —[Er5 2, 250,891 - - 250,891
Over time iz - - 10,257 10,257
Revenue from other source: H AR :
Rental income HEWA - 17,520 - 17,520
Total PR 250,891 17,520 10,257 278,668
Reportable segment profit/ W% 2 WEF

(loss) (E8) 130,634 (30,801) 5,910 105,743
Share of result of an associate ~ Dh—FEBL A RIEEG 23,119
Finance costs &R R (6,774)
Income tax expenses FTERAY (40,510)
Unallocated expenses RAOBEFHZ (43,979)
Unallocated income AOBWA 23,288
Profit for the year FEERF 60,887
Reportable segment assets AmENBEE 2,267,194 738,806 3,382 3,009,382
Corporate assets NABE 610,907
Group assets EEEE 3,620,289
Additions to non-current FRRE ZIERE

segment assets during the year & E 1,541 1,933 - 3,474
Reportable segment liabilities AIREDEBE 830,339 30,285 3,508 864,132
Corporate liabilities RElBE 792,068
Group liabilities EEAE 1,656,200
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R M A

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=—F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. oHEHE )
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-_Z—+tHE+-A=+—HLEE
Property Property Property
development investment  management Total
MEER MERE MEERE s

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARETT AREFT

Reportable segment revenue AJRE 7 U
External revenue HNRURFS 700,609 19,574 6,832 727,015
Reportable segment profit/ AIRE D IR

(loss) (B18) 226,984 (125) (6,816) 220,043
Share of result of an associate ~ H{h—REIBEE A FIEE 585
Finance costs AR (6,727)
Income tax expenses PSR = (129,995)
Unallocated expenses AR % (31,802)
Unallocated income RABA 5,311
Profit for the year FE A 58,415
Reportable segment assets AmENHEE 1,944,501 751,187 8,495 2,704,183
Corporate assets DEBE 593,527

Group assets EEEE 3,297,710
Additions to non-current FARBEZIERE

segment assets during the year & E 1,407 6,661 - 8,068
Reportable segment liabilities AmENHaE 649,590 273,100 5,263 927,953
Corporate liabilities REBE 475,184
Group liabilities EEaE 1,403,137

Talent Property Group Limited Annual Report 2018




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

A N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

There was no single customer individually contributed over
10% of the Group’s total revenue during the year ended
31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

All the Group’s revenues from external customers is
derived from the Mainland China.

Non-current assets (excluding financial instruments) of the
Group are divided into the following geographical areas:

DEER (@)
HE_Z—)\Ft+_A=+—B1It#F
B fEE TP AERNYAEE B
HBERBEI0% (ZT—+HF &) -

AEBREIATF 228l mETRE
B A3

AEBZIRBEE (TEEEZHTA)
DISPAT R

2018 2017

—EBE-N\FE —Z=—+F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT AREFIT

Hong Kong (domicile) (note) &5 (EBE) (K2E) 14 20
Mainland China Fh ] (A 3 1,266,350 1,263,198
1,266,364 1,263,218

note:

The place of domicile is determined based on the location of
central management.

The geographical location of customers is based on
the location at which the services were provided or the
location of properties sold. The geographical locations
of the non-current assets and interests of associate are
based on the physical location of the assets and location
of operation of the associate respectively.

HARMEEEERAT 2018F Fif

Hiat

EBAESDRETFRAEEBUEHRERE

E o

BEPEMIAREIREHE EVER
M RERE - FRBDEE LB E QA
BTN I D BIIA B E K2 R El&
BRGZBER B RELE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R M A

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

N2z

REVENUE 6.
The Group’s principal activities are disclosed in Note 1 to REEETEXZBHRZERE W B®
these consolidated financial statements. Turnover of the K1 - REBBEB 2 W IR
Group is the revenue from these activities. Set out below SEEEBE KEAZPLPEOKREEDH
is the reconciliation of the revenue from contracts with BRPTH BFIENEREH| AT
customers with the amounts disclosed in the segment
information:
2018 2017
—E-NFE —E—LtF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FIT AREFIT
Sales of properties HE W 250,891 700,609
Properties management fees MEEEE 10,257 6,832

Revenue from contracts with customers REEZFAHWE (BEBYK

(within the scope of HKFRS 15) HEXEDF15FEER) 261,148 707,441
Gross rental income from investment WEME S WABE ((TE
properties (outside the scope of HKFRS 15) REBI B ELERIFE 155
HEAR) 17,520 19,574
Total #st 278,668 727,015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

6. REVENUE (continued) 6. W= #)
Transaction price allocated to the remaining BRXEEBEIREEZEFASANTHNEER
performance obligation for contracts with BHEE
customers
The transaction price in respect of outstanding contracts RZZE-NEFE+_A=1+—8 " %%
with customers as at 31 December 2018 allocated to the HEZRFIIUNATKELHNME @ 9/
remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially ERBBAET (KmEIBoOKRME)
unsatisfied) as at 31 December 2018 and the expected MR ZEREDWEHTERBR T
timing of recognising revenue are as follows: TR -
Sales of
properties
HEM =
RMB'000
ARETFT
Within one year —FRN 104,534
More than one year but not more than two years A —FE D RRF 243,556
348,090
For the sales of properties, the performance obligation is TIHEYEMmMS  NYEIEHEEER
satisfied upon the transfer of the control of the properties NEFEXRSWEEEENKREE  FH
and the Group has fully received the consideration of the MEENE(T - ¥ EN TSR
properties sold. The expected timing of title transfer is NEEZWHETP 5

stated in the sales and purchases agreements.
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A R M A

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=—F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

OTHER REVENUE AND NET INCOME/ 7. HMWBRKVA (HE) F

(LOSS) ]
2018 2017
—B-N\F —ZT—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FIT AREFIT
Other revenue Hfth g 2%
Interest income on financial assets BEEAAARZemMEEY
carried at amortised costs FEWA 1,364 3,013
Interest income on loan to an associate LT HBERARERZ
FESKA 3,262 589
Management fee income from an associate RE—HBE R ERE
WA 12,345 187
Others (note) HAth (H1:2) 18,033 2,572
Other net income/(loss) Hag A (BE) B8
Reversal of impairment losses of completed BOBIERERRIME L
properties held of sale RE 18 830 -
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary B —REWB AR EMZEE (492) -
35,342 6,361

note: e -
The amount represents certain one-off items including reversal
of over-provided compensations and claims of RMB7,583,000,
reversal of management fee upon termination of property
management agreement on sold properties of RMB3,639,000 and
waiver of interest payable of RMB4,716,000 on a borrowing from
the controlling shareholder of an associate after mutual agreement
with the Group.

ZREAET RMIEE > BIEROBEE
HHENRRE ARK?,583,000T ' HmE
ERMERVECERRILEMBRTES A
R #53,639,0007T f 7S 2N £ [ 82 — R Bt R
AIEAR AR R HEEK B R R R R R A TR
[1& 15 SRR FE S LB A R #64,716,0007T ©
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E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. RMERA

2018 2017
—EB-N\NF —ZT—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARETT

Interest on bank borrowing IRITERZFE 4,341 12,707
Interest on other borrowing from an associate 8 —M#E A a2
HtEsm 2z E 2,433 2,433
Interest on other borrowing from a financial KE R REE
institutions H A AR M A 23,835 3,294
Less: amount capitalised to properties under & : EXN(L AERPWES
development ko] (23,835) -
6,774 18,434
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R M A

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 9. KRBANEF

2018 2017
—E-NFE —E—LF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTFT ARETFT

Profit before income tax is arrived at & TS %4 BTV 7
after charging/(crediting): Bk (FFA) -
Cost of properties sold B EWERAR 179,273 522,301
Cost of service for property management W) 1R RIS A AN 7,885 7,305
Allowance for expected credit losses TEREEEIE 2 B 6,182 -
Tax and other levies HIa R i B 6,324 12,049
Depreciation on plant and equipment (note (a)) E MREITE (H:E (@) 1,547 576
Operating lease charges in respect of THREFEAEHET S
land and buildings 2,131 2,508
Auditors’ remuneration Z BN &
— audit services — BEHRD 800 780
— non-audit services — FEEET RS
— Interim review — RS 337 347
- Others —Hm 51 130
Reversal of impairment loss of O ERPYEZRERE
properties under development (81,518) (82,772)
Rental income from investment properties REMERS WA & &
less direct outgoings (note (b)) X (Kt Db)) (14,413) (16,501)
notes: Wit -
(a) Depreciation expenses (a) ERX
Depreciation expenses of approximately RMB1,547,000 PEM SN ARK,547,0000T (=
(2017: approximately RMB576,000) have been included in T—tF: HARKES576,0000T) B
administrative expenses. FTAITHER -
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8 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued) 9. KBIANER (&)
Notes: (continued) Mt - (4&)
(b) Rental income from investment properties (b) BREYWEHS WA
Direct outgoings incurred for rental income from HEWERSCWAMELEEEZERX
investment properties amounted to approximately 45 AN R¥3,107,000T (ZF —
RMB3,107,000 (2017: RMB3,073,000). F : AR%3,073,0007T) °
10. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 10. EERAMX (BIEESH
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ D)
EMOLUMENTS)
2018 2017
—E-N\FE —Z—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AREFIT
Wages and salaries IENH® 23,166 18,452
Pension costs — defined contribution plans RIRE A — TGS 1,904 1,041
25,070 19,493

HARMEEEERAT 2018F Fif



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 8
A R M A

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=—F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 1. EEMERSREE AEFHMHN
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS
11.1 Directors’ emoluments 111 EEME
Executive directors and independent non-executive HITESERBYIFRITES
directors:
2018 —E-NEF
Salaries, Contribution
allowances & to defined
Directors’  benefits in Discretionary  contribution
fees kind bonus plan Total
e 28 EBHR
EZHe  RENAE MERA HE i @it

RMB'000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARETE ARETZ ARETr ARETZ  ARETZ

Executive directors HTEE

Mr. Zhang Gao Bin RRELE - 2,912 - 15 2,927

Mr. Luo Zhangguan BERLE - 281 8 40 329

Independent non-executive BUHTES

directors

Mr. Lo Wai Hung BRELE 223 - - - 223

Mr. Chan Chi Mong, Hopkins B2t 192 - - - 192

Mr. Mak Yiu Tong TRREE 192 - - - 192
607 3,193 8 55 3,863
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% NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 11. EEMERGREEASHMH
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S (%)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
11.1 Directors’ emoluments (continued) 111 EEME (8)
Executive directors and independent non-executive WITEENBIUIERITES
directors:
2017 —E—tF
Salaries, Contribution
allowances & to defined
Directors’ benefits in Discretionary  contribution
fees kind bonus plan Total
gt 2 TREN
E2We  REVNE BTt HEES @t

RMBOO0  AMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
NERTE  ANERTLT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETR

Executive directors HITES

Mr. Zhang Gao Bin REBLE - 2,877 130 16 3,023

Mr. Luo Zhangguan BETRE - 284 9 38 331

Independent non-executive BUFHTES

directors

Mr. Lo Wai Hung BRELE 228 - - - 228

Mr. Chan Chi Mong, Hopkins BrE% 108 - - _ 108

Mr. Mak Yiu Tong BRRELE 198 - - - 198
624 3,161 139 54 3,978

There were no arrangements under which a director BESRNFAMEFELREXR

waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during EREEAME 2L (ZF—

the year (2017: Nil). +F |
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R M A

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=—F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 11. EEMERSREEAEHMH

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S (&)

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

11.2 Five highest paid individuals 11.2 ABREHAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the AEEFRNRAEZRFALTEE
highest in the Group for the year included two Ma (ZE—+F: WMB) EE
(2017: two) directors whose emoluments are BEZMSERMEFI112HR2
reflected in the analysis presented in note 11.1. DMARKE - FAEMNHBT=H
The emoluments payable to the remaining three “E—+F =) ALz
(2017: three) individuals during the year are as mr
follows:

2018 2017

—EBE-NFE —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFIT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REWHE 2,431 1,872
Retirement scheme contributions IRIREFHEIHE K 98 77

2,529 1,949
The emoluments fell within the following bands: ZEWNEBRT3AR

Number of individuals
EBE A"
2018 2017
—E-NF ZIZT—tF

Emolument bands B < 48 B
RMB1,000,001-RMB1,500,000 AER#1,000,0017TE

AR #1,500,0007T 1 1
RMB500,001-RMB1,000,000 AR®500,001LE

AR #1,000,0007T 1 -
RMBO-RMB500,000 ARBOTLE

AR #500,0007T 1 2
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3 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HARBRENE

A N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

12.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

12. FIEHiBEX

2018 2017
—E-NFE —ZT—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AREFIT
Current tax BPERBE 18
The PRC — Corporate Income Tax R — TSR
— Tax for the year — REEFIB 16,966 127,835
— Under/(over) provision in respect —BEFEERETR
of prior years (iBzEHE) 435 (1,120)
17,401 126,715
The PRC — Land appreciation tax PR — LI ER
— Current year — KFE 31,235 77,719
Deferred tax (Note 30) ELEBLE (H77£30)
— Credit for the year - rEEEE (4,791) (84,313)
— (Over)/under provision in respect - BAFE (BEEE)/
of prior years BiETE (3,335) 9,874
(8,126) (74,439)
Total income tax expense RSB 8% 40,510 129,995
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12.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R M A

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

12. BB @)

Reconciliation between tax expenses and accounting MERYEREAMEFE S G2
profit at applicable tax rates: K -
2018 2017
ZE-NF —ZT—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFIT
Profit before taxation Br B4 A g A 101,397 188,410
Income tax at the PRC income tax rate of 25% &2 B P55 1 £ 25%
SEZFEMH 25,349 47,102
Tax effect of different taxation rates in Mg EERTRME 2
other tax jurisdictions M E 431 424
(Over)/under provision in prior years BEFE (BEEE),
BETE (2,900) 8,754
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue AT WS 2 G2 (4,334) (422)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AT S o MG & 3,568 6,199
Tax effect of prior year’s unrecognised tax FRFERABAEFERER
losses utilised this year MEBECHETE (2,631) -
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RERREARIEEE 2
recognised Mg E 4,077 1,721
Tax effect of share of result of DME—HBE AR
an associate M2 (5,780) (146)
Tax effect of impairment of assets BERBEZHEZE (696) -
PRC land appreciation tax B+ IR E R 31,235 77,719
Effect of PRC land appreciation tax AR IB BT 2 B (7,809) (21,473)
Land appreciation tax on fair value REVERFEEHEER
changes on investment properties T HbIEET = 8,172
Others Efh - 1,945
Income tax expense Frig®if = 40,510 129,995
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

7 N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

12.

R

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill
2017 (the “Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March
2018 and was gazetted on the following day. Under the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million
of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at
8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at
16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be
taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The directors of the Company considered the amount
involved upon implementation of the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime as insignificant to the consolidated financial
statements. Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5%
of the estimated assessable profit for both years.

The income tax provision of the Group in respect of
operations in Mainland China has been calculated at the
rate of 25% (2017: 25%) on the estimated assessable
profits for the year, based on the existing legislation,
interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

PRC land appreciation tax is levied at progressive rate
ranging from 30% to 60% (2017: 30% to 60%) on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales
of properties less deductible expenditures including lease
charges of land use rights and all properties development
expenditures.

Furthermore, in accordance with the Detailed
Implementation Regulations for implementation of the new
Corporate Income Tax Law issued on 6 December 2007,
a 10% withholding tax shall be levied on the dividends
remitted by the companies established in the PRC to their
foreign investors starting from 1 January 2008. Dividends
coming from the profits generated by the PRC subsidiaries
after 1 January 2008 shall be subject to this withholding
tax. As at 31 December 2018, the earnings of the Group’s
PRC companies are approximately RMB998,790,000
(2017: approximately RMB767,571,000). As at 31
December 2018, the Group has not accrued any
withholding income tax for the earnings of its PRC
subsidiaries (2017: nil), because the Group has control
over these subsidiaries and management does not have
an immediate plan to distribute earnings from its PRC
subsidiaries generated in the foreseeable future.

EEEBRDAT 2018FF#HK

12.

FrE®HBE s @)
—E-N\E=A=-+—0 BEIE
EEB(-T—+ERE (B (B+
5) EHER) ([EFIER]) - 3| AR
BEBH - GHERR-_T—N\E=5
—+NBBEAKRY A RATIE - FE
BEBREET  FAMEHIEEHES
02 T T B0 % R 45 128.25% 1
BERMT - BB E ST e RS
16.5%H) T R 4T - REAFEHBA
6 11 B 2 B B B S 4 4008 F16.5% )
BHE-

=3

ARBEFERB/IITHNE R ARG PP
TREGEMBRRPLITEK - FE
MSB IR EM B FE 2 At ERTUS
MIFIR16. 5% KREHH -

7N 52 B 5t B 3 SR 4 L 2 P AS B
BIORIBEAFREMATERT RN - £3R
BIED - e REHIER T R25% (=
T—HF:25%) MERFE -

PR HIEERBELIBEBREZER
(BISHEMERB IR ANRES (82
FimFEREREBRANRMEMEDS
B ) BHBHEMREIONE60% (ZF
—4F  30%E60%) HUR -

AN BER_ZEZLF+-ABHE
M2 EEMEREAERME B =F
ENFE—A—HBHE  EFRBEKILZAF
mMENEREEE RS BZKI0%
AR - REFEMBARTN-ZZZEN
F—A— BB 2R B ABK
PLIEFENM c R—E—-N\E+-_A=+
—H AEBHREARNBMHARE
998,790,000T (T —+F : HAR
¥767,571,0007T) e R ZF — )\ F +
ZRA=+—H  AEEWEREF M
BARZAFNABBMMESHIERE (=
T—+tF:8) AXEBRHEAEZEM
BARMIEHEAEEE L EARETE
RA] AR ERETHENBARZE
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13.

14,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=—F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

EARNINGS PER SHARE 13.
Basic earnings per share

The calculation of earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to the owners of the Company of
approximately RMB69,625,000 (2017: approximately
RMB63,667,000) and on the weighted average of
10,293,136,554 (2017: 10,293,136,554) ordinary shares
in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share

There was no difference between basic and diluted
earnings per share as the Company did not have any
dilutive potential shares outstanding during the year ended
31 December 2018 and 2017.

BREF

BREXREF
FRRAEFTRE AR QAR A ARG F
# AN R#69,625,0007T (—ZF —+4F :
# AR #63,667,0007T) N FERNE T
T MA% 2 INEEF 15 810,293,136,554 %
(ZZ — + 4 :10,293,136,5540%) 5t

o

i

SRBEREF
BHE_ZT-\FRZE—+F+ZA=
T—HIEFE - ARA R A EE(E
EETEINNEER G - SRERNRE
SERAIEER o

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. BREWE
2018 2017
—BE-NFE —ZT—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANB¥FT AREFT
At 1 January n—HA—H 741,000 725,000
Additions RE 1,933 6,661
(Decrease)/increase in fair value DNEE CRL),/ 8 (38,933) 9,339
At 31 December W+=—A=+—AH 704,000 741,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

7 N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

14.

R

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The analysis of the net carrying amount of investment
properties according to lease periods as at 31 December
were as follows:

BEWME &)
BEWMER+ - A=+ RRBEE
EEEAFMT :

2018 2017
—EBE-N\F —Z—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FiT AREFT
Outside Hong Kong, held on: REBRINGE -
Lease of between 10 to 50 years HENT10=50F 704,000 741,000

The fair values of the investment properties of the
Group as at 31 December 2018 were assessed by B.l.
Appraisals Limited, an independent qualified valuer. B.I.
Appraisals Limited is a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors. For financial reporting purpose, discussions
and review of valuation processes and results are held
amongst the Group’s senior management and officers
of relevant operation departments and the independent
professional valuer. The results are being directly reported
back to the executive directors of the Company.

The valuation for completed investment properties was
arrived at by considering the capitalised income derived
from the existing tenancies and the reversionary potential
of the properties or, where appropriate by reference to
market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties
in the similar locations and conditions.

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes
are measured using the fair value model and are classified
and accounted for as investment properties.

Certain of the Group’s investment properties are leased

to third parties under operating leases, further summary
details of which are included in note 35.

EEEBRDAT 2018FF#HK
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14.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=—F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

As at 31 December 2018, investment properties of
approximately RMB665,000,000 (2017: RMB702,000,000)
were pledged to banks to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group to the extent of RMB200,000,000
(2017: RMB170,000,000).

The following table presents the Group’s investment
properties measured at fair value in the consolidated
statements of financial position in accordance with the
fair value hierarchy. The hierarchy groups the investment
properties into three levels based on the relative reliability
of significant inputs used in measuring the fair value of
the investment properties. The fair value hierarchy has the
following levels:

— Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets;

— Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset,
and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market
data are not available; and

- Level 3: inputs for the asset that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

14.

REWE (3)
RZE—N\F+-A=+—8 HAR
¥665,000,0007C (ZZE —+EF: AR
#702,000,0007T0) & ¥ % B K 17
TIRIT - UEUSASBER 2 —RIRTT
A& A R #200,000,0007T (=& —+
F : AR¥170,000,0007T) °

TREJNARERBERFERRINGES
MBGARRIBAFEFEZRENE
RENERBEIEZSFREVERFE
FrAEANBABIR 2 HE A 2R IEAR
MR R=F - RFERNBHEATH
A

- F—4: ARBEZERMIS®
B CREAE)

- B F-RAEREmENIN
REEBEMSHARE L&
FEREREZBR 2B AR -
BRABR B ABIBLET SN
B R

-  FZAC XEUBEMEMSE
BEREZEEBARE (BEE
RZBARE) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (& —F—/\F+—-H=1+—HIFFZ)

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14. REWE (&)
The Group’s investment properties stated at fair value in REJRELH  NEBTLHLE BT
the consolidated statements of financial position at each ZURAFEVNEREZIEEMES BUATA
reporting date is grouped into the fair value hierarchy as FERR
follows:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B et b #mat

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
ARETT ARMTRH ARETT AREFT

Investment properties located FH B N Y

in Guangzhou, the PRC WEYE - - 704,000 704,000
At 31 December 2018 RZE—NF
+=-—A=+—H - - 704,000 704,000
During the year ended 31 December 2018, there were no BHE-_ZT-)\F+ZA=+—8HL*HF
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or B E—MEE_HoBTEER M
out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers FE_FBESAEAREL - AEBR 2
between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the BEAREEL C RERHRERLTE
reporting period in which they occur. Bz R o
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E— F_M E=H 4t

RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETFT

Investment properties located A H B N Y
in Guangzhou, the PRC KEME - - 741,000 741,000

At 31 December 2017 N_ZE—+F
+=—RA=+—H - - 741,000 741,000
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14.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R M A

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

2018

14.

REWME (&)

E=RATFEHBRN

—B-N\F

Relationship of unobservable

Valuation techniques ~ Unobservable input Range inputs to fair value
fhEHRT BEBE BANE §E ®IBEH\BERLATENER
Completed investment Market approach - Market rent RMB70-RMB270  The higher the market rent,

properties in Guangzhou,
the PRC
HEEMNERTRENR

2017

investment method

mi5E - REAA

misEE

Reversionary yield

185

W

i

per square meter
BYARAREIOLE

ARB270T
5.75%-6%

—B—tF

the higher the value

The higher the reversionary yield,
the lower the value

EBkaxEs  ATELE

Relationship of unobservable

Valuation techniques  Unobservable input Range inputs to fair value
HERD BEBRZBAYE §E EiIBEEZB\HEEATENER
Completed investment Market approach - Market rent RMB70-RMB300  The higher the market rent,

properties in Guangzhou,
the PRC
PEENERIRENE

investment method

Mgk - REA

mislE

Reversionary yield

ERREE

per square meter

FEFRKAREIOLE
ARH300T
5.5%-6.25%

the higher the value

FERANE - ATENE

The higher the reversionary yield,
the lower the value
ERREEES  ATEWE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14. REVYE 1)
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements F=ZRAFEFEER (&)
(continued)
The movements during the year in the balance of these FA - BE=ZRATEAENEAREEH N
Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows: N

2018 2017
—E-NFE —Z—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTFT ARETFIT

Investment properties located R BN BY

in Guangzhou, the PRC: WEME
At 1 January n—A—H 741,000 725,000
Additions NE 1,933 6,661
(Decrease)/increase in fair value NEE CRd),/ 1 (38,933) 9,339
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 704,000 741,000
Fair value adjustment of investment properties is REDMENAFERABRRGEEBZERHE
recognised in the line item “fair value changes on thEEmBARERZ [REMEZATE
investment properties” on the face of the consolidated BE) | wR o

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

15. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. BMEKZHE
Furniture,
fixture
Leasehold and office Motor

improvements equipment vehicles Total
HEWE B #E

£ RBAERE "E #st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ANEETFT ANRETFT  ARETT ARETT

Cost

At 1 January 2017
Exchange realignment
Additions

At 31 December 2017 and
1 January 2018
Exchange realignment
Additions
Written off

At 31 December 2018

Deduct: accumulated
depreciation and
impairment loss

At 1 January 2017

Exchange realignment
Depreciation

At 31 December 2017 and
1 January 2018
Exchange realignment
Depreciation
Eliminated on written off

At 31 December 2018

Net book amount

At 31 December 2018

At 31 December 2017

A

R-Z—+F—A—H 7,171 2,083 3,358 12,612
b 5 3% @) (9) - (13)
ANE - 275 1,132 1,407

RZE—+F+-A=1+—H
k—E—-NF—HF—H 7,167 2,349 4,490 14,006
EEEE 3 7 - 10
B - 357 1,184 1,541
s - (45) (268) (313)

R-_ZE-NF+=-A=+—H 7,170 2,668 5,406 15,244

W RITERAESSE

R-_ZE—+&—A—H 7,136 1,875 1,527 10,538
B i 3% 2) ©) - (1)
& 8 73 495 576

R-ZE—+F+-A=+—H
k—E—-N\F—HF—H 7,142 1,939 2,022 11,103
ESEEE 1 7 - 8
e 8 269 1,270 1,547
B R 8 - (45) (268) (313)

RZZE-N\F+-A=+—H 7,151 2,170 3,024 12,345

IRMEFE

R-E—\F+-A=+—H 19 498 2,382 2,899

R_Z—+F+=-A=+—H 25 410 2,468 2,903
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

A N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

16.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries at 31 December 2018 and

31 December 2017 were as follows:

16. AME AR 2=
RZE—N\F+-_A=+—BE=_F—
+E+-A=+—H KBRAZFHE

LU
Proportion of
ownership interest
HEERLA
Held by a
Subsidiary
Place/country of Group’s  Held by the of the
incorporation/ Issued share capital/ ~ effective Company Company
registration registered capital interest KRR Principal activities and
Name SmAYL/ ERITRER/ 58 NS WEAE  places of operations
£ dMeE/BX  EafER ERER BB BE  TEXBREZLE
Canton Million Investments British Virgin US$1 100% 100% - Investment holding in
Limited (i) Islands (BVI) 13T Hong Kong
RBATES REBRERERR
(EBRRES])
Chengmai Shiyou Logistics Co. Ltd. ~ The PRC RMB10,000,000 51% - 51%  Inactive
(i), (i) & (iv) i AKH10,000,0007 ki3 37
BREEBMRERAE 1) - (i) Ky
Grandwil International Investment Hong Kong HK$1 100% - 100%  Inactive
Limited &R 1T HEXH
RHERRERRAR
Guangzhou City Liwan Qi Che Pei The PRC RMB10,000,000 100% - 100%  Property investment in
Factory Company Limited (i) & (i) ARKH10,000,0007 the PRC
BT 7L B IR ReERENERE
BRAR )&y
Guangzhou Fanzhan Trading The PRC RMB10,500,000 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Limited (i, (i) & (v) i ARH10,500,0007 in the PRC
BMWEESERDA () - (i) () RAERERERR
Guangzhou Fengmao Real Estate The PRC RMB10,000,000 100% - 100%  Investment holding in
Development Limited (i), (i) & ()~ F ARH10,000,0007 the PRC
BNEXEHEREARAR RAERERERR
(i)~ &)
Guangzhou Gaotian Investment The PRC RMB20,000,000 100% - 100%  Property development and
Limited (i) & (iv) M AR 20,000,0007 property investment in

ENBEREABRLE ()&
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R M A

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=—F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

16.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Proportion of
ownership interest

16. RHIB AT 2R (@)

BEERLA
Held by a
Subsidiary
Place/country of Group’s  Held by the of the
incorporation/ Issued share capital/  effective Company Company
registration registered capital interest ARQFZ  Principal activities and
Name R EAYA BRITRER/ 158 biONG WEBAR  places of operations
28 At Bx CHMEXR ERER BE BE  TERBREZHE
Guangzhou Guoyou Logistics The PRC RMBA48,880,000 51% - 51%  Property development
Co., Ltd. (i) & (iv) # AR 48,880,0007 in the PRC
BMBIMRBRAT 1)Ky RPEHENEER
Guangzhou Huangpu Caming Real The PRC US$13,000,000 100% - 100%  Property development in
Estate Development Limited H 13,000,000%7C the PRC
(), (i) & ) RPEHENEER
BNEREREEREARAR
R
Guangzhou Kinyang Real Estate The PRC RMB112,000,000 100% - 100%  Property development and
Development Co., Ltd. () & (i) & AR%112,000,0007C property investment in
BNRGREERRERAR the PRC
(& () ReERENFLRR
NERE
Guangzhou Shihui Commercial The PRC RMB1,500,000 100% - 100%  Inactive
Clubhouse Management i AR %1,500,0007 TEEN
Limited (i) & (iv)
BMTERZEMER
BRAR )&y
Guangzhou Talent Shoes Market The PRC RMB2,000,000 90% - 90%  Property management in
Management Limited (i) & () # AR 2,000,0007T the PRC
BMRREXTHELER RO ENEER
BRAR )&y
Guangzhou Xianzhuang Properties The PRC RMB33,000,000 100% - 100%  Property development in
Development Limited (i) & () # AR #33,000,0007 the PRC
BNBRRWEREBRAR ()£ RPEHENEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 16. RHB AT 2= (&)

Proportion of
ownership interest
BEERLA
Held by a
Subsidiary
Place/country of Group’s  Held by the of the
incorporation/ Issued share capital/ ~effective Company Company
registration registered capital interest KRFZ  Principal activities and
Name RilEAYA BRITRE/ r5E b\ WEAR  places of operations
£ HMiesBx CEmEXR ERER B"E BE TEXRBREFLE
Guangzhou Xinzhuo Properties The PRC RMB3,000,000 100% - 100%  Property management in
Management Limited (i), (i) & () AR #3,000,0007C the PRC
BMHENEERERAR RAEHENEER
(i)~ (i &)
Guangzhou Yijie Cleaning Company ~ The PRC RMB1,000,000 100% - 100%  Investment holding in the
Limited () & (i) i AR#1,000,0007C PRG and provision of
EMERZRZERAF (&) cleaning services
R B ERERRR
RitER RS
Guangzhou Yongxiang Investment The PRC RMB11,000,000 100% - 100%  Investment holding in
Limited (i) & (iv) i ARH11,000,0007 the PRC
BMARREBRDF )&y R B ERERR
Haikou Yicheng Industries Limited The PRC RMB10,000,000 100% - 100%  Investment holding in
(i, (i) & (iv) i AR H10,000,0007 the PRC
BOSREEBRAF () 1)Ky RAEIEREAR
Linyi Yougu Logistics Co. Ltd. The PRC RMB20,000,000 51% - 51%  Inactive
(i), (i), (iv) & (v i AR#20,000,0007 mEH
BTERMRABRAR 0 (i) (E()
Mark World Properties Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% - 100%  Investment holding in
EEEXARAH &R 18T the PRC
RABRERERR
Neo Bloom Limited (i) BVI US$1 100% - 100%  Investment holding in
HEFRAF (i) EERUHE e Hong Kong

REAUSREER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R M A

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=—F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 16. RHB AT 2= (&)

Proportion of
ownership interest

BRERLA
Held by a
Subsidiary
Place/country of Group’s  Held by the of the
incorporation/ Issued share capital/  effective Company Company
registration registered capital interest ARQFZ  Principal activities and
Name R EAYA BRITRER/ 158 biONG WEBAR  places of operations
28 At Bx CHMEXR ERER BE BE  TERBREZHE
Profit Venture Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% - 100%  Investment holding in
KEREFRAHF & 10,0007 the PRC
R ER AR
Smart Key Global Limited (i) BV US$1 100% - 100%  Investment holding in
RBRIES 1% Hong Kong
REBREREAR
Sure Win Inc. Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100% - 100%  Investment holding in
XBEXARAA i3 10087 the PRC
R EREREAR
Talent Central Limited (ii) BVI US$101 100% - 100%  Investment holding in
RBARES 101E1 Hong Kong
REBUEREAR
Talent Property Group Limited The PRC RMB50,000,000 100% - 100%  Investment holding in
(i, (i) & (v) # AR ¥50,000,00070 the PRC
MAWEREBRAR () - (i) Ry RebEREREAER
Talent Property Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% - 100%  Inactive
HRERRAR &k 10,0007 ki 37
Talent Prosper Corporation (i) BV US$2 100% - 100%  Investment holding in
KREEER LT (i) HEBERTHE 2ETT Hong Kong
REBRERAAR
Xuzhou Shiyou Logistics The PRC RMB20,000,000 51% - 51%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd. (i) & (iv) # A& #20,000,0007C in the PRC
RN BDRBRARDA ()£ RPEHENEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 16. RMIB AR ZfERE (&)
Proportion of
ownership interest
HRERLA
Held by a
Subsidiary
Place/country of Group’s  Held by the of the
incorporation/ Issued share capital/ ~effective Company Company
registration registered capital interest KRFZ  Principal activities and
Name Bl Ay BRIRA/ 150 b WEAR  places of operations
28 HMed/BxX EXER ERER =2 BE  TEEBRESME
Yangzhou Shiyou Logistics The PRC RMB10,000,000 51% - 51%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd. (i) & (i) H AK#10,000,0007C in the PRC
EMEBRERERDR ()£ RAERENZER
Yangzhou Shiyou Urban Development  The PRC RMB300,000,000 51% - 51%  Property development
Co., Ltd. (i, (i, (i) & (v) i AK%300,000,0007 in the PRC
BB TERERAR RPN SR
(i)~ )~ &)
Yunnan Xin Tian Culture Travel The PRC RMB50,000,000 60% - 60% Inactive
Development Limited (i), (i) & () & AR 50,000,0007 kS
EEMANLREERERAR
(i)~ (i &)
Notes: Bia -

(i)

(i

(ii)

(iv)

(vi)

The above companies are registered as a wholly foreign
owned enterprises under the PRC law.

The above companies are registered as limited companies
under the PRC law.

The statutory financial statements of these subsidiaries
are not audited by CHENG & CHENG LIMITED reflect
total net assets at approximately RMB1,235,300,000 and
turnover at approximately RMB6,548,000 constituting the
related consolidated totals.

The names of certain companies referred in
these consolidated financial statements represent
management’s best effort in translation of the Chinese
names of these companies as no English names have
been registered or available.

The company is incorporated and registered as a limited
company under the PRC law at 20 December 2018.

The company was deregistered at 26 December 2018.
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(i

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

B A BRE R BEREM AINEE
Bdxk -

il ARREFEDEREMASERA
Al e

% S R R A TE B R I I
BHS AR EHAARAREL - 8
BREFHEREXRED G ARAR
#) A\ R #61,235,300,0007T B2 A R ¥
6,548,0007T °

MR EEMK A B2 REXHE - K
RAMBREAMBAET AR ZAME
REBBENHZERRIZH XA
PIYEZ RX B -

N

NEIRZE—N\F+ZA =+ HIRE
Tﬁ%&%ﬁ%ﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ

o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R M A

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=—F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 16. RHB AT 2= (&)

The following table lists out the information relating to TRINEHEBEBEMNEE Y RAER QT
Guangzhou Guoyou Logistics Co., Ltd, a subsidiary (—HEmBEREERES 2B RR)
which has a material non-controlling interest (NCI). MER . T2V ZHBEERFEER:
The summarised financial information presented below AR ARIEME 2 ATH 258 ©
represents the amounts before any inter-company
elimination.
2018 2017
—E-N\FE ZZ—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FIT AREFT
NCI percentage SEEER R A AL 49% 49%
Current assets MEVEE 757,994 505,549
Non-current assets FERBEE 7,705 528
Current liabilities mEEE 759,323 506,592
Non-current liabilities EmEBEE = -
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/(AfF) FE 6,376 (615)
Carrying amount of NCI R R 2 IR (A 3,124 (252)
Revenue e = -
Loss for the year FERIE 17,833 10,719
Total comprehensive loss S HEEASE 17,833 10,719
Loss allocated to NCI DB E IR R 2 E1E 8,738 5,262
Dividend paid to NCI AR M 2 2 BR R = -
Cash flows from operating activities KEEB L RERE (6,151) 219,623
Cash flows from investing activities REEBRZRERSE (583) (267,400)
Cash flows from financing activities REEK RERE 4,929 50,204
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

17. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE

17. R—REBE QAT 2 ER

2018 2017
—E-N\FE ZZ—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFIT

Cost of investment adjusted for share of result LUk HEZ (5 — REBEE QA 7
of associate after acquisition FIBEHWER AR 2 505,556 482,437
Less: unrealised profit in associate JB - PREE R Rl 2 R R A (4,041) (8,341)
501,515 474,096

The following list contains the particulars of the associate
which is a private company:

TREINELE QR

EINGETE

Proportion of
ownership interest
BEERLA
Held by a
subsidiary
Group’s  Held by the of the
effective Company Company
Country of Paid-in interest KAFZ  Principal activities and
Name registration capital KE@ N HEAT  places of operations
8 EMEX BkEx BRER BE BE IEXBREXMY
Guangzhou Xintian Properties The PRC RMB710,503,607 30% - 30%  Property development
Development Limited i) (i), (i & (v) B ARE710,503,6077T in the PRC
ENHAEHELRERAR RABRENFER
0 &)
Notes: iz -

(i) The English name of above company referred in these
consolidated financial statements represent management’s
best effort in translation of the Chinese names of this company
as no English names have been registered or available.

(i) The statutory financial statement of above associate is
not audited by CHENG & CHENG LIMITED.

(iii) The above company is registered as limited company
under the PRC law.

Guangzhou Xintian Properties Development Limited
operates (“Guangzhou Xintian”) in the PRC and is a
strategic partner for the Group in developing the property
development where Guangzhou Xintian has expertise and
financial support from its holding company.

The above associate is accounted for using the equity
method in the consolidated financial statements.

HAMESEEER QT 2018F Fi

(if)

(ii)

(iv)

MR EEMR A B2 REXAME - it
SR MBmRMEL 2 BRATZ
AXERWREEBRENHRFARLZ
X RTEATIEZ BEOCHRE

BB R R B ZEE M BHMKRALIFR
BESHEIEHEMERAREITER °

LRARREFBEARERABERA
7o

BEMHARFEHEZRBRAAF ([E
MR RPBEZEE RAKERE
EMEEHOEBEIERE  ME
PR R 55 1 2E B 35 70 T B4R AR
AMER MBI

B R AR B AR 4R A B R
KA



17.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)  17. R—BEHBE AT 2% (&)
Summarised financial information of the associate, ZEERNTVBENRE - BigHBUR
adjusted for any differences in accounting policies, and EZBRERAENELGETBHRRARE
reconciled to the carrying amounts in the consolidated BzHEBEENAT
financial statements are disclosed below:
Guangzhou Xintian
Properties
Development Limited
BEMHFREHERE
BRAF
2018 2017
—E-NFE —Z—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFIT
Current assets (note) mEVEE (i) 2,119,097 3,204,893
Non-current assets EMBEE 432 462
Current liabilities nBBE 491,728 1,887,646
Non-current liabilities EREBEE 185,955 198,261
Equity FER 1,441,846 1,119,448
Revenue Wz 1,861,670 244,051
Profit for the year FEmRF 322,398 46,231
Other comprehensive income Ha2mmUA = -
Total comprehensive income 2HEWA BT 322,398 46,231
Dividend received from the associate KEHE QAR E - 38,100
Reconcile to the Group’s interests HEAEEEHE AT
in the associate ¥R
Gross amounts of net assets of the associate B¢& AT FEE LS 1,441,846 1,119,448
Group’s effective interest REBEBRERR 30% 30%
Group’s share of net assets of the associate AEBEDEEE QAR EEFE 432,553 335,834
Goodwill EES 3,828 3,828
Effect of fair value adjustments at acquisition — B A FEFENTE 69,175 142,775
Less: unrealised profit in associate D AN W -5 (4,041) (8,341)
Carrying amount in the consolidated financial ~ R4r &M ERENREE
statements 501,515 474,096

note:

As at 31 December 2018, the associate had completed
properties held for sale, amounted to RMB748,714,000 (2017:
properties under development and completed properties held
for sale amounted to RMB2,391,162,000), that were required to
be carried at the lower of cost and NRV in accordance with the

Group’s policy.

Hiat -

RZE-—NF+ZA=+—H BER
AMBEHEZERIME AARE
748,714,000 (= T — £ F: B E &
MERBELEZERTIYWEAARE
2,391,162,0007T) * & MR AN & B &) BUR #7

E o AARAMA SIFERE 2 REEA

BE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

17. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 17.

Reconciliation of share of result of an associate is

R—EBE QR 2B (4)
HE— MM E AR EE 2 HRBED

disclosed below: N
2018 2017
ZE-NF —ZE—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFIT
Profit for the year F & A 322,398 46,231
Group’s effective interest AEBERER 30% 30%
Group’s share of profit before fair value BRUEER A T ERARNZE -
adjustments at acquisition REE DR F 96,719 13,869
Change in effect of fair value adjustments WBER N AR ENE
at acquisition (73,600) (13,284)
Group’s share of profit NEB D% T 23,119 585
18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 18. AHHEERMEE
ASSETS
2018 2017
—E-N\F —+fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥EFIT AREFIT
Unlisted equity securities outside REABLIMEE 2 FE £
Hong Kong, at cost (note) AR S - KA (Hat) = 1,000
Total HEt - 1,000
note: BiaE -

FLEMRABSERPEEMZAEDERN
BE - eWMEER T N\F—A—HIRE
ERMBRELERNFIRENDORERAT
B AEMBEERAZBETAKRE - Ah
REFRERRNERRINE - AREEEER
AERAFRERNAFERS -

The unlisted equity securities represented investment in a private
company registered in the PRC. The financial asset is reclassified
to investment in equity instrument at fair value through other
comprehensive income under HKFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018 and
its fair value is estimated to be zero by the Group’s management
as at the end of the current year due to the poor performance of
the investee.
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18.

19.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=
;%/T\ A\H

B FEERAR AL

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

18. NHHEEMEE &)

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS (continued)

This financial asset was stated at fair value in the
consolidated statements of financial position at as the
reporting date and is grouped into the fair value hierarchy
as level 3. During the year ended 31 December 2018,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or
transfers into or out of Level 3.

As the financial asset was not traded in an active market,
the fair value has been determined by discounted cash
flows. The main level 3 inputs used by the Group in
measuring the fair value of financial asset was derived
and evaluated by the expected cash inflows that were
estimated based on the financial performance of the
investee, the knowledge of the business and the impact
of current economic environment.

RBEEEH  2REERSZEASVEHUR
KPARFEINEE - BN RAFERH
FHRE =M %Z —E-N\Ft=A
=t HLEFE F-RAF-KZHE
WHEER > ME= mﬁﬁﬂﬁcﬂiﬂ\&ﬁ}
o

mﬁéﬁﬁiﬁéiﬁé%ﬁ%ﬁ%ti% CH

REFEDRBRASRETE - AEH
RABESREENAFERARAEE
FE_MB ABERERSRALELF
il HERBRREQRRNPHERER
EHAH - AREMEERREENT
EEITE -

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 19. BEDYE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFIT
Properties under development BEPE 1,860,035 1,286,634

All properties under development are located in the PRC.
Land use rights are held on leases over 40 years.

As at 31 December 2018, properties under development
with an amount of RMB454,698,000 (2017: Nil) were
pledged as collateral for the Group’s borrowings granted
to the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, properties
under development with an amount of RMB95,908,000
(2017: RMB454,797,000) were transferred to completed
properties held for sale.

Amounts of properties under development expected to
be recovered after one year from the end of reporting
period is approximately RMB1,860,035,000 (2017:
RMB1,286,634,000).

The Group considered sentiment of property market
in Guangzhou, pace of contract sales, lifted selling
prices, further development costs to be incurred as well
as the latest valuation, a further reversal of previously
provided impairment loss of RMB81,518,000 (2017:
RMB82,772,000) was recorded for properties under
development.

PIERRTYEGUNTE - FAELH
8 AR THHIR B 405 ©

R-E—NF+_A=1+—"H &85
A R #6454 698,000t (=& — + F
#/)NBERTPYEDKIBIEALNEEE
BRERZERR -

BE-_Z—)\F+-_A=+—BIt&F
€ &% A AR%9509008,0007T (=&
—+ % AR#454,797,000) &) 3% E
PYECERERIELHECERTIY
%o

TEHR @mE PRET —FRIERMNER
) % & 8R4 A R #1,860,035,0007T
(ZZ—t % : AR ¥1,286,634,000
JT)

REBLARENDETSEHER - A
WEEEE EEBLFA BELENE—
HRBRANA LT EEER  BEEFY
EBE—SEOBFBRENRERRE
AR #81,518,0007t (ZZE—+H4F : A
E#£82,772,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

20. COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR 20. FEHEZERIYHE

SALE
2018 2017
—E-NFE —Z—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTFT ARETFIT
Completed properties held for sale, BEHE BRI
at cost — IR 288,038 347,154
The completed properties held for sale are located in the BEHEZ2ERIMEAUNRPE - #F
PRC. Land use rights are held on leases over 50 years. B i fE AR BRS04 -
As at 31 December 2018, none of the completed RZE—-—NF+ZA=+—H #&
properties held for sale (2017: Nil) were pledged as (ZZ—+tF 8 BEEEZERTIY
collateral for the Group’s bank borrowings granted to the ¥EOHEBEAREBEREITER K
Group. e
Amounts of completed properties held for sale FIERECE R TYE 2 FIBTERN —
expected to be recovered within one year is FARUkE £ 54 A R 288,038,000
approximately RMB288,038,000 (2017: approximately —T—+F: HARE347,154,000
RMB347,154,000). TT) e
21. TRADE RECEIVABLES 21. EWERR
2018 2017
—E-NE —ZT—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FIT AREFIT
Trade receivables JE Us AR 3R 8,235 18,746
Less: Provision for impairment of trade J BRERERERR
receivables recognised LB B = (1,500)
Allowance for expected credit losses TEEEE B R E (453) -
Trade receivables — net JEMER R — F1E 7,782 12,246
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21.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The directors of the Company considered that the fair
value of trade receivables are not materially different from
their carrying amounts because these amounts have short
maturity periods in their inspection.

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, trade
receivables are mainly arose from rental income from
investment properties and sales of properties. Proceeds
are to be received in accordance with the terms of related
tenancy agreements or property sales and purchase
agreements.

Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables
are recorded using allowance accounts on trade
receivable is as follows:

21.

FEWBR TR ()
AATEERARUER Y AT EEE
EEETEEAZE  NEREERE
ZE B EER T o

R-FB-N\F+_A=t—BR-ZF—
tF+ZRA=1+—H BURERETENRK
BREVMERSMHEME WA - BT
SRERBHEBEOIMEEE HEK
FER

FUSRRZBHEEERZBEHERE
WRRR BB RCER - IR0 ¢

2018 2017

—E-N\F ZZE—tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FiT AREFT

At the beginning of the year F7) 1,500 2,153
Allowance for expected credit loss recognised B R TE A= B k518 2 B% 6,182 -
Less: uncollectible amounts written off A BMEE 2 A RTRE A (7,229) (653)
At the end of the year FR 453 1,500

At each reporting date, the Group reviews trade
receivables for evidence of expected credit loss on both
an individual and collective basis. As at 31 December
2018, the Group’s trade receivables of approximately
RMB7,229,000 were individually determined to be
impaired. The individually impaired receivables related
to customers that were in financial difficulties and the
management assessed that the receivables were not
expected to be recovered.

REBRSME B HRZRER RBEELE
B EKERESHRBEREEEER
B -RZE—N\F+ZA=+—H &
SEZERNEERTEBEROARE
7,229,0007T { FRF & o 16 5l E 8 e
WERFE I R#EN T HEE - BEE
AR AZERERBERFR A sEdE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

7 N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

21.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Based on the terms of related tenancy agreements or
property sales and purchase agreements, the ageing
analysis of the trade receivables net of allowance for
expected credit losses is as follows:

21.

FEWBRRR ()

IR T8 M1 B 518 18 48 o0 B U B 2K 4 4
RO ESERRER BRI
T

2018 2017
—E-N\E —ZT—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFIT
0 to 90 days 0£90H 7,566 7,233
91 to 180 days 91£180H 195 66
181 to 365 days 181£365H 21 4,947
7,782 12,246

As at December 2017, included in Group’s trade RZE—+F+ A FAKRE

receivables balances are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of RMB5,195,000, which are past due at the
end of the reporting period for which the Group has not
provided for impairment loss. Based on the historical
experience of the Group, trade receivable that are past
due but not impaired are generally recoverable. The group
does not hold any collateral over these balances. The
following is an aging of trade receivables (net of allowance
of expected credit losses), which are past due but not
impaired:

EWERNEHASAFEEDBEEARK
5,195,000 T W& TH + 7% sk JH A 3R & B
AREBH - MASE R AR EEE
REE BEASENATLR 28
HEARBEMNERUESBE A TUE -
AEBYERZSERTAEEMER
g o AT A B 8 BB KR E /Y FE SR K
(HRTEEEE BB EE) AR -

2017
—ET—+tF

RMB’000
AREFr

Within 30 days past due
31 to 60 days past due
61 to 90 days past due
Over 90 days past due

HAMESEEER QT 2018F Fi

BHEIS0OE AT
#HIB1 260 H 28
#HEI61E90H 24
0 BAER H90 A

130

5,013

5,195
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=—F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to a large number of diversified customers for
whom there was no recent history of default of payments.
The concentration of credit risk is limited due to the
customer base being large and unrelated.

As at 31 December 2018, included in the Group's trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of RMB377,000 which are past due as at the
reporting date. Out of the past due balances, RMB216,000
has been past due 90 days or more and is not considered
as in default. These balances were related to a large
number of diversified customers that had a good track
record of credit with the Group. Based on past credit
history, management believes that no impairment allowance
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and these
balances are still considered to be recoverable.

The Group is holding rental deposits from tenants as
collateral in respect of trade receivables for rental income.

As at 31 December 2018, all of the Group’s trade
receivables are denominated in RMB (2017: RMB), no
interest is charged on trade receivables.

21.

FEWBR TR ()

SIb 45 360 H9 X B L B 2 B K B R A
BRIZFAR  ZEEF I & iR
BEEH  HNEFEREALT AR
& AhEREERBRAER -

RZEBE-NE+-_A=+—8 K&
EEKEFEHBERREEAAR
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M NEBHMESRT ARK
216,000 2 @ HA90H sk A - BT
RIEER - ZSHBERETFAERE
FPEHB ZEBEPRAKEEZBEEER
WERIT - BBATEELE BEE
BE BN EEERUESEREFHHEZ
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ERRFTIERE R -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

22. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND 22, FEMNFIE - - ZERHEMEWER
OTHER RECEIVABLES E
2018 2017

—E-NFE —ET—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥FT AREFIT

Surety deposit paid for participating in SRR AN &

listing-for-sale of land parcel EREE 66,000 256,800
Performance deposit for commencement FTE T EAIRES

and completion of construction 5,000 10,000
Amount due from a non-controlling JiE U — FET B JB8 1 R SR AR A% B3R

shareholder of a subsidiary (nhote (a)) K58 (K1it(a)) 20,000 20,000
Value-added tax recoverable EE bty 22,253 16,801
Other receivables, prepayment and deposits ~ HAbEUIERR - TR EIE KR

(note (b)) ®me (Witb) 13,686 15,050

126,939 318,651

Less: Non — current portion B FERNERER (20,000) -

Current portion BIERER5 106,939 318,651

All of the current prepayments, deposits and other FrEBNEATEI A « e R EA EUER

receivables are expected to be recovered within one year. FIBERASE —FRUgE o

notes: Ha -

(@) It represents advance made to an independent third party (a) BRET - R2BIE=ZTHER - U
for the subscription of 40% registered capital of a non- RBEFERBIIEZENBLRER
wholly owned subsidiary namely, Yunnan Xin Tian Culture FIRXbIREZERE AR A F40%E 7+
Travel Development Limited in previous years. Subsequent MER - NFHEBE  NEERUE
to the year end date, the Group entered into a letter of FARE ORISR L B M E - SR
intent for the buy back of such shareholding at the same BEARIMREE -
amount. No material gain or loss would be recorded.

(o) It included prepaid construction cost, residences (b) BIEBNBENE TE#EES -
maintenance fund, rental and sundry deposits. e RMEERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B WK

—NFFZA=F—ALFE)

n‘/—.ﬁ

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (Bt =%

23. CONTRACT COSTS 23. EHRA
31 December 1 January 31 December
2018 2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—tF
+=A —N\F +=A
=+-8  —A-B  =t-A
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETFT ARETFT
Incremental costs to obtain BUS & KBRS AN (f7et)
contracts (note) 2,273 5,909 -
note: Hat -
Contract costs capitalised as at 31 December 2018 relate to the RZBE-NF+ZA=+—HHEEREHE

incremental sales commissions paid to employees and selling WA BEAREHEETHHNEES RIHERIE
agents whose selling activities resulted in customers entering into TREEGHEEMESER  ZSHEEHEH
sale and purchase agreements for the Group’s properties which XEFP&EFEEHE  BEAEEAERSHH
are still under construction at the reporting date and the expected TEREENYE - mAEEEBYEZE
dates of transfer of control of the relevant properties are over one BB ERTEAFETHEE —FULE -

year after the current year end.

Contract costs are recognised as part of distribution costs in

EPKE*ﬁfﬁ%%%gé’]%¥%ﬁﬁ§wﬂﬂﬁ

the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in HRATEGEIBRRERPERE ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ'\]
which revenue from the related property sales is recognised. The — B c FFRERBEBEZHNERNMEK AR

amount of capitalised costs recognised in profit or loss during the
year was RMB3,636,000. There was no impairment in relation to
the opening balance of capitalised costs or the costs capitalised
during the year.

%58 5 AR #3,636,0007T A EEL
BRE AL AN B AN AR V&4 E
RARIRIE ©

The Group applies the practical expedient and recognises the WEAEESTHEREESEHP A —F—
incremental costs of obtaining contracts relating to the sale FUAT @ BIARSBEERERS I EREH
of completed properties as an expense when incurred if the EERIVESENRIEXNAEEERK A
amortisation period of the assets that the Group otherwise would X o

have recognised is one year or less.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

7 N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

24.

R

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
PLEDGED DEPOSIT

Cash and cash equivalents and pledged deposit include
the following components:

RERACESEWURBER
B2e
ReRALSEMUARBEF RS O
BAT4BBR BB -

2018 2017

—EBE-NFE ZZT—+F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥EFIT AREFIT

Cash at bank and in hand SRITRFHEBE® 43,211 51,098
Pledged deposit for borrowing BESEFNEIRFES 3,000 -
46,211 51,098

Included in bank and cash balances of the Group
approximately RMB42,445,000 (2017: approximately
RMB49,798,000) was denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”)
placed with banks in the PRC. RMB is not a freely
convertible currency. Under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement and
Sales and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for foreign
currencies through banks that are authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

The bank balances carry interest at market rates which
range from 0.125% to 0.35% (31 December 2017: 0.01%
to 0.35%) per annum. The pledged deposits carry at
market rate of 0.35% (31 December 2017: Nil) per annum.
The pledged deposits will be released upon the settlement
of relevant borrowings from financial institution.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
performed impairment assessment on bank balances and
pledged deposit and concluded that the probability of
defaults of the counterparty banks and financial institution
are insignificant and accordingly, no allowance for
expected credit losses is provided.

EEBERDT 2018F Fif

REEBRTRRSEHRVETHNFE
BARTUARE TARE]) stEZ
RIEH AR E42,445,0000C (T —+
F 4 AR ¥49,798,0007T) ° AR
RTEBHRARZER - BRIEHEINE
ERGHRERE SEMNIETER
E o AERERTEBRCEEREITIMNME
B2 RITHARELIBRBINEG o

IRITHERUATIISF R R - FAENF
0.125%&0.35% (—ZE—+F+-A=
+—H 1 0.01%%0.35%) - 2L
WENER03B% (ZE—+F+ A=
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25.

26.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=—F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

LOSS ON DISPOSAL OF ASSETS
CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

The amount represents the disposal of investment
properties, commercial units of TianLun Garden, which
was completed in 2017.

TRADE PAYABLES

Based on the invoice dates, the ageing analysis of the
trade payables were as follows:

25.

26.

HETBRARFLEEEZE
&
REBER T LFERRZRMBIE
EREMERBEEMOHEFE -

PEAS BR X
R RRIRER B 2 RREATT -

2018 2017

—EBE-N\E —T—+F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AREFIT

0 to 90 days 0£90H 277,809 132,641
91 to 180 days 91£&180H 725 357
Over 180 days Hi’m180H 717 -
279,251 132,998

All of the trade payables are expected to be settled or
recognised as income within one year or are repayable on
demand.

All amounts are short term and hence the carrying values
of trade payables are considered to be a reasonable
approximation of fair value.

P FE SRR R TR E R I — SF N 4508 S FE
RBWARENERFEE -

PRERBEHBREEEE - Fit - B
ReEEERGSEERFESIEM

4+

Eo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HARBRENE

A N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

27. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

27. EFFERREMENKIE

2018 2017
=E-NFE —ZT—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AREFIT
Deposits received in advance from customers ¥ EENTEERNIZS
for property sales (Note 28) (K1z£28) - 230,361
Deposits and rentals received in advance from N Zize KES
tenants 10,704 8,352
Tax and other levies TIE R BB 4,922 5,335
Interest payable on loan from the controlling KE—EBERARIEREREE
shareholder of an associate R ERTAE 2,852 7,568
Amount due to an associate JE 5 — B & A RI5RIE 172,199 180,088
Amount due to a related company JE 1 — I B E A R 5K IE 790 3,639
Amount due to a director JEN—RBEERIA 2,861 17,091
Other payables and accruals (note) HEmEIEREREA
(K172) 36,160 36,008
230,488 488,442

All of the accruals and other payables are expected to be
settled or recognised as income within one year or are

repayable on demand.

note:

It included accrued salaries, administrative expenses and sundry

creditors.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

28. CONTRACT LIABILITIES BHNEE
31 December 1 January 31 December
2018 2018 2017
—E-N\E —E-N\F —T—+F
+ZA=1+—H —A—H +ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFR ANRETFT AREFT
Receipt in advance from customers TEHBMNIT

in respect of property development (EEMEHREDE)
segment 246,628 237,330 -
Current BNHEA 246,628 237,330 -

All the contract liabilities are expected to be settled
within the Group's normal operating cycle and the whole
balances are classified as current.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, additions of
receipt in advance from customers and interest expenses
in respect of property development segments amounting
to RMB156,917,000.

The revenue recognized in the current year relates to
carried-forward contract liabilities was RMB147,619,000.
No revenue was recognized in the current year relates
to performance obligations that were satisfied in prior
periods.

Property development

The Group receives 5-42% of the contract value as
deposits from customers when they sign the sale and
purchase agreement. The deposits and advance payment
result in contract liabilities being recognized throughout
the property construction period until the customer
obtains control of the completed property.

For contracts where the period between payment and
transfer of the associated properties is less than one
year, the Group applies the practical expedient of not
adjusting the transaction price for any significant financing
component.

FIBANAERENASEREZER
HI%E)S - 2RI BARRNE -

BE_ZTZ-N\F+_A=+—HBLF
B WA E BRSO FPIANRK
MEFRXIEINARRE156,917,0007T °

PREESNRERANFERR 2 WER
AR #147,619,0007T ° W R AFE
ABEHED TR 2 BN E EREREMR
Wz o

UE 395
AEBRNEFPHE BB HHFRE K
BHREEN FSERRERKRSE - %I
& RWEZ BN FHEENBERYE
EEZEMAER  BEERPREFECDR
THEZIEHE -
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3 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

29. BORROWINGS 29. &
2018 2017
ZE-NF —ZT—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FIT AREFIT
Borrowings included in: FTAZER
Bank borrowings — secured (note (a)) RITIER — BIERW (Wit @) - 170,000
Other borrowings — secured (note (b)) B gk — B (Watm)) 300,000 -
Other borrowings — unsecured (note (c)) H b gk — EIBEH (a2 (c) 81,854 101,854
381,854 271,854
Less: current portion of long-term B BEERHRERZ
borrowings — secured (note (a)) BIEAES > (KYiz(a)) = (170,000)
current portion of other borrowings HEmBERERZ
— secured (note (b)) BIHEAES 5 (K7aEb)) (300,000) -
current portion of other borrowings b EEEERZ
— unsecured (note (c)) BIHERES 5 (KYaz(c)) (81,854) (101,854)
Less: Amounts due within one year shown B OREBBAEE TR —FRN
under current liabilities FEN S (381,854) (271,854)

Amounts shown under non-current liabilities

HARMEEEERAT 2018F Fif
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29.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=—F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

(@)

The Group has variable-rate bank borrowings which carry
interest ranged from the People’s Bank of China 3-15
year loan base rate. Interest is repriced annually. As at 31
December 2018, the bank borrowings are fully repaid.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s bank borrowings
were all denominated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2018, the effective interest rates on
Group’s other secured borrowing of RMB300,000,000
is at fixed rate of 11% and repayable on demand. The
secured borrowing has secured by pledged deposit and
properties under development.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s other secured
borrowing was denominated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2018, the effective interest rates on
Group’s other unsecured borrowings are range from 5%
to 11% (2017: Range from 5% to 8%) and repayable on
demand.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group’s other
unsecured borrowings were all denominated in RMB.

29. B (4
HiaE -

(@)

é.?
E

REEZFBRITEFTIZFEIARE
T=FE+RAFERERFEGFE
BFENTEE— RN -R_E—NF+
ZA=+—8 " RITEFEHEE -

R-Z—tF+-A=+—0 %%
BIR1T 1 B AN R M 518 -

R—ZZE—-NE+-_A=Z+—8"
REBHEHMBERFEIRARE
300,000,0007T 2 & B FI| = 4% [&] & F)
KBS - WARBREE - G
AEFRCHEEKFZSREEPDE
TR -

R=ZF-NF+-A=+t—8 %1%
EEMAERERAARERE -

R-ZE—N\F+_A=+—8" &%
EEMEIEFERZERNENT
SEEMESHE M (ZT—1F:
NFoEESEHE 2 H) RIZERE
8o

RZE-NFRZFT—tF+ZA=
+— E $$lﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁu
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

7 N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

30.

R

DEFERRED TAX

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method using the applicable
tax rates prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

The Group has total tax losses arising in Hong Kong
and the PRC of approximately RMB148,119,000
(2017: approximately RMB106,728,000), subject to the
agreement with the relevant tax authorities, that are
available for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets
have not been recognised in respect of these losses
which arose in subsidiaries with unpredictability of future
profit streams.

Deferred tax liabilities in respect of the temporary
differences associated with the undistributed earnings
of subsidiaries have not been provided as the Group is
in a position to control the timing of reversal of these
differences and it is probable that such differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. As at 31 December
2018, the earnings of the Group’s PRC companies are
approximately RMB998,790,000 (2017: approximately
RMB767,571,000).

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The
analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting
purpose is as follows:

30.

EFEB IR
EERBDRE A FREA R B LR
EERERER RS ESEETE
2 -

AEEBEREEBERFEAZHEERS
H 4 AR #148,119,0007T (Z F —+
F HARY106,728,0007T) © FH
MEHERE®%  JRIEREZEEBE
NEIZ RRERBRF - WEZEH B
NAAREEBR AR GEFMELE - BT
REBREBEBRBECHEEE -

WEFH B QG A5 IR T HEEE
EHyEEREAGELEE Y
MR AEEEMTEHZE=E 2 #E
R RZEEZERA B REAET
B - RZ_TE—NFE+_A=+—
B AEEFBEARNEFNNAEARE
998,790,0007T (ZZE—+F : HAER
#767,571,0007T) °

W FERMEORATTRAAS AR IBE E
HAVEIR A R E TR - MEEN A
W R ISHE  BIEERSREE
REBER T A - st BHE B OE
EERRG R DT

2018 2017

—EBE-NFE —ZT—+F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMTFRT AREFIT

Deferred tax asset ELEFIREE (37,950) (45,219)
Deferred tax liability EERIBEE 232,723 246,628
194,773 201,409
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R M A

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=—F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

30. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 30. EEHIE (5)
The net movements on deferred taxation liabilities/(assets) RERIBRE (BE) 2FEFHNT -

are as follows:

Fair value
Revaluation  adjustments

Accelerated Recognition  Unrealised of arising from

tax  Impairment  of revenue contract  investment  acquisition of
depreciation of assets overtime costs properties  subsidiaries LAT  Taxlosses Total

RUEHE

fEE 87 NAfEEL

NEREFE  REAE  BME  ofRF EERRAR  OVERE  DMMER REER it
RUBOD)  AMBOOO  RUBOD)  AMBOOO  RUBODD  AMBOOO  RUBOD)  AMBOOD  RUBOI)
ARETT ARRTT ABRTT ARETT ARETT ARRTT ABRTT ARETT ARETR

At 1 January 2017 N5-t+5-5-1 36,985 - - - 51,874 116,147 102,268 (31,408) 215,366
Fichange redignment EiE (18) - - - i - - ) (9
Defored tax charged/credted) AN /(3H))

to the income statement fgR

during the year JELHA (6,748) - - - 44508 (11,674) 98,163 2382 (74.439)

As at 31 December 2017 WE-1E

t2A=1-8 30219 - - - %40 104473 4106 BT 201409
Impact of HKFRS 15 e s
b - - - 1477 - - - - 1417

Restated opening belance R =F-/1E-A-Eff
Under HKFRS 15 as at BEAMEHEEY
1 January 2018 FREINENEE %0209 - - 141 9,402 104473 4,105 (33,790) 202,88

Exchange realignment ER% 13 - - - - - - - 13
Deferred tax chargedoredted) £ /(5tA)

fo the income statement WAS%

duing the year ZEiERE 1002 6%) % g e 8339 w05 o BN

As at 31 December 2018 WE-\E
t24=1-H 31,234 (696) 948 568 86,669 112812 - (36,762) 194,773
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

7 N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

31.

R

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 20 May 2013, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Eligible participants of the Scheme include the Company’s
directors, including executive, non-executive or
independent non-executive directors, other employees of
the Group, suppliers of goods or services to the Group,
customers of the Group, the Company’s shareholders,
and any non-controlling shareholder of the Company’s
subsidiaries. The Scheme will remain in force for a period
of 10 years from 20 May 2013 unless otherwise cancelled
or amended.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme is
an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the
shares of the company in issue at any time. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to each
eligible participant in the Scheme within any 12-month
period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time. Any further grant of share options in
excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in
a general meeting.

Share-based employee compensation will be settled in
equity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligation
to repurchase or settle the options in cash. Share options
granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the company, or to any of their associates,
are subject to approval in advance by the independent
non-executive directors. In addition, any share options
granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the company or to any of
their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the price of the company’s shares at the date
of the grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

EEEBRDAT 2018FF#HK
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31.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=—F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 28 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of
a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee.
An option may be exercised under the Scheme at any
time during a period not exceeding 10 years after the date
when the option is granted and expiring on the last date
of such period.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by
the directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i) the
Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on
the date of the offer of the share options; (i) the average
Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares
for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of
the offer; and (iii) the nominal value of an ordinary share.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, there is
no option granted and outstanding under the Scheme.

31.

RS E (
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% NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

32. SHARE CAPITAL 32. A&
Number of shares Amount
RO EE K]
HK$’000
FET
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.004 each: FHEE.00478 T 2 LAk -
At 1 January, 2017, RZE—+F—H—H"
31 December, 2017, —E—+F+-A=+—H"
1 January, 2018 and —E-NF—-H-BAk
31 December, 2018 —E-\E+=ZA=+—H 125,000,000,000 500,000
Number of shares Amount Equivalent to
BB EE K] HER
HK$°000 RMB’000

FET ARETFT

Issued and fully paid: EEITRHE :

Ordinary shares of SHEE0.004E T2
HK$0.004 each: Tk
At 1 January, 2017, R-ZE—+F—H—H"
31 December, 2017, “T—t+FF+ZA=1+—H"
1 January, 2018 —Z-NF-A—BK
and 31 December, 2018 —E-N\F+-A=+—H 10,2983,136,554 41,173 37,628
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements

therein during the year are presented in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity.

U]

(i)

(iii)

Share premium and capital redemption
reserve

The application of share premium account is
governed by Section 40 of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (as amended).

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group represents
the surplus arising from the Group’s capital
reorganisation in respect of its capital reduction,
share subdivision and share consolidation in 2003.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), contributed surplus is available for
distribution to shareholders. However, a company
cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a
distribution out of contributed surplus; if:

— the company is, or would after the payment
be, unable to pay its liabilities as they
become due; or

— the realisable value of the company’s assets
would thereby be less than the aggregate of
its liabilities and its issued share capital and
share premium accounts.

Capital reserve

Reserve are transferred from retained earnings for
compensation if loss and any accident incurred
in the future. The capital reserve arose due to the
acquisition of PRC subsidiaries in previous year
and re-organisation of Hong Kong subsidiaries in
previous years.

33.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

33. RESERVES (continued) 33. & ()
(iv) Currency translation reserve (ivy E¥EBEFE
The exchange reserve comprises all foreign M HAEBRERREEINER A
exchange differences arising from the translation BHRERMEEZMBERZ5 -
of the financial statements of foreign operations. FAGRCPEL - AN
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the KERIE ©
accounting policy set out in Note 2.
(v) Fair value through other comprehensive (v) RAFESFTAHMEEBAR
income reserve 1
The fair value through other comprehensive income BAFEFAHEMEZERAZE
reserve comprises the cumulative net change in BEASHREHEZEAN SR
the fair value of financial assets at the end of each BEZATEZRAEEHFE I
reporting period and is dealt with in accordance BRI 2P S & aT IR R IR ©
with the accounting policy set out in Note 2.
34. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 34. EAREIE
2018 2017
—EBE-NE —T—+fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFIT AREFT
Capital commitments (contracted BAREYE (BE]H
but not provided for): BAREE)
Capital injection into subsidiaries MBRAGNEE 19,842 59,770
Capital injection into an associate m—fEEERARNEE 26,249 26,249
Construction costs of properties under BERPMERIEEME
development and investment properties KA 639,220 316,566
Consideration for acquisition of land use right WEE+ A FE 2 (B 260,400 -
945,711 402,585
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35.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 35. REHERRE
As Lessee ERAEBA
As at 31 December 2018, the total future minimum lease RZZE—N\F+_A=+—H £KEH
payments payable by the Group under non-cancellable BEBETITEGEGCEHES L REFE
operating leases in respect of land and building are as oz BEHEREFERZENT -
follows:
2018 2017
—EB-NE —Z=—LF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFIT
Within one year —FR 2,042 1,864
In the second to fifth years E_ZFERF 3,937 117
5,979 1,981
The Group leases a number of properties under operating AEERBEEEHERRAETYE - %
leases. The leases run for an initial period of one year FHMNEELHEHPEAY —F20F
to five years (2017: one to two years), with an option —T—tF —FEMF) AKEA
to renew the lease and renegotiated the terms at the BEEGHEEINERBPHARBEE
expiry date as mutually agreed between the Group MNEHMEEGR - MEHOBS XA
and respective landlords. None of the leases include M -
contingent rental.
As Lessor EREHAA
At 31 December 2018, the total future minimum lease R=ZF-N\FE+_A=1t—H  X5HE
receivable by the Group under non-cancellable operating RETATBESEMER L REFTRE
leases in respect of land and building are as follows: Wz BRREHEFIREREN T
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFIT
Within one year —F R 963 884
In the second to fifth years E_ZFERF 162 1,007
1,125 1,891
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

36. LOAN FACILITIES

As at 31 December 2018, the loan facilities including
bank loans and loans from financial institution. Bank
loans are secured by the Group’s investment properties
with the approximate value of RMB665,000,000 (2017:
RMB702,000,000). Loans from the financial institution is
secured by the Group’s properties under development and
deposit with the approximate value of RMB454,698,000
and RMB3,000,000 respectively (2017: Nil). As the
corresponding loan is classified as current liability based
on the loan terms, the pledged deposit of RMB3,000,000
is classified as current asset. The total loan facilities
amounted to RMB500,000,000 (2017: RMB170,000,000)
in which RMB300,000,000 (2017: RMB170,000,000) were

utilised at the end of 2018.

There are no loan facilities granted to subsidiaries which
are secured by the corporate guarantee of the Company

as at 31 December 2018 and 2017.

37. PLEDGED OF ASSETS

At the end of reporting period, the following assets of the
Group were pledged to banks and financial institution in

order to secure the borrowings granted to the Group:

36.

37.

EXEE

RZE-NE+_A=+—8H" &
FRERERTERLRSRMEEE
K RITEFHAEEEBAOARK
665,000,000 (ZE—+tF : AR
702,000,0007T) HI 1% & ¥) 3 1 1] -
TRREENHAEBEBESNAR
#454,698,0007T & A K #3,000,0007T
(ZZ—+tF &) BRI EREZS
EER - AR EEERE RIEBEERIER
SERMEBEE - ARS,000,0007T
WEERZeHBEARDEE - EXGE
& a5 B A R #500,000,00000 (= F
—t&F : AR¥170,000,0007T) @ E
A R #300,000,0007T (= & — + & -
AR #170,000,0007T) R =T — N4
EEBA -

N E—-—NFR_E—+F+ A=+
—B > HERTHBARZERMETY
AR B2 A B EARER IR -

BEERM
RBERFK - AEBBTIEELRT
RITRS BB - BAEEERERE
A

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

—E-N\E —E—+F

+=A=+-B tZA=1+—H

RMB'000 RMB'000

AREFT AREFT

Properties under development BERAME 454,698 -
Investment properties wEWE 665,000 702,000
Pledged deposit [REiEiiE 3,000 -
1,122,698 702,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R M A

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=—F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES 38. BIFGEER

2018 2017
—EB-N\F —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKETFT ARETT

Guarantee in respect of mortgage facilities REBEHSMESEMNER L

for certain purchasers of the Group’s RiEMEER (MiF)

property units (note) = 14,500
note: HiaE -
The Group has in cooperation with certain financial institutions AEBCDEETEREESE BAYEER
arranged mortgage loan facility for its purchasers of property and THZRBERBEMEHERUBRENRE
provided guarantees to secure the repayment obligation. As at 31 Fe-RZE-—N\FF+ZA=+—H " ERE
December 2018, the guarantees was fully released. TEHRRR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

7 N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

39. CHANGES IN LIABILITIES ARISING 39. AREXBELE 2EBED
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Amounts
due to Amounts
an executive due to an
Borrowings director associate
EN—2#1T EN-EHE
(EE EENE A FEFIE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AR¥FT AR¥FT
At 1 January 2018 RZE—NF—H—H 271,854 17,091 180,088
Changes from financing MERESRESH
cash flows
Proceeds from other H fth fE 4K IR B SR PT1S 5E
unsecured loan 20,000 - -
Proceeds from other secured — E G HEIFE TS 0IE
loan 300,000 - -
Repayment of bank loans BERITER (170,000) - -
Repayment of other EEAMEERER
unsecured loan (40,000) - -
Net movement of amounts B —HBE AR
due to an associate HIBFEE - - (10,322)
Net movement of amount JERN—BRITES
due to an executive director  FRIAF & - (14,230) -
Interest paid on bank loan BERRITEEZFE
borrowing (4,341) - -
Total changes from MERSRESE AT
Financing cash flows BERSRE 105,659 (14,230) (10,322)
Other changes: Hi S5 :
Finance costs BhE AR 4,341 - 2,433
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\F
+=-—A=+—H 381,854 2,861 172,199

R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R M A

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=—F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

39. CHANGES IN LIABILITIES ARISING 3. ARMEXRBELE 2EBED
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (continued) (%&)
Amounts
due to Amounts
an executive due to an
Borrowings director associate
EN—a#T EBN—EHHE
(B EEXE RAEFRIE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT ARETFTT AREFT

At 1 January 2017 RZZE—+F—H—H 245,048 27,105 272,628

Changes from financing MERSREEE

cash flows
Proceeds from other loan HEREHRE 41,306 - -
Repayment of bank loans EBERITER (14,500) - -
Net movement of amounts FEA — B E A F

due to an associate RIEFEE) - - (94,973)
Net movement of amounts B —RTES

due to an executive director  FRIAHE H) - (10,014) -
Interest paid on bank loan BRRITEEZF A

borrowing (12,707) - -
Interest paid on other loan BERNEMERZFE (3,136) - -
Total changes from BERESRESSHHAE
Financing cash flows BERSRE 10,963 (10,014) (94,973)
Other changes: Hihs# g :
Interest expense FERE 15,843 = 2,433
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F

+ZA=+—H 271,854 17,091 180,088
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (& —F—/\F+—-H=1+—HIFFZ)

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 40. BBEALTRS
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed MRZEGEVBmEREMIT D IEE
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, RS REEERIN » AN E S R A T
the Group had the following significant transactions with TTRIERRS :

related parties:

(@) Compensation of key management (a) FEEBASHE:
personnel:
The directors are of the opinion that the key BEERE RNRRIZHITRIER
management personnel were the executive and TEEATEEERAE  BE2
non-executive director of the Company, details of FENFEBEH MR -

whose emoluments are set out in note 11.

(b) Balance with related party: (b) EEHEEBEALZ&ER:
2018 2017
—E-NFE —Z—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTFRT AREFIT

Balances to a related party e — R AL 2 &
Associate: B NT
Guangzhou Xintian Properties BN REHEZRBRAR
Development Limited (Hiit(@)
(note (a)) 172,199 180,088
Related company: BEAT
Guangzhou Tianlun Property EMNXEEEEBR AT
Management Limited Company (Bi#tm)
(note (b)) 790 3,639
Executive Director: HTES:
Mr. Zhang Gao Bin (note (c)) R B E (i) 2,861 17,091
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R M A

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 40. BEBATIRF &)

(continued)

(c) Transaction with related party: (c) HBEBALZXRS:
2018 2017
—E-N\F ZE=—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AREFIT
Interest income on loan to LTHEBALERZ
a related party FE YA
Associate: i3/ I
Guangzhou Xintian Properties BN REHEERERBR AR
Development Limited = 589
Interest paid on current account to a FAREMFHEAB AR ZFE
related company
Associate: -4 — BN
Guangzhou Xintian Properties BN REHEZERBR AR
Development Limited (note (a)) (K1%(a) 2,433 2,433
Management fee income from REBEBALTZEBERA
a related party
Associate: BENT
Guangzhou Xintian Properties ENFREHEZERBRAT
Development Limited (note (d)) (B132(d)) 12,345 187
Building management fee paid to a BTEBRALZEFERE
related party
Related company: BEEAT
Guangzhou Tianlun Property EMNXBYEEERERAA
Management Limited Company (Htet(e))
(note (e)) - 1,712
Realised deferred interest income LTHEEALERZEER
on loan to a related party FEIEF] BUA
Associate: i RN
Guangzhou Xintian Properties BN REHEZERBR AR
Development Limited (note (1) (HtaE(n) 3,262 -
Rental payment paid to a related party 4 FREBA T 2FHESTH
Related company: BEsN T :
Tianlun Holdings Limited Company KIERAR AR (M)
(note (e)) 1,258 1,697
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
.vT\ jﬁ%#&%ﬁ‘ﬁf

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(c)

Transaction with related party: (continued)

Notes:

(a)

Balances due to an associate are unsecured,
interest free and no repayment terms in the year
ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December
2017 except for the approximate amount of
RMB60,000,000 (2017: RMB60,000,000) was
charged at 4% per annum and repayable on
demand.

Balance due to a related company is unsecured,
interest free and repayable on demand.

Balance due to an executive director is
unsecured, interest free and repayable on

demand.

Management fee income from an associate was
charged at a negotiated value.

Building management fee and rental payment
paid to related companies were charged at a
negotiated value.

The deferred interest income on a previous loan
to a related party was realised during the year.
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41.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=—F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of
financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations
and in its investment activities. The financial risks include
market risk (including currency risk, interest risk and other
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group does not have written risk management
policies and guidelines. Generally, the Group employs
a conservative strategy regarding its risk management.
Financial risk management is coordinated at the Group’s
headquarters, in close co-operation with the board of
directors periodically. The overall objectives in managing
financial risks focus on securing the Group’s short to
medium term cash flows by minimising its exposure to
financial markets. Long term financial investments are
managed to generate lasting returns with acceptable risk
levels. As the Group’s exposure to market risk (including
currency risk, interest risk and other price risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk are kept at a minimum level, the
Group has not used any derivative or other instruments
for hedging purposes. The Group does not hold or issue
derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.
The most significant financial risks to which the Group is

exposed are discussed below.

As at the reporting date, the Group’s financial instruments
mainly consisted of pledged deposit, cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables, deposits and other
receivables, trade payables and other payables and

borrowings.

41.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 41. BIEEREERAFETSE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) (%&)

(a) Categories of financial assets and (a) =RMEERSEZER
liabilities
The carrying amounts presented in the Group’s REFGETHMARABERES 2
statements of consolidated financial position relate FEHEENATeREERSRE
to the following categories of financial assets and BHERIERE :

financial liabilities:

2018 2017
—B-N\E -—Ttf&
Financial assets RMB’000 RMB’000
ERMEE ANRETT AREFIT
Available-for-sale financial assets AIHEHESmERE - 1,000
Financial assets at amortised cost measured & S5 AT 22 £ BB E
— Trade receivables — IR 7,782 -
— Deposits and other receivables — e R H A AR K 101,953 -
— Pledged deposits —BEFES 3,000 -
— Cash and cash equivalents —HekRSEEY 43,211 -
Loans and receivables B3k W EIE
— Trade receivables — FEURER R = 12,246
— Deposits and other receivables — &e RHEMEUAR - 29,490
— Cash and cash equivalents - BekBEeEEY = 51,098
155,946 92,834
155,946 93,834
2018 2017
—E-NF CZZ—LF
Financial liabilities RMB’000 RMB’000
SRAas ANRETFT AREFIT
Financial liabilities measured at BB HEKAFTEZ
amortised cost cRaE
— Trade payables — JETER R 279,251 132,998
— Other payables — HAbFERFIR 222,604 252,746
— Borrowings — B 381,854 271,854
883,709 657,598
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(b)

(c)

Foreign currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign currency.

The functional currency of the Company and its
major subsidiaries in Hong Kong is Hong Kong
Dollar (“HK$”) in which most of the transactions
are denominated. The functional currency of those
subsidiaries operating in PRC is RMB in which
most of its transactions are denominated. Certain
bank balances of the Group are denominated in
HK$ and RMB respectively. As at the reporting
date, foreign currencies were translated into RMB
at the closing rate.

The management considers future commercial
transactions, monetary assets and liabilities are
denominated in the functional currency of each
entity of the Group. Therefore, the foreign currency
risk is immaterial.

The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, the management
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arises.

The policies to manage foreign currency risk have
been followed by the Group since prior years and
are considered to be effective.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge
its obligation under the terms of the financial
instrument and cause a financial loss to the Group.
The Group’s exposure to credit risk mainly arises
from the ordinary course of its operations.

41. BBEBREER QN TFETE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(c)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

The carrying amounts of trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables, pledged deposit
and cash and cash equivalent included in the face
of the consolidated statement of financial position
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk in relation to its financial assets.

The credit risks on pledged deposit and cash
and cash equivalent are limited because the
counterparties are banks and financial institution
with high credit ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies.

The credit risks on deposits and other receivables
are limited because the counterparties are mainly
government authorities which are considered with
very low risk of default.

Deposits and other receivables, pledged deposit
and cash and cash equivalents are considered
to have low credit risk and therefore the loss
allowances are measured at an amount equal to
12-month ECL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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e MR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=—F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(c)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

For the rents receivables from properties, the Group
has policies in place to ensure that leases are made
to tenants with an appropriate financial strength
and appropriate percentage of down payments
and rental deposits. It also has other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
In addition, the

Group reviews regularly the recoverable amount

taken to recover overdue debts.

of each individual trade and other receivables
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. The Group has
no significant concentrations of credit risk, with
exposure spread over a large number of counter
parties and customers.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as
16% (2017: 6%) and 56% (2017: 87%) of the total
other receivables was due from a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary and a PRC local
government authority.

The credit and investment policies to manage credit
risk have been followed by the Group since prior
years and are considered to have been effective
in limiting the Group’s exposure to credit risk to a
desirable level.

4. BEEREERAFETE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(c)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

As part of the Group's credit risk management,
the Group uses debtors' aging to assess the
impairment for its customers in relation to its
property investment operation because these
customers consist of a large number of small
customers with common risk characteristics that
are representative of the customers' abilities to pay
all amounts due in accordance with the contractual
terms. The following table provides information
about the exposure to credit risk for trade
receivables of the property investment segment
which are assessed based on provision matrix as
at 31 December 2018 within lifetime ECL.

41.
(&)

(c)

MBERRBREERAFEFE

1= & 2 B 5 Rl (8 R4

(&)
ERAREEERREEZ —#
o AEBAEBAZRERH
MERELEFEEEP ZR
B WIHRZEEFERAE
RARHERREB 2 NEERS
RARBREPRIEA KGR
FRBEZIHFIAMRES - TREMH
BRARKATRREEEIRANERH
WMERED A2 EUBRFR (R =
E-NE+A=+—HERER
MRS L) FEERRZER -

Gross carrying amount BRETAE(E
Allowance
on trade
Gross receivables
carrying Average net of amount
amount loss rate written off
HIBR 2 85
MIEZ FEW
IREIAE FHEBER ERREE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARMFT
Current (not past due) BUVER (Y fEseAf) 7,823 5.67% 444
1-180 days past due #HEI1=180H 144 5.79% 8
181-365 days past due #wH181%:365H 22 5.81% 1
7,989 453

The estimated loss rates are estimated based
on historical observed default rates adjusted for
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

HAMESEEER QT 2018F Fi

AR S TR E S R R
E kst Lo BAN R TN E
PO S 5% 0 BN AT ER{R 2 AR A 6
FHE B -
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(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=—F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 41. BIEEREERAFETE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) (%)

(c) Credit risk and impairment assessment () FERRRBEFG
(continued) (4&)
Gross carrying amount (continued) BREAEE (&)
The following tables show the movement in lifetime TRITREBEGC T A ERIE
ECL that has been recognised for trade receivables WEER 2 K ATEHIEEBEZE
under the simplified approach: g -

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
KAEH KARH
FEEE FEBE
(EEERE) (EERfE) A%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT ARETFT

As at 1 January 2018 - As restated R=-ZE—-\E—A—A
- RE3 - 1,500 1,500

Changes due to financial instruments A —F—BERERRERSEHIA

recognized as at 1 January: e
Impairment losses recognized ERERAESSE 453 5,729 6,182
Uncollectible amounts written off B A B R = (7,229) (7,229)
As at 31 December 2018 W-Z2-N\E+=A=+-H 453 - 453
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(d)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates.

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from interest
bearing bank deposits, bank borrowings and
unsecured loan. Bank borrowings and unsecured
loan at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk.

The Group has interest-bearing assets and liabilities
in relation to cash at bank and borrowings. Details
of which are disclosed in notes 24 and 29. The
Group currently does not have any interest rate
hedging policy and will consider enter into interest
rate hedging should the need arise. The Group
ensures that it borrows at competitive interest rates
under favourable terms and conditions.

As 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the
Group’s interest-bearing borrowings bore interest at
fixed rate. Management considers the exposure to
the changes in market interest rate should not be
materially enough to cause adverse financial effect
on the Group’s position.

The policies to manage interest rate risk have been
followed by the Group since prior years and are
considered to be effective.

HARMEEEERAT 2018F Fif

MBERRBREERAFEFE

(&)

(d)

= E R
HERRDESMIAY ATE
SHE R EEMTBHEREDT
Wz ERAR -

A B2 R R AR KA BET
BE- BITERREERER -
A B A R 1T 5 R E R
5B IR B 2 T
A -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(e)

(f)

Other price risk

All of the Group’s unlisted equity classified as
investment in equity instrument at fair value through
other comprehensive income are recognised at
cost, the management consider that the effect to
the change in fair value of investment in equity
instrument at fair value through other comprehensive
income on the change in market prices is minimal.

The policies to manage other price risk have been
followed by the Group since prior years and are
consider to be effective.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will not
be able to meet its obligations associated with its
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash
or another financial assets. The Group is exposed to
liquidity risk in respect of settlement of trade payables,
accruals and other payables and borrowings and also
in respect of its cash flow management. The Group’s
objective is to maintain an appropriate level of liquid
assets and committed lines of funding to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The Group manages its liquidity needs on a
consolidated basis by carefully monitoring the
cash inflows and outflows due in day to day
business. Liquidity needs are monitored in various
time bands, on a day to day and week to week
basis, as well as on the basis of a rolling 30 day
projection. Long term liquidity needs for a 180-day
and 365-day lookout period are identified monthly.

The Group’s liquidity is mainly dependent upon
the cash received from its tenants of investment
properties and customers of trading property held
for sale, and funds financing for property under
construction. The directors of the Company are
satisfied that the Group will be able to meet in full
its financial obligations as and when they fall due in
the foreseeable future.

The liquidity policies have been followed by the
Group since prior years and are considered to be
effective in managing liquidity risks.

41. BBEBREER D TFETE

(#8)

(e)

(f)

HibERER

REBD B RRAFEFAEM
EEHWRAZEZTANZHIEL
ME SRR ATER - EEER
RERAFEFARBEZEEAZ

BT EEM
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 41. BIEEREERAFETSE
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) (&)

()  Liquidity risk (continued) (H REBELEAR (&)

TNRFINAEBEARNRRIEITE
TREBERREAMZNBELD
HIRR - W DEREHRRRS
MENMANEERARA A ERE
KEREz &FBBMMIEDL
BRERH - WEARERKER
FEROBITERBREREER
RE - MAWRITERITERSR
FEMMEE X - TREREMNE

ERAEHERE -

The following tables detail the remaining contractual
maturities at the reporting date of the Group’s and
the Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities,
which are based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows and the earliest date the Group and
the Company can be required to pay. Specifically,
bank loans with a repayment on demand clause
are included in the earliest time band regardless of
the probability of the banks choosing to exercise
their rights. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows:

As at 31 December 2018

HAMESEEER QT 2018F Fi

R=2-NFtZR=t-A
Total Within ~ Between  Between
contractual ~ oneyear  oneyear two years
Interest ~ Carrying  undiscounted oron andtwo  andfive More than
rates  amount cashflow  demand years years five years
ARRER -ER 3 MEE
kS FEE HReRE4E  AREIR MR BEH  BRLE
%  RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
% ARBTL  AREFrL AREFT ARRTT ARETT ARETX
Trade payables RS - 219,251 219251 (279,251) - - -
Accruals and other payables EHABERENENZE
(principal amount plus interest) (A& EF|8) 14% 222,604 205,004 (225,004) - - -
Borrowings (orincipal amount B
plus interest) (R&@MA2) 9.2% 381,854 47,018 (417,018) - - -
883,709 921,278 (921,273) - - -
As at 31 December 2017
HoF—cF-A=t-B
Total Within -~ Between ~ Between
contractual oneyear  oneyear  twoyears
Interest ~ Carrying  undiscounted oron and two and five  More than
rates amount cash flow demand years years  five years
AOAYR R —£% MEZE
il FEE RensEE  EEX MER IR BALE
%  RMB'000 RMB000  RMB'O0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
% NEEFT  ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFT
Trade payables JERER - 132,998 132,998 (132,998 - - -
Accruals and other payables ErERRALENTE
(principal amount plus interest) (REEMFE) 09% 252,746 255,146 (255,146) - - -
Borrowings (orincipal amount B
plus interest) (REEMFE) 6.7% 271,854 290,047 (290,047) - - -
Financial quarantess BIRER - 14,500 14,500 (14,500) - - -
672,098 692,691 (692,691) - - -




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R AR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(9)

Fair value measurement recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial
position

The hierarchy groups financial assets and liabilities
into three levels based on the relative reliability of
significant inputs used in measuring the fair value
of these financial assets and liabilities. The fair
value hierarchy has the following levels:

— Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets and
liabilities;

— Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices
1 that
are observable for the asset or

included within Level

liability, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable
inputs are inputs for which market
data are not available; and

— Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability
that are not based on observable

market data (unobservable inputs).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which
the financial asset or liability is categorised in its
entirety is based on the lowest level of input that is
significant to the fair value measurement.

Fair values of other financial instruments

The Group also has a number of financial
instruments which are not measured at fair value in
the consolidated statement of financial position. For
the majority of these instruments, the fair values are
not materially different to their carrying amounts,
since the interest receivable and payable is either
close to current market rates or the instruments are
short-term in nature.

41. BBEBREER QN TFETE

(#&)

(9)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

7 N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

42,

R

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s capital management objectives are to ensure
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing
goods and services commensurately with the level of risk.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure
and shareholder returns, taking into consideration the
future capital requirements of the Group, prevailing and
projected capital expenditures and projected strategic
investment opportunities.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group regards total equity attributable to the
owners of the Company presented on the face of
the consolidated statement of financial position as
capital, for capital management purpose. The amount
of capital as at 31 December 2018 amounted to
approximately RMB1,947,888,000 (2017: approximately
RMB1,874,634,000), which the management considers
as optimal having considered the projected capital
expenditures and the forecast strategic investment
opportunities.

The Group is not subject to externally imposed capital
requirements.

EEBERDT 2018F Fif
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e EHRRME
(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 43. XA TN BRI R REESS
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE ®

COMPANY
2018 2017
ZEBE-NF —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFIT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Plant and equipment M= K Ek 14 20
Interests in subsidiaries DY E=NE] 1,980,194 -
Amounts due from subsidiaries RS NGIE e - 1,924,609
1,980,208 1,924,629
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  FE[NFRIE « & K H A EUERER 942 806
Tax recoverable AR EIFIA 12 12
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEeEEY 349 77
1,303 895
Current liabilities RBERE
Accruals and other payables JEETE A R H AL B R 1,181 1,268
Amount due to a director B —REEFIE 16,250 12,500
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERH B AR IA 90,887 82,027
108,318 95,795
Net current liabilities RBEEFEE (107,015) (94,900)
Total assets less current liabilities BWEERRBES 1,873,193 1,829,729
EQUITY R
Share capital R& 2R 37,628 37,628
Reserves (Note (a)) @ (Wit (a) 1,835,565 1,792,101
Total equity A 1,873,193 1,829,729
Zhang Gao Bin Luo Zhangguan
1) BEW
Director Director
EZ EZE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E B RARME

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 43. AXAGWNEBER R R REEST

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE = ®
COMPANY (continued)
Note: Kt -
(@) Reserve movement of the Company (a) RARREELS)
Currency Capital
Share translation Contributed redemption Accumulated
premium reserve surplus reserve loss Total
g% EXER
B4 RE RafeE BB B RitER /it

RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT AREFrT AREFT  ARETT ARETZ

At 1 January 2018 RZE-N\E—f-H 2,982,905 (348,864) 393,107 82 (1,235,129) 1,792,101
Loss for the year FEBR - - - - (50,711) (50,711)

Other comprehensive income FEEMZEKRA

for the year:
Exchange gain on translation BEADNFZ
of the Company’s BBHREL
financial statement B 5 W - 94,175 - - - 94,175
Total comprehensive income EEZRMALHE
for the year - 94,175 - - (50,711) 43,464
As at 31 December 2018 R-B-N\E
+=A=+-8 2,982,905 (254,689) 393,107 82 (1,285,840) 1,835,565

HARMEEEERAT 2018F Fif




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R M A

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=—F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 43. AR RN BUR R R EEE B

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE =)
COMPANY (continued)
Note: (continued) Htet - (88)
@) (continued) (@) (&)
Currency Capital
Share translation  Contributed ~ redemption  Accumulated
premium reserve surplus reserve loss Total
& BAER
By HBGE YN el ZEER At

RMB'000  AMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB000
ABETT ARETLT ARETL ARETT  ARETT ARETRL

At 1 January 2017 RZZE—tF—f—-H 2,982,905 (210,503) 393,107 82 (1,383,347) 1,782,244
Profit for the year FEEA - - - - 148,218 148,218
Other comprehensive loss FEEMZAEEE
for the year:
Exchange loss on translation ~ #ERATZ
of the Company’s MBREL
financial statement EHEE - (138,361) - - - (138,361)

Total comprehensive income FEEANABE
for the year - (138,361) - - 148,218 9,857

As at 31 December 2017 RZE—+t#§

+=-A=+-H 2,982,905 (348,864) 393,107 82 (1,235,129) 1,792,101
At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Company RZE-—NEFERZE—+tF+=
had no balance of distribution reserves available for A=+—H AARTEDIKEH
distribution to the owners. BEHATHEHD IR THEEA -

Talent Property Group Limited Annual Report 2018




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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A N =

(For the year ended 31 December 2018) (#t2—=F—/\F+=-HA=1+—HILFZE)

44,

K b

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Subsequent to 31 December 2018, Yangzhou Shiyou City
Development Co., Ltd., an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary, has entered into an agreement with Yangzhou
City Land Resources Bureau for an acquisition of a land
use right to the Land Parcel in Yangzhou City, Jiangsu
Province, the PRC, with a consideration at RMB326.4
million. The acquisition is for the further expansion of the
property development business of the Group in Yangzhou.
Details of the acquisition are set out in the Group’s
circular dated 22 February 2019. The transaction is not
yet completed up to the reporting date of this report.

On 19 March 2019, Guangzhou Guoyou Logistics
Co., Ltd. (“Guoyou”), entered into the Co-investment
Cooperation Agreement (“Agreement”) with Yangzhou
Yunhe New City Development Company Limited (“Yunhe”).
Pursuant to the Agreement, Yunhe agreed to contribute
RMB30 million in cash to the capital of Yangzhou
Shiyou City Development Co., Ltd (“Shiyou City”). Upon
completion, the equity interest in Shiyou City by Guoyou
will decrease from 100% to 90%. Details of the transaction
are set out in the announcement of the Company as at 19
March 2019.

EEBERDT 2018F Fif
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BEPROEH
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